Empowering mass market,
making a difference in the lives
of millions
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2012 significant
achievements

Rapid growth of
tunas usaha rakyat

BTPN rolled out 28,927 of sharia’s tunas
usaha rakyat community centres®, hired and
trained 5,416 employees to serve 444,000
productive poor families across
Banten, West Java, Jakarta
and East Java.

504

billions

444,000

Customers

Total Financing
(in Rupiah)

28,927

Community

5,41 6 Centres

Employees

As of December 2012

*community centres is a group of 15 to 35 btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat
customers served by the bank regularly at the customer's location.




5x growth in assets, deposits an
capital in 5 years.

53,079 daya activities, touching
1.2 million beneficiaries.

Ranked 16" bank in assets, but 6"
In market valuation in Indonesia.
Raised market value 11.3 times In
5 years.



28% 41

Loan Growth Net Profit Return on
Increase Assets (RoA)

250 1,140 69,152

cities in branch ATM*
Indonesia network network

btpn annual report 2012

*including ATM Bersama
and Prima



business
performance

Total Loan Customers

As of Dec 2012
btpn purna bakti 666,000
btpn mitra usaha rakyat 232,000

btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat 444,000

1,336,000

Total Deposit Customers
As of Dec 2012

btpn sinaya 888,000

888,000

Total Network and
Community Centres

As of Dec 2012
btpn purna bakti 467
btpn mitra usaha rakyat 603
btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat 34*
btpn sinaya

36
*excluding 28,927 community
centres for tunas usaha rakyat
(as of Dec 2012)

Total Employees

As of Dec 2012
btpn purna bakti 2,611
btpn mitra usaha rakyat 7,750

btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat 5,416
btpn sinaya 1,054

Support Functions 2,083

18,914

Total Trainings
As of Dec 2012

93,014 ..cers

Total daya Activities

As of Dec 2012

Daya Health & Wellness 13,480
Daya Entrepreneurial Capacity 39,599
Building

93,079

Total daya Beneficiaries

As of Dec 2012
btpn purna bakti 618,193
btpn mitra usaha rakyat 237,328

btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat 344,947

1,200,468

btpn annual report 2012



2012 financial highlights

59,090,132
38,844,046
45,072,603
7,733,927
9,292,927
(3,221,858)
6,071,114

282,805
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(3,866,761)
2,487,158

1,978,986

341




Income Statement (in trillion of Rupiah)

Net Interest Income Fee Income Operating Expense Net Profit After Tax

6.1 0.3 3.9
4.6 3.0
3.5 0.2 2.5
' ; l l
10 11 12 10 11 12 10 11 12

10 11 12
Financial Position (in trillion of Rupiah)
Loan Deposit Capital Total Asset

- 45.1 w7
) 35.6
902 > 46.7
A ' 2.5.5 l '4.2 l A
10 11 12 10 11 12 10 11 12 10 11 12

Financial Ratio (in percent)
Profitability (RoA) Loan Quality (NPL) Capital Adequacy (CAR)

a0 44 4.7 11 07 0.6 234 205 21.5

11
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share performance

12,500 i

5,500 —

4,650 —

4,050 ; -

3,450 —

2,750 — L L-

2,150 — I

Dec ! Jan

High 14,300 13,000 12,000 3,100 3,250 3,275 3,850 4,000 3,875 3,950 3,750 3,500 2,550 3,650 3,650 3,750 3,800 4,000 4,250 4,975 5,300 5,300 5,300 5,250

Low 12,800 11,750 2,350 2,375 2,775 2,950 3,125 3,550 2,950 3,100 3,200 3,100 3,100 3,275 3,375 3,500 3,450 3,625 3,825 4,225 4,725 5,000 5,000 4,925

957
324
8,736
24,617
16,185
4,889
18,264
18,944
13,492
13,268
6,291
10,094
18,014
7,788
9,404
4,567
7,496
3,121
10,398
8,990
4,626
5,614
4,586
4,439

Market Capitalization

Maret Juni D Maret Juni D

Rupiah  14,159,042,850,000 18,406,755,705,000  18,831,526,990,500  19,256,298,276,000  21,025,034,125,200  23,361,149,028,000  30,661,508,099,250  30,661,508,099,250

:I Stock price (Rupiah) Volume (in thousand)
9 March 2012 6 August 2012
Amendment to the Articles of Association on BTPN launched Shelf Registry Bond | Phase Il year
the Rp.139,459,908,560 International Finance 2012 worth Rp.1.25 trillion. Serie A bonds amounts
Corporation (IFC) debt conversion to BTPN equity. to Rp.525 billion, has a 3 year tenor and carries
As a result of this debt to equity conversion a coupon rate of 7.75%, while the Serie B bonds
176,670,117 new shares or 3% were issued by amounts to Rp.725 billion, has a 5 years tenor and
BTPN to IFC. Therefore the total shares amount to carries a coupon rate of 8.25%.

5,840,287,257.



corporate action

SHARE LISTING AT INDONESIA STOCK EXCHANGE

Information Listing Date Total Shares
Initial Public Offering PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk 12 March 2008 943,936,190
Limited Public Offering | to Shareholders in the framework of Rights Issue 22 December 2010 188,787,238
Stock Split 1:5 28 March 2011 5,663,617,140
IFC Debt to Equity Conversion 9 March 2012 176,670,117
Total Share Listing after Debt Equity Conversion 5,840,287,257

BTPN BONDS PUBLIC OFFERING

Bond Amount Coupon Rate

Information Listing Date (Rupiah) (%)

Due Date

Public Offering BTPN Bond | 2009 Fixed Coupon Rate:

Serie A 8 October 2009 350,000,000,000 11.25 7 October 2012
Serie B 8 October 2009 400,000,000,000 12.00 7 October 2014
Public Offering BTPN Bond Il 2010 Fixed Coupon Rate:

Serie A 19 May 2010 715,000,000,000 9.90 18 May 2013
Serie B 19 May 2010 585,000,000,000 10.60 18 May 2015
Public Offering BTPN Bond Ill 2010 Fixed Coupon Rate:

Serie A 23 December 2010 400,000,000,000 8.75 22 December 2013
Serie B 23 December 2010 700,000,000,000 9.20 22 December 2015
Public Offering Shelf Registry Bond | Bank BTPN Fixed Coupon Rate Phase | Year of 2011:

Serie A 30 June 2011 165,000,000,000 9.25 28 June 2014
Serie B 30 June 2011 335,000,000,000 9.90 28 June 2016
Public Offering Shelf Registry Bond | Bank BTPN Fixed Coupon Rate Phase Il Year of 2012:

Serie A 6 August 2012 525,000,000,000 7.75 3 August 2015
Serie B 6 August 2012 725,000,000,000 8.25 3 August 2017
BTPN Bond | 2009 Fixed Coupon Rate AA- (idn); Stable Outlook
BTPN Bond Il 2010 Fixed Coupon Rate AA- (idn); Stable Outlook
BTPN Bond Ill 2010 Fixed Coupon Rate AA- (idn); Stable Outlook
Shelf Registry Bond | Bank BTPN Fixed Coupon Rate Phase | Year of 2011 AA- (idn); Stable Outlook
Shelf Registry Bond | Bank BTPN Fixed Coupon Rate Phase Il Year of 2012 AA- (idn); Stable Outlook

Usage of Funds from Public Offering

Funds from the BTPN Bond | Year 2009, BTPN Bond Il Year 2010, BTPN Bond Il Year 2010 and Shelf Registry Bond | BTPN Fixed Coupon
Rate Phase | Year 2011 and Phase Il Year 2012 as well as Rights Issue | Year 2010, have all been used in line with the purpose of funds usage
as stated in prospectus, which was to strengthen the Bank’s capital and its business growth in the form of credit expansion.

btpn annual report 2012
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16  BOARD REPORTS

At BTPN, we believe that
Indonesians from all walks of
ife desire opportunities for
growth. We enable them by
providing financial solution
and capacity bulding.



Board Reports

President Commisioner’s Report

President Director’s Report

18

24
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btpn annual report 2012






president
commissioner’s report

Dear Shareholders,

n 2012, the prolonged global economic

slowdown has started to impact growth

in China and India, and began to pressure
Indonesia’s commodity exports. As a result,
we experienced a widening trade deficit
that triggered the weakening of Rupiah to
Rp.9,670 by year-end. However, an influx
of new investments and ongoing strong
domestic demand from the country’s
240 million population helped boost
economic growth and propelled Indonesia to
expand by 6.2% in 2012.

19
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With all these challenges,

| am pleased to report that
BTPN continued to deliver
good overall results for the
year. It is the opinion of the
Board of Commissioners
that management has
delivered an overall strong
performance against the
strategic initiatives and
goals set for 2012.

Net operating income
grew by 31.6% to Rp.2.9
trillion, fueled by a 28%
loan growth reaching
Rp.39 trillion by year-end.
Asset quality remained
healthy with a low NPL of
0.6%. Customer deposits
registered a stronger
funding base, growing by
27% to Rp.45.1 trillion.

btpn annual report 2012

For financial year of 2012,
BTPN reported a net profit
of Rp.2.0 trillion from Rp.1.4
trillion in 2011. The Bank’s
shareholders have agreed
not to draw dividends for

the financial year 2012 to allow BTPN to Net‘ Oloe/’a [‘//’)g /'ncome
maintain its capital level for further growth. o
grew by 31.6% to

The year was also marked with the roll-out T

of BTPN’s new initiative, tunas usaha rakyat Rp 2 9 ff////Oﬂ, fue/ed
(TUR), that serves the productive lower- by a 28% loan gro with
income segment. In less than a year, tunas . i
usaha rakyat has shown encouraging results, reaCh/nQ R,O 89 t/’////Oﬂ
drawing 444,000 women customers from by year_end_

productive poor and set to become the next



key growth contributor to the Bank’s overall
performance.

BTPN’s initiative to integrate its social

and business goals continued to make
considerable progress. Through the Bank’s
daya program, we continue to make a
difference in the lives of millions and instill
the development of a mission oriented
organization culture with deep concerns to the
surrounding communities.

Board of
Commissioners

(Left page, left to right)
Sunata Tjiterosampurno
Commissioner

Ashish Jaiprakash Shastry
Commissioner

Ranvir Dewan
Commissioner

(Right page, left to right)

Harry Hartono
Commissioner (Independent)

Prof. Dorodjatun
Kuntjoro-Jakti PhD.
President Commissioner
(Independent)

Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah
Commissioner (Independent)
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president commissioner’s report

O

TUNAS
USAHA
RAKYAT

has shown
encouraging
results,

drawing

444k

women
customers
from
productive
poor segment
and set to
become

the next

key growth
contributor
to the Bank’s
overall
performance.

Corporate Governance

Good corporate governance is an essential
element to build trust, confidence and
professionalism. During the year the Board
of Commissioners monitored, tested and
improved the effectiveness of the Bank's
governance structure. We conducted branch
visits on a regular basis to examine first
hand the processes and procedures in place
that defines overall operational integrity
and organization culture of the Bank. Over
the past four years, members of the Board of
Commissioners have visited close to 300 btpn
sinaya, btpn purna bakti, btpn mitra usaha
rakyat and btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat
branches across the network.

A total of four Board of Commissioners’
meetings were held during the year, a
frequency that allows us to conduct thorough
examination of the performance of BTPN and
its management team. A full account of the
work of the committees: the independent
Audit Committee, the Risk Monitoring
Committee, and the Remuneration And
Nomination Committee, are fully described

in the good corporate governance section of
this annual report.

At the last annual general meeting of
shareholders, we welcomed Mulia Salim as
the new member of the Board of Directors, to
oversee BTPN'’s entire banking operation.

2013 Outlook and
Future Growth

The ongoing global economic
turbulence may slow down
Indonesian export recovery
next year, which would in
turn further widen the trade
deficit resulting in some
currency volatilities going
forward. Given the Bank’s
focus on the mass market
segment with no foreign
currency banking services
however, BTPN is less
directly exposed to possible
volatilities in the market.

Nevertheless, the Board of
Commissioners has worked
closely with management

to ensure that the 2013
business plan and growth
targets reflect the outlook of
the country’s economy and
BTPN'’s long term vision to be
the best mass market bank in
Indonesia.



For financial year of 2012, BTPN
reported a net profit of Rp.2.0 trillion
from Rp. 1.4 trillion in 20711.

Appreciation

The performance we recorded in 2012
would not have been possible without the
support of the entire team of stakeholders.
In this regard, and on behalf of the Board
of Commissioners, | would like to close
this message by expressing my highest
appreciation to the Board of Directors

and all employees for their remarkable
dedication and contribution. Not least, our
appreciation goes to the Bank’s customers
and shareholders for their continued
support. With this level of support and
trust, we are confident that this bank can
continue delivering valuable contributions
to the country.

BTPN Head Office at Cyber 2 Tower,
Jakarta, Indonesia.

Prof. Dorodjatun Kuntjoro-Jakti PhD.
President Commissioner (Independent)

btpn annual report 2012
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president
director’s report

Dear Shareholders,

n 2012, we have continued to focus on
Innovation to expand and improve our range
of banking services across our business and
support units. This is needed to better cater
to the expanding needs of our customers
as well as to better position ourselves in this
increasingly competitive market.

This year we launched our strategic initiative
btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat (TUR) or
Community Banking services. Building on
our successful pilot program last year, the
business was rolled out across Banten,
West-Java and East-Java. Although starting
from a small base, we expect tunas usaha
rakyat to be a key contributor to the Bank’s
performance in the future.

25
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president director’s report

O

NET PROFIT
AFTER TAX
INCREASED
BY

41

reaching
Rp.2 trillion
from

Rp.1.4
trillion

a year ago.

In terms of
Return on
Assets (ROA),
this translates
to 4.7%, and
Return on
Equity (ROE)
32.6%.

Challenges and Business
Performance

The year has been a challenging one with

the Indonesian economy slowing down in

the second half of the year. The deeper world
economic slowdown has dampened growth

in China and India, two important markets for
our exports. As a result, Indonesian commodity
prices dropped, hurting exports and resulting
in a current account deficit, which weakened
the Rupiah to the Rp.9,670 level at year-end.

However, domestic demand and investment,
which impacts our market segment, remained
strong where the external economic
challenges have not been significantly felt.
The challenge, however, is more felt at the
bank industry level. This year more banks are
entering the mass-market segment, which
has resulted in tighter competition for both
business and talent. To address this challenge
we have continued to innovate and improve
our processes and services.

Nevertheless, in spite of the above challenges,
| am pleased to inform you that Bank BTPN
continued to grow its loans above the banking
industry average. In 2012, our loans grew 28%
to Rp.39 trillion, propelling BTPN to become
the 16th largest among Indonesian banks in
terms of assets.

Our btpn purna bakti loans reached Rp.28
trillion, accounting to about 72% of our total
loan portfolio. Our btpn mitra usaha rakyat
loans has grown faster, reaching Rp.9 trillion,
increasing its share to 23% of total loans.
Starting from a low base, our newly launched
btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat has grown
rapidly and now already represents 1% of
total loans.

To fund the above loan growth
we continue to build our
funding base. Customer
deposits grew 27%, the same
level as loans, thus keeping
the bank’s Loan Deposit Ratio
(LDR) at a comfortable 86%
level. In addition, we have
supplemented our deposit
growth with a Rupiah bond
issuance, in the second half
of the year, raising a total

of Rp.1.25 trillion to better
match our long term assets
and liabilities. This brought
the Bank’s Loan to Funding
Ratio to 77%. As a result, our
balance sheet, with a Capital
Adequacy Ratio of 22%, is
well positioned for growth.

We continue to tightly
manage our expenses and
have maintained our Cost

to Income Ratio at 54%, in
spite of the rapid expansion
of our btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat. Our loan quality
has also been maintained
with Non-Performing Loans
(NPL) at 0.6% and our Cost of
Credit at 1.3%. The end result
is a sizeable 41% increase of
the bank’s net profit after tax
to Rp.2 trillion from Rp.1.4
trillion a year ago. In terms of
Return on Assets (before tax)
and Return on Equity (after
tax), this translates to 4.7%

and 32.6%, respectively.



In 2012, our loans grew
28% to Rp.39 trillion,
propelling BTPN to
become the 16th Jargest
among Indonesian bank
in terms of assets.

Innovation in Our Business
and Support Units

BTPN has been a pioneer in the mass market
segment. Our daya programs have touched over

a million beneficiaries. This important initiative,
which is integrated into the Bank’s daily business
activities, underlies our ongoing commitment that
to ‘do well, one needs to ‘do good..

To further strengthen our unique value
proposition in the pensioners market, we have
launched a new brand, btpn purna bakti to better
reflect the pension business. This new concept is
meant to honor the services provided by retired
military and civil servants in serving our country
and to empower them in their retirement age.
We have steadily converted our purna bakti-
designated branches to become Pusat Komunitas
for our customers’ social and meeting activities.
These Pusat Komunitas have been specifically
designed to address the specific needs of our
pensioner customers. We have also improved

our processes to better serve our strategic
partner, State Pension Savings Fund (Taspen),
which has been assigned by the government to
distribute monthly pension salaries to retired civil
servants. This is critical to ensure that Taspen’s
administrative requirements are met as well as
automated to improve efficiency and accuracy.

In our Micro business, we
have started to follow

our micro entrepreneurs,
which have grown into

the lower end of the

Small Medium Enterprise
(SME) segment. We have
also began to expand our
business for small plantation
holdings. Our daya program
here provides practical
business skills to improve
the performance of our
customers.

Practical financial management training
aimed at productive poor housewives of
Cipocok, Serang, West Java is one of btpn
syariah's customers empowerment through
daya program.

27

btpn annual report 2012



28

annual report 2012

BOARD REPORTS

The btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat has gone
through a major roll out
this year, covering 28,927
community centres with
5,416 employees. This
loan program targets the
productive poor, which has
yet to be touched by banks.
The daya program here

in addition to providing
practical business skills
also stresses the four
effective behaviors of
courage, discipline, hard
work and solidarity.

In our btpn sinaya, we
have added more funding-
designated branches in
key cities. We have also
introduced our ‘Sahabat
Sinaya’ (Friends of Sinaya)
initiative, whereby our
funding customers can
participate in our daya
program. This year we
started with our own
internal staff from

the Board of Directors
downward and staff from
the Head Office in Jakarta to the branches.

We continue to find ways to improve and
strengthen our infrastructure in Human
Capital and Information Technology that
better suits our mass market segment. In
Human Capital, we had to put in place a
system that could recruit and train 5,416
staff for the rollout of btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat branches.

There have also been considerable

improvements in our training program to
address some of the talent challenges.

In Information Technology (IT), we have
piloted our mobile banking initiative
using the simplest mobile hand-phone
to do banking transactions. This year we
have started this initiative with our Bank
employees and are planning to launch
this for our customers next year.



The btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat has gone
through a major roll out
this year, covering 28,927
community centres with
5,416 employees.

Board of Directors

(Left page, clockwise)
Mulia Salim
Director

Arief Harris Tandjung
Director

Hadi Wibowo
Director

Ongki Wanadjati Dana
Deputy President Director

Mahdi Syahbuddin
Director

(Right page, clockwise)
Asep Nurdin Alfallah
Director

Anika Faisal
Director

Kharim Indra Gupta Siregar
Director

Djemi Suhenda
Deputy President Director

Jerry Ng
President Director
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president director’s report

ONGOING
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
IMPROVE-
MENTS.
Systems in
place better
monitor

the Bank's
compliance
with tighter
and more
prudent
regulations.

Promoting
transparency,
we have also
revamped

and expanded
information on
BTPN'’s website.

Business Outlook

For 2013, we will continue to
focus on four major areas. The
first area is to grow our existing
business slightly above the
banking industry. Of course, this
growth will not compromise

on our loan quality and that
our asset quality standards

will be maintained. The second
area will be to strengthen our
daya programs. We will ensure
that these initiatives remain
integrated with our business

activities. The third area would be

to explore new business growth
inorganically. All this cannot be
done without the fourth area of
having a proper infrastructure.
Here, we will continue to invest
in our human capital, IT and
network infrastructure, products
and services as well as efficient
processes.

Implementation of
Corporate Governance

Improvements in Corporate
Governance, Risk Management
and Internal Audit are ongoing.
Board of Commissioner oversight
remains active through our
periodic Board and Committee
meetings. We have also put
systems in place to better
monitor the Bank’s compliance

A customer is being served by
btpn sinaya's customer officer with
enthusiasm and high dedication.

with tighter and more prudent
regulations issued this year.

In Risk Management we have put

in place policies, processes and
monitoring systems to manage the
tunas usaha rakyat business. In the
area of Internal Audit, we have hired
a new and experienced Internal Audit
Head to ensure that our policies are
adhered to and reporting lines have
been set to maintain independency. On
transparency, we have revamped and
improved Bank BTPN’s website and
expanded information on the website



so the public would have better access to Last is a note of deep appreciation to
information on our business and social our employees who continue to show
activities. their enthusiasm and dedication to our

objective of making a difference in the

| would like to take this opportunity to lives of millions.

welcome Mulia Salim as a member of

our Board of Directors. | realize that our

achievements wouldn’t have occurred

if not for the support of our broad array

of stakeholders, of which | am most

grateful. | would also like to thank our

business partners for their cooperation and

confidence and our loyal customers who Jerry Ng

continue to place their trust in our Bank. President Director

31
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34 COMPANY PROFILE

We believe that Indonesians
from all walks of life desire a
ife of significance. We can
help them achive this through
our business if we enable and
support them through access,
iInformation and education.



Company Profile

Vision, Mission and Values

BTPN in Brief

Organizational Structure

Human Capital

Information Technology

Board of Commissioners’ Profile
Board of Commissioners Committees’ Profile
Sharia Supervisory Board’s Profile
Board of Directors’ Profile
Awards and Certifications

2012 Significant Events
Shareholders’ Composition

Share and Bond Registration

Information for Shareholders

37
38
40
42
43
44
47
49
50
54
55
56
58

59

35

btpn annual report 2012




Improving the
Significance
of every
Indonesian



Vision

To be the best mass market™ bank,

making a difference in the lives of millions.

Mission

Together with our stakeholders, we create
opportunities for growth and greater significance.

The crafting of BTPN’s Vision, Mission and
Values began in 2009. The goal was to build a
sustainable business which contributes to the
well-being of fellow Indonesians and thereby
to the development of the nation.

Through a series of workshops facilitated by
Directors and Senior Management, the Vision,
Mission and Values was tabled for discussion
amongst more than its 3,000 employees.
Although the final statement was confirmed
in January 2010, over a year later the bank
believes that the journey in establishing its
Vision, Mission and Values is the “destination”.

*Mass market refers to low fixed income earners and micro-
small business market segment

Sustainable Superior
Performance

Values

Our Values drive how we
conduct our business and
indeed shape our brand
personality.

e Trustworthy

e (Caring

e Synergy

e Passion for Excellence

37
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btpn in brief

btpn
In brief

BTPN is
Indonesia’s leading
Rupiah-based
mass-market bank.

¢ 55 years old bank

¢ Aspires to be the best mass market bank

¢ Major transformation after 2008
with sharp growth in loans, branches,
employees, customers, funding and
capital

e Empowers customer and community
through its daya program, which is
integrated in its daily business activity.

2008

TPG Nusantara S.a.r.l.,

a subsidiary of US global
private equity, TPG Capital,
acquired a majority stake
(71.6%) in BTPN through

a public listing in the
Indonesia Stock Exchange.
At that time, BTPN was a
Rp.13.7 trillion bank

in assets.

The Bank is based in Jakarta
and has branches spread
throughout the country’s

33 provinces. The Bank
provides an array of banking
services that is divided

into four businesses. The
first is the btpn purna bakti
focusing on pensioners and
pre-pensioners. The second
is btpn mitra usaha rakyat
focusing on micro-small
entrepreneurs. The third is
btpn syariah - tunas usaha
rakyat focusing on the
productive poor segment.
Last is btpn sinaya focusing
on gathering deposits from
the mid-to upper income
individuals and institutions.

The Bank operates a network
of 1,140 outlets consisting

2009

BTPN launched its micro -
small Business Mitra Usaha
Rakyat by rolling out

539 branches and growing the
unit’s loans to Rp.2.3 trillion.
The Bank issued its first
Rupiah long term bond, which
carried an A+ national scale
rating from Fitch Ratings, and
received a long-term Rupiah
facility from International
Finance Corporation,

a subsidiary of The World Bank.

of 433 btpn purna bakti
branches and 34 payment
points, 603 btpn mitra usaha
rakyat branches, 5 btpn syariah
- tunas usaha rakyat and 29
office channeling,and 36 btpn
sinaya branches supported

by 40 funding centers as well
as 28,927 community centres
across Indonesia.

BTPN approach

To make a difference and
improve the significance

of every Indonesian, the
Bank needed to rethink the
way it does its Corporate
Social Responsibility. The
end result is a mass-market
enabling platform that
provides additional support
to our customers beyond



2010

BTPN increased its assets to
Rp.34.5 trillion, compared to
Rp.13.7 trillion two years ago.
The Bank ranked 10th among
Indonesian banks according to
market capitalization, ranked
5th in branch network and
ranked 6th in the number of
employees. The Bank’s asset
growth was funded in part by
two long-term bonds issues
totaling Rp.2.4 trillion and

a Rp.1.3 trillion rights issue
completed in December.

financing. This was done in
the form of access to markets,
information and training from
health to practical business
activities. All these activities
are supervised under the
Bank’s daya program.

While most companies aspire
to make a difference through
CSR programs separate

from their business, BTPN
integrates its social program
within its business. So much
so that our tagline, “hidup
yang lebih berarti” which
means “to give our customers
a more meaningful life” is not
just our social responsibility
- but integrated in our daily
business activity down to the
branch level.

2011

The Bank launched its daya program
as an integral part of its business
and successfully piloted its Sharia’s
Community Banking Business (btpn
syariah - tunas usaha rakyat). The
Funding Business launched its
Sinaya brand program, which links
up with the Bank’s daya initiative.
The Bank expanded its ATM network
with ATM Prima network, in addition
to its existing ATM Bersama
network. This brings its ATM linked
network to more than 57,331 ATMs

throughout the country.

2012

btpn syariah - tunas usaha
rakyat, grew significantly
with 28,927 communnity
centres in Banten, West

and East Java by the end of
the year, empowering over
444,000 customers in the
grass-root community. BTPN

completed the piloting of its

new mobile phone banking
called btpn WOW/, to be
rolled out in 2013.

Name PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk
Business Banking Services
Ownership TPG Nusantara S.a.r.l. (57.9%)

Public (42.1%)

Date of Establishment

1958

Legal Basis of Establishment

PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk (the “Bank”)
was established by notarial deed No. 21 dated 6 October
1959 of Notary Noezar, S.H. The deed was amended

by notarial deed No. 203 dated 31 May 1960 and deed
No. 53 dated 7 November 1960 of Notary Noezar, S.H.
Articles of Association was published in Supplement
No.5 to State Gazette No. 13 dated 14 February 1961.

Authorized Capital

Rp.150,000,000,000

Issued and Paid Up Capital

Rp.116,805,745,140

Stock Exchange

Indonesian Stock Exchange

Share Code BTPN
ISIN Code 101000118508
Head Office Menara Cyber-2, 24-25th floor,Jl. H.R. Rasuna Said Block

X-5no.13,Jakarta Selatan 12950

Website & Email

www.btpn.com
corporate.communication@btpn.com
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President Director
Jerry Ng

Deputy President Director
Ongki W. Dana & Djemi Suhenda

Operation
Director
Mulia Salim

Human Capital
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Mahdi Syahbuddin
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Corporate Secretary
Anika Faisal
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human capital

human capital

We believe that
developing
leaders is a

process of “to
know, to do and
to be”. Effective
working system
will engage
people into

a series of
experience to
bring them into
a higher maturity
continuum. By
doing so, people
will be a real
leader.

Managing Human Capital is a shared

responsibility of all management. In line

with the “Do Good Do Well” spirit, BTPN

addresses the Bank’s Human Capital in a

holistic manner by focusing on the four

dimensions of needs of its people:

e Physical - by compensating fairly
based on meritocracy;

¢ Mental - by challenging the mind
creatively so as to unleash the full
potential of the people;

e Emotional - by treating the Bank’s
employees with care and respect,
thus promoting a conducive working
environment;

e Spiritual - by providing the
opportunities to all employees to
partake in achieving the bank’s
mission to make a difference.

In enabling the employees to grow in the
above four dimensions, Human Capital

is organized into an architecture which
primarily consists of three elements.

e The first element is called Human
Capital Engines, which is aimed at
providing service excellence to the
employees. This includes recruitment,
training,and HC operations.

¢ The second element is called
Organization Effectiveness, in which
Human Capital plays the role as the
strategic partner in driving business
performance. A Human Capital Head is
assigned in every business and support
function to deliver this mandate.

¢ The third element is Center of
Expertise, whose main responsibility
is to design the HC products which
are tailored to meet the specific
challenges of the business, and at the
same time, reflects the state-of-the-art

of the leading Human Capital practices
in the world. This includes rewards,
performance management, leadership
and talent management, industrial
relations,and HC Communication.

During the past four years, Human

Capital has been able to cope with the
challenges of the rapid business growth by
consistently strengthening the above three
elements of the architecture. It started
with HC Engines, which have completed

a lot of process improvement initiatives

in the areas of recruitment, training and
HC Operations. All those initiatives have
enabled the high growth of the business,
through massive recruitment, massive
training, and high-volume HC transactions.

Human Capital has invested high quality
of resources being assigned as Human
Capital Heads who have been successfully
partnering with the business in managing
people performance, building bench
strengths and facilitating employee
engagement. Center of Expertise has
increasingly sharpened its ability to
translate business challenges into
competitive HC products. All those three
elements are inter-related one another. The
efficiency of HC Engines, supported with
the sharp focus of HC products by Center
of Expertise, delivered by HC Heads in
each business and support functions - all
those will eventually lead organization
effectiveness across the Bank.

Going forward, Human Capital will be
focusing its effort in the following areas:

¢ Continuously improve organization
effectiveness by assisting business/
functional units in building working
system for the first and second line
of leaders. Developing leaders is the



process of to know, to do, and to be.To be
a leader, a person must, first, be trained on
knowledge of leadership. Then, the next
phase is the process of to do - by going
through a series of experience to bring the
leaders into a higher maturity continuum.
An intervention to this process is done
through effective working system in which

COMPANY PROFILE
information technology

a leader will be involved on daily basis.
Having gone through those steps, only
then can people be real leaders.

Continuously strengthen Center of
Expertise such as improving talent
management process, refining
compensation strategy, and implementing
mitigation to anticipate people risk.

iInformation technology

Information technology (IT) continues to play
an important role in BTPN’s business and
support units. With the ability to process large
amounts of transactions and integrate business
operation from branches across the nation, IT
is an important enabler to support the Bank’s
growing business.

In 2012, this unit was responsible for operating
an online system linking 433 btpn purna bakti,
603 btpn mitra usaha rakyat, 36 btpn sinaya
and 5 btpn syariah branches.

Going forward, IT will be focusing its efforts on
four major objectives.

» Reaching the unreachable: This is to
ensure our customers, who often are
in remote areas can have access to our
Bank’s services, whether it is through our
branches and outlets or in the near future
through their simple mobile phones.

e Increasing volume (customers, transactions,
partners, employees and communications):
This is to ensure the Bank can process
and deliver our wide range of products to
a wide variety of customer segments at a
high volume that can be easily scaled up
as the Bank increases its customer base.

Continuous and low-cost multi-channel
delivery: This is to ensure that our
distribution channels used, whether it

is through our different branches, sales
force, community centres, EDCs and ATMs,
are managed in a cost effective way and
operates seamlessly without interruption.

Efficient operations with adequate controls
and risk management: Underlying all the
above objectives is the need to ensure
adequate controls, risk monitoring systems
and adequate risk mitigating measures are
taken to ensure the integrity of the Bank’s
IT system and processes.

Realizing the importance of our people and
capabilities we have strengthened the IT
organization as follows:

Expand organization with additional
division responsible for ‘Business Alliance
Retail Banking & e-Channel.

Revamp application development
capabilities by aligning structure with
associated major programs.

Introduce officer development program
and internship.
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board of
commissioners’ profile

PROF. DORODJATUN KUNTJORO-JAKTI PhD.
President Commissioner (Independent)

Indonesian citizen, age 73. Prof. Dorodjatun Kuntjoro-Jakti PhD. has
been appointed as President Commissioner as well as Independent
Commissioner of BTPN pursuant to the resolutions EGMS on 16
March 2006 and obtained approval from Bank Indonesia on 15
May 2006. He is currently the Chairman of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee of the Bank. Prior to joining BTPN, he

held many senior government and academic positions, including
Coordinating Minister for Economic Affairs of Indonesia from 2001
to 2004, Indonesian Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary
for the United States from 1998 to 2001 as well as Professor and
Dean of the Faculty of Economics at the University of Indonesia.
He has been active in addressing the country’s many economic
challenges, including alleviating poverty and helping the urban
poor. He is also currently President Commissioner (Independent)

of PT. Garuda Food Beverage Jaya.

Through his academic and research activities as well as through
BTPN's various programs he has contributed back to society. He has
visited over 250 BTPN branches across the country and continues
to engage and inspire the Bank’s staff and employees.

He obtained his Bachelor of Economics from University of
Indonesia in 1964, a Master of Arts in Financial Administration
and a Doctorate in Political Economy from University of California,
Berkeley. He was also conferred an Honorary Doctorate (Honoris
Causa) in Management by Universiti Teknologi Malaysia.



HARRY HARTONO
Independent Commissioner

Indonesian citizen,age 70. Harry
Hartono has been appointed
Independent Commissioner of
BTPN pursuant to the resolutions
EGMS on 8 September 2004 and
obtained approval from Bank
Indonesia on 14 December 2004.
He is currently the Chairman of
the Risk Monitoring Committee
of the Bank. Prior to this, he

was a member of the Legal Aid
Assistance Team at Indonesian
Bank Restructuring Agency
(IBRA, 2002-2004), Attorney
General Expert Staff in Banking
Law (2002), and Deputy Chief
Prosecutor of the High District
Attorney Office at Southeast
Sulawesi province (2000). His vast
experience in law enforcement
has been built over a span of more
than three decades.

He holds a law degree from
Universitas Brawijaya, Malang,
East Java (1970).

IRWAN MAHJUDIN HABSJAH
Independent Commissioner

Indonesian citizen, age 65.

Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah has
been appointed Independent
Commissioner of BTPN pursuant
to the resolutions EGMS on 28
April 2008 and obtained approval
from Bank Indonesia on 1 May
2009. He is currently Chairman

of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration

and Nomination Committee of
the Bank. He is also President
Commissioner of PT Sari Melati
Kencana (Pizza Hut). Previously, he

was Managing Director and Country

Head - Wholesale Banking of ING
Bank, Jakarta (2000-2009), as well
as Managing Director and Country
Head of Bankers Trust Company
(1996-1999). Prior to that, he held
the position as Deputy President
Director - Corporate Banking of
PT ING Indonesia Bank in Jakarta
(1991-1996). He has over 33
years of professional experience,
which he gained from various
senior positions at BSB Bank,
American Express Bank, Citibank,
and Indonesia Overseas Bank. He
graduated with a Masters degree
in Monetary and International
Economics from the University of
Amsterdam (1978),and a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics from Erasmus
University Rotterdam (1974) in the
Netherlands.

RANVIR DEWAN
Commissioner

Singapore citizen, age 59. Ranvir
Dewan has been appointed as
Commissioner of BTPN pursuant
to the resolutions EGMS on 28
April 2008 and obtained approval
from Bank Indonesia on 10
December 2008. He is a member
of the Audit and Risk Monitoring
Committees of the Bank. He is
currently the Head of Financial
Institutions Group Operations at
TPG Capital, a private equity firm.
From April 2000 to July 2006 he
was Executive Vice- President and
Chief Financial Officer of Standard
Chartered First Bank (formerly
Korea First Bank) in Seoul, Korea.
Prior to that, He spent 13 years
with Citibank and held various
senior positions in its international
businesses. He has also held senior
positions with KPMG in Canada
and England where he specialized
in audits of financial institutions.
He is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England
& Wales (FCA) and a member of
the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (CA). He holds a
Bachelor of Commerce (Honours)
degree from Delhi University,
India. He serves on the Board of
Shiram Transport Finance Company
Limited in Mumbai and Shiram
City Union Finance in Chennai,
India and Thai Credit Retail Bank in
Bangkok, Thailand.
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ASHISH JAIPRAKASH
SHASTRY
Commissioner

Singapore citizen, age 37. Ashish
Jaiprakash Shastry has been
appointed Commissioner of

BTPN pursuant to the resolutions

EGMS on 28 April 2008 and
obtained approval from Bank
Indonesia on 10 December
2008. He is a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination
Committee of the Bank. He
holds multiple concurrent roles
and is a Senior Adviser at TPG
Capital, while also a Managing
Partner of Northstar Advisors
Pte Ltd in Singapore. He started
his career as an investment
banker at Lehman Brothers in
New York before joining TPG
Capital in 1998.In TPG he
filled various roles, including
Managing Director and Head
of TPG Capital’s business in
Southeast Asia. He was an
Honours graduate from Princeton
University and completed his
Bachelor’s of Arts in Economics
in 1996.

SUNATA TJITEROSAMPURNO
Commissioner

Indonesian citizen, age 40.

Sunata Tjiterosampurno has been
appointed Commissioner of BTPN
pursuant to the resolutions EGMS on
28 April 2008 and obtained approval
from Bank Indonesia on 10 December
2008. He is a member of the Audit, Risk
Monitoring as well as Remuneration
and Nomination Committees of the
Bank. He also serves as Managing
Director of Northstar Advisor Pte. Ltd,
a position he has held since 2006.
His broad experience is grounded in
his years serving as Assistant Vice-
President in the Investment Banking
division of PT Danareksa Sekuritas
from 2004 to 2006, and as Consultant
at Boston Consulting Group, where

he was involved in capital markets,
business strategies and restructuring
across different industries from 1998
to 2004. He started his career as
Assistant Vice-President for Equity
Research of PT. Lippo Securities — SBC
Warburg (1995-1998). Besides BTPN,
he also serves as a Commissioner of
PT. Delta Dunia Makmur Tbk. PT. Bukit
Makmur Mandiri Utama and Tugu
Insurance Company Ltd. He holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration
from the University of Wisconsin,
USA, earned in 1995; as well as a
Master degree in Finance from London
Business School, UK, in 2002.
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board of commissioners
committees’ profile

AUDIT COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION
AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

RISK MONITORING
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah (Independent Commissioner)

Members

Kanaka Puradiredja (Independent Party)
Stephen Z. Satyahadi (Independent Party)
Sunata Tjiterosampurno (Commissioner)
Ranvir Dewan (Commissioner)

Chairman
Prof. Dorodjatun Kuntjoro-Jakti PhD.
(President Commissioner - Independent)

Members

Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah (Independent Commissioner)
Sunata Tjiterosampurno (Commissioner)

Ashish Jaiprakash Shastry (Commissioner)

Dewi Nuzulianti (Executive Officer)

Chairman
Harry Hartono (Independent Commissioner)

Members

Stephen Z. Satyahadi (Independent Party)
Kanaka Puradiredja (Independent Party)
Ranvir Dewan (Commissioner)

Sunata Tjiterosampurno (Commissioner)
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KANAKA PURADIREDJA

Independent Party - Member
of The Audit and Risk
Monitoring Committee

Indonesian citizen, age 68.
Serving as a member of the
Audit Committee since 2006 and
appointed as a member of Risk
Monitoring Committee since 21
September 2011. Graduate of the
Faculty of Economics majoring

in Accounting, Universitas
Padjadjaran, Bandung in 1971.
Currently serving as Honorary
Chairman of the Board of
Indonesian Institute of Audit
Committee, Head of the Honorary
Board of Professional Risk
Management Association and
Vice Chairman of the Indonesian
Institute of Commissioners

and Directors. Once served as
Managing Partner and Chairman
of KPMG Indonesia (1978-1999),
Founder and Senior Partner

of KAP Kanaka Puradiredja
Suhartono (2000-2007). Once
served as Chairman of the
Honorary Board of IAl (2002 -
2010) and Chairman of the Board
Audit Committee Association
Indonesia (2004-2010).

STEPHEN Z. SATYAHADI
Independent Party - Member
of The Audit and Risk
Monitoring Committee

Indonesian citizen, age 69. Serving
as a member of Risk Monitoring
Committee BTPN since July 2009
and appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee since 21
September 2011. Received his
Bachelors Degree in Accounting
from Universitas Indonesia in
1967.Serving as Independent
Commissioner (2003, 2011-Now)
and Head of Audit Committee
(2003-2007,2011-Now) of PT
United Tractors Tbk, President
Director of PT BPK Gunung Mulia
(2004-Now), President Director of
PT Promitra Finance (2007-Now).
Became Independent Commissioner
and Head of Audit Committee of
PT Astra Agro Lestari Tbk (2007-
2011). Once served as President
Director of Bank Universal (1989-
2002), President Director of Bank
Perkembangan Asia (1986-1988),
Finance General Manager &
Corporate Treasurer PT. Astra
International (1980-1985), Vice
President Director of PT Astra
Sedaya Finance (1983), Assistant
Vice President Citibank N.A Jakarta
(1970-1980). Started his career in
Bank of Tokyo Jakarta in 1968.

DEWI NUZULIANTI

Executive Officer - Member of
Remuneration and Nomination
Committee

Indonesian citizen, age 42. Serving
as a member of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee since
February 2010. Graduate of Fakultas
Teknik in Teknik Industri from the
Institut Teknologi Bandung in

1994. Served as Corporate Human
Capital Head since early 2010.

She started her career in PT Bank
Universal Tbk (1995-2002) with the
specialization in Remuneration and
the position last held was as the
Head of Rewards & Performance
Management Department. Then she
continued her career in PT Bank
Permata Tbk in various positions,
the last one being Head of Human
Resources Operations & Information
System (2002-2009).
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Sharia supervisory board’s profile

sharia supervisory
board’s profile

DRS. H. AMIDHAN
Chairman Sharia Supervisory Board

Indonesian citizen, age 74. Holds position as Chairman of Sharia Supervisory
Board of BTPN since January 2008 and Sharia Supervisory Board of PT Asuransi
Tokio Marine Insurance (previously MAA) since 2006 and PT Asuransi ADIRA
(2007-Now). Obtained National Religious Teacher Training in Banjarmasin (1952-
1956),and National Islamic Judge Training in Yogyakarta (1956-1959). Bachelor
degree from Sharia Faculty of IAIN Yogyakarta (1967), Law Faculty at Ull in 1968.
Followed “Management and Strategic Planning” at University of Massachussets,
USA (1990) and Regular Training Lemhanas, XXII class in Jakarta (1989) and
Manggala BP7 (Bogor Palace) (1995). Began his career at Religious High Court in
Banjarmasin, then transferred to Ministry of Religious Affairs (1972) till Secretary
to Director General of Islamic and Haj Affairs (1998- 2001), Director General of
Islamic and Haj Affairs (1991-1996) and Advisor to Minister of Religious Affairs on
Inter-faith issues (1996-1999). Chairman of MUI (2005-2015), Member of National
Committee for Human Rights (2002-2007) and has been member of MPR-RI
(1999-2004) and member Working Board MPR-RI (2000-2004).

KH. AHMAD CHOLIL RIDWAN
Member of Sharia Supervisory Board

Indonesian citizen, age 65. Holds position as member of Sharia Supervisory

Board of BTPN since June 2010. A member of the MP3A of the Religion Ministry
(2005-present). Obtained Bachelors degree from University Islam Madinah,

Saudi Arabia (1975). Chairman MUI, Chairman of Da’'wah Islamiyah Indonesia
Board, Vice Chairman of Indonesian Pesantren Working Group, Vice Chairman

of Indonesia Islamic Student Association (KBPII), Chairman Syabakah Indonesia
Islamic Consumer Products (SKPPMI) and Head of Pesantren Husnayain in Jakarta.
Taught Arabic language and Islamic Religion at Pesantren Assyafiliyyah (1976-
1985). Worked at Attache Indonesian Embassy in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia (1976).
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board of
directors’ profile

JERRY NG
President Director

Indonesian citizen, age 47.Jerry Ng was appointed President
Director of BTPN pursuant to the resolutions EGMS on

9 July 2008 and obtained approval from Bank Indonesia

on 29 September 2008. He leads an experienced senior
management team committed to transform BTPN into the
best mass market bank in Indonesia. Prior to this, he was
Head of Indonesia and Senior Advisor for South-East Asia
at TPG Capital, a private equity firm. He has more than

25 years experience in the financial services industry. He
began his banking career at Citibank and further moved

to senior positions in various leading banks in Indonesia;
including Deputy President Director at Bank Central Asia,
Deputy President Director at Bank Danamon, and President
Director at Federal International Finance. During the 1998
Asian financial crisis, he was appointed Deputy Chairman of
the Indonesian Bank Restructuring Agency (IBRA), as well as
Advisor to the Chairman of BPPN for restoring the banking
industry back to normalcy.

He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from the University of Washington in Seattle, USA and has
attended senior management programmes, including those
at Stanford Business School and Harvard Business School.
He is a fellow of the Eisenhower Fellowships.



ONGKI WANADJATI DANA
Deputy President Director

Indonesian citizen,age 55. Ongki
Wanadjati Dana has been Deputy
President Director pursuant to

the resolutions EGMS on 28 April
2008 and obtained approval from
Bank Indonesia on 29 September
2008. He heads the Bank’s retail
banking business since he joined
back in 2008. He brings to BTPN
extensive experience in the
financial services sector. For over
18 years, he served as Wholesale
Banking Director of Bank Permata,
as Vice President Director of PT
Bank Universal Tbk, and President
Director of Bank Subentra. He
started his banking career at
Citibank N.A.in 1982 and rising to
Vice President - Consumer Credit
Cycle Manager in 1990. He holds
a Bachelor degree of Mechanical
Engineering from Institut Teknologi
Bandung from where he graduated
in 1981. He has attended various
executive education programs,
including at Sald Business School,
Oxford University, UK and Harvard
Business School, USA.

DJEMI SUHENDA
Deputy President Director

Indonesian citizen, age 46. Djemi
Suhenda has been Deputy President
Director of BTPN pursuant to the
resolutions EGMS on 29 October
2009 and obtained approval from
Bank Indonesia on 7 August 2009.
He has been instrumental in
building new businesses for the
Bank,among others: Micro Banking
Business, Productive Poor Business.
Prior to this, he was Executive Vice
President/Mass Market Business
Head at Bank Danamon and
Director at Bank Universal. He
started his banking career with
Citibank Indonesia and later at
Citibank Singapore. He holds a
Bachelor of Economics degree from
Universitas Trisakti,Jakarta, in 1989.
He has attended various executive
training programs, including the
Executive Program on Strategy

and Organization at the Stanford
Business School, USA.

ANIKA FAISAL

Compliance Director

& Corporate Secretary
Indonesian citizen, age 45. Anika
Faisal has been Compliance Director
and Corporate Secretary pursuant to the
resolutions EGMS on 28 April 2008 and
obtained approval from Bank Indonesia
on 29 September 2008. Prior to this,
she was Compliance Director at Bank
Danamon Indonesia for six years. She has
more than 20 years experience in the
financial services industry. She initially

established her credentials in Bank Niaga,

where she rose to become the Legal
Division Head for Corporate Banking.
She then moved to Bahar, Tumbelaka
and partner,a law firm where she rose
to become a partner in 1999.The same
year, she moved to the Indonesian Bank
Restructuring Agency, where she served
as Subject Matter Expert to the Head
and Deputy Head of the Agency. She

is appointed as General Secretary to
Compliance Director Communication
Forum (Forum Komunikasi Direktur
Kepatuhan) since 2003 and she is also
appointed as General Secretary in
Indonesia Banking Association (Asosiasi
Perbanas) since 2012. She holds a
Bachelor Degree in Law from Universitas
Indonesia in 1990. She has attended
various executive training programs,
including Authentic Leadership Program
at Harvard Business School, USA. She also
has contributed to her almamater as the
Head of Yayasan Dana Bakti Pendidikan
Ul since 2007.
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MAHDI SYAHBUDDIN
Human Capital Director

Indonesian citizen, age 51.
Mahdi Syahbuddin has been
Director of Human Capital for
BTPN pursuant to the resolutions
EGMS on 28 April 2008 and
obtained approval from Bank

Indonesia on 29 September 2008.

He drives the strategic initiative
to engage and align employees
behind the bank’s goal and by
so doing improve the livelihood
of the community it serves. He
has served as a Director of Bank
Permata, and also held various
positions at Bank Universal,
including that of Vice President
Director, before taking the
position of Chairman of the
Management Team prior to the

bank’s merger with Bank Permata.

In 1989, he began his banking
career with Citibank N.A. rising
to Manager of the Asset Product
Services Department. Prior to
working in the banking industry,
he was an Engineer at Atlantic
Richfield and IPTN. He graduated
from Institut Teknologi Bandung
in 1987, majoring in Aeronautical
Engineering.

KHARIM INDRA GUPTA
SIREGAR
Information Technology Director

Indonesian citizen, age 48.
Kharim Siregar was appointed
Director of Information
Technology at BTPN pursuant

to the resolutions EGMS on

28 April 2008 and obtained
approval from Bank Indonesia
on 29 September 2008. He leads
a team responsible for enabling
the business units by delivering
IT solutions. His unit is also in
charge of maintaining the Bank’s
IT infrastructure to meet new
process requirements, support
timely decision-making and
enable collaboration across the
company. Prior to BTPN, he was
Executive Vice-President/ Head
of Business Support Division for
Danamon Simpan Pinjam; Vice-
President of Electronic Channels,
Customer Loyalty and Business
Alliances in Retail Banking at
Bank Mega; and Vice-President
and IT Group Head at Bank
Universal. He started his career
as a marketing representative for
IBM Indonesia. He graduated with
a Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Institut
Teknologi Bandung in 1990.

ARIEF HARRIS TANDJUNG
Finance Director

Indonesian citizen, age 44.
Arief Harris Tandjung was
appointed Finance Director
of BTPN pursuant to the
resolutions AGMS on 8 April
2008 and obtained approval
from Bank Indonesia on since
7 April 2010. Prior to that,

he was the Bank’s Executive
Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer for two years. Before
joining BTPN, he served as
Executive Vice President

and Head of SME Banking
Business for Bank Danamon,
Senior Manager and Head of
Consumer Banking Business
Finance for Standard Chartered
Bank, and Vice President

for Corporate Performance
Management at Bank Permata.
He holds a Bachelor Degree
in Electrical Engineering

from Universitas Indonesia
(Ul),and has attended a
number of education and
training programs, such as
the General Management
Executive Program conducted
by the National University of
Singapore in 1999,and the
Leadership Program conducted
by Temasek Learning Center,
Singapore, in 2006.



HADI WIBOWO
Mitra Usaha Rakyat Director

Indonesian citizen, age 45.

Hadi Wibowo has been Director
for Mitra Usaha Rakyat pursuant
to the resolutions AGMS on 8
April 2008 and obtained approval
from Bank Indonesia on 14
April 2010. Previously, he was
Head of Distribution and Sales
Force Development at Bank
Danamon. His experience in the
banking industry began in 1993
when he joined Bank Universal/
Permata, and rose to become
Head of Product Development
and Cash Management, Personal
Banking. He earned a Bachelor
of Civil Engineering from
Institut Teknologi Bandung in
1991. He attended the General
Management Program at
National University of Singapore
in 2001 and the Danamon
Leadership Academy at Insead
Singapore in 2007.

ASEP NURDIN ALFALLAH
Pension Business Director

Indonesian citizen, age 48.

Asep Nurdin Alfallah has served
as Pension Business Director
pursuant to the resolutions EGMS
on 25 February 2011 and obtained
approval from Bank Indonesia

on 29 November 2010. He has
been with the bank for over two
decades. For 20 years, he has
grown with the bank by serving in
various senior positions, including
several years as Division Head,
Senior Regional Head of West
Java, East Java & East Indonesia,
Jakarta and Sales and Distribution
Head of Pension Business. He
holds a Bachelor of Banking and
Finance degree from the National
University of San Diego, California,
USA; and a Masters degree in
Banking and Finance from the
University of Technology, Sydney,
Australia. He also studied in
Studienkollege, Mainz-Frankfurt,
Germany; and has attended a
number of education and training
programs conducted by the
Michigan Ross School of Business
in Hong Kong.

MULIA SALIM
Operations Director

Indonesian citizen, age 41.

Mulia Salim has been Director
for Operations pursuant to the
resolutions AGMS on 4 April 2012
and obtained approval from Bank
Indonesia on 18 January 2012.
Previously, he was Executive Vice
President — Operations, Head at
BTPN since 2008. Prior to joining
BTPN, he served as Executive
Vice President — Finance,
Operations & Collections Head,
Cards Business and as Project
Leader of acquisition and
integration of American Express
business in Bank Danamon.

He has also served in various
senior positions at Citibank, N.A.,
including Country Procurement
Head, Cards Operations Head,
Transactions Services Head and
the last position as Vice President
- Quality & Customer Service
Director. He earned a Bachelor

of Electrical Engineering from
Universitas Indonesia in 1993. He
attended the Citibank Asia Pacific
Leadership Forum in Shanghai,
Danamon Leadership Academy at
Insead Singapore and Berkeley-
Nanyang Advanced Management
Program in Singapore.
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awards and
certifications

for categorize Commercial Bank with Assets Rp.25 trillion - 100 trillion.
Investor Magazine

The Best Bank 2012 }

Special Award “Rising Star”
Investor Magazine

Platinum Trophy 2012
of Financial Performance “Excellence” for 10 years in a row (2002 - 2011). }
Infobank Magazine

Bank yang Berpredikat “Sangat Bagus”
of 2011 Financial Performance. Infobank Magazine

i 1o AN AR

Best Performance Banking 2012 }
categorized Private National Bank with Assets between Rp.5 - 50 trillion
in Indonesia Banking Award. Perbanas Institute

“The Top 50 Companies for 2012” in Best of the Best Award 2012. }
Forbes Indonesia Magazine

The Best Bank 2012 in “ Financial Aspect” categorize Commercial
Bank with Assets Rp.25 - 100 trillion in Anugrah Perbankan Indonesia
2012. Perbanas Institute

The Best CEO Bank 2012 categorize Commercial Bank with }
Assets Rp.25 - 100 trillion in Anugrah Perbankan Indonesia 2012.
Perbanas Institute

Top National Banker in Tokoh Finansial Indonesia event 2012.
Investor Magazine
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Tuesday, 15 May 2012 Tuesday, 16 October 2012

N
LAUNCHING OF SAHABAT DAYA IFC GRANTS STAND-BY LOAN FACILITY é
VOLUNTEER PROGRAM IFC granted BTPN a loan of US$100 million to 5
The Volunteer Program for the employee and the provide financial services for the lower income &
customer named “Sahabat daya” officially launched segment and small medium enterprises. g
for BTPN employees. Through Sahabat daya, S
today BTPN employees have a chance to directly §

Ko

participate in empowering mass market customers.

T

\1

Throughout 2012

Wednesday, 30 May 2012 OPENING OF SINAYA BRANCHES

PURNA BAKTI LAUNCHING In 2012,'18 btp.n‘sinaya branches d‘an Ol,'ltl'etS were
opened in 12 cities across Indonesia. This includes
9 new branches in: Manyar, Surabaya (3 Feb);

Buah Batu, Bandung (1 Mar); Taman Palem, Jakarta
(12 Apr); Pasar Atum, Surabaya (19 Apr); Roxy Mas,
Jakarta (25 Apr); Denpasar, Bali (3 May); Gatot
Subroto, Medan (31 May); Tanah Abang, Jakarta

(26 Sep) and IDX Building,Jakarta (3 Okt).

BTPN launched btpn purna bakti at Balai Kartini, in
Jakarta. btpn purna bakti is the new brand for BTPN
pension business, which has been the core business
of the Bank since 1958. Now btpn purna bakti has
been specifically developed and designed to meet
the needs of its customers in their pension age or
soon to be.
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shareholders’ composition

TPG is a leading global
private investment firm,
founded in 1992 with

USD 48 billion of assets
under management. TPG’s
investments span

a variety of industries,
including financial services.

. Public - TPG Nusantara S.a.r.l.

STRUKTUR KELOMPOK USAHA

GP Newbridge Asia GP
r-- * Newbridge Asia IV, L.P. ’: © | GemParlLP ¢

A
‘ TPG Nusantara Cayman Co.

|

!

|

1

: Co Investors:
1= GIC

I Noonday
|

!

|

|

TPG Nusantara Cayman

Ly LP LP LP
Co-Invest L.P.

l ;} TPG Nusantara Cayman, L.P. F —————————————————————————

LP
100% shareholder

|
l
|
'GP
|
|
|
|

TPG Nusantara (Hongkong) Limited ‘

100% shareholder
v

59,68% shareholder

. Pengendali Bank

Pemegang Saham Pengendali



O

14 March
2008 - TPG
Nusantara
S.a.r.l,an
affiliate of

TPG, acquired

71.61% of

BTPN’s shares.

After the BTPN
rights issue in
December 2010,
TPG Nusantara
S.a.r.l's ownership
in the bank
became 59.7%.
With IFC’s debt to
equity conversion,
TPG’s portion
declined further
to 57.9%

About TPG

TPG Capital entered Asia in 1994 through its
affiliate Newbridge Capital, and was one of
the first global private equity firms dedicated
to the Asia region. It has invested in financial
sector companies, such as Korea First Bank,
South Korea; Shenzhen Development Bank,
China; Shriram Transport and Shriram City
Union Finance, India; Taishin Financial
Holding Company, Taiwan; Bank Thai, Thailand;
and CIMB, Malaysia. TPG seeks to invest

in world-class franchises across a range

of industries, including financial services
(Ariel Reinsurance, BTPN, Fidelity National
Information Services, LPL Financial Services,
Shenzhen Development Bank, Shriram
Transport), travel and entertainment (America
West, Harrah'’s, Hotwire, Sabre), technology
(Freescale, Lenovo, MEMC, ON Semiconductor,
Seagate, SunGard, UTAC), industrials (British
Vita, Energy Future Holdings - formerly TXU,
Graphic Packaging, Grohe, Kraton, Texas Genco),
retail (Daphne, China Grand Auto, Debenhams,
J.Crew, Li Ning, Myer, Neiman Marcus, PETCO),
consumer (Beringer Wines, Burger King, Mey

David Bonderman through TPG Nusantara S.a.r.l. : 57.87%

Non-controlling Shareholder through capital markets (= 5%):

None

Non-controlling Shareholder not through capital markets (> 5%):

None

Icki, Strauss Coffee, TOMY),
media and communications
(Alltel, Avaya, Findexa,
Hanaro Telecom, TIM Hellas,
Univision), and healthcare
(Axcan Pharma, Biomet,
Fenwal, IASIS Healthcare, IMS
Health, Oxford Health Plans,
Parkway Holdings, Quintiles
Transnational, Surgical Care
Affiliates),among others.

SHAREHOLDERS

Ultimate Shareholder:
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share and bond
registration

In 2012 there were two corporate actions, which are the International Finance Corporation (IFC)
debt to equity conversion and the issuance of a Rupiah bond as follows:

1. On 9 March 2012 IFC did a debt conversion to BTPN equity. As a result of this exercise,
Rp.139,459,908,560 BTPN was converted to 176,670,117 new shares so that the share
composition became as follows:

BTPN SHARE OWNERSHIP

TPG Nusantara S.a.r.L. 3,379,879,850 59.7 3,379,879,850 579
Public 2,283,737,290 40.3 2,283,737,290 39.1
IFC = = 176,670,117 3.0
Total 5,663,617,140 100.0 5,840,287,257 100.0

2. In August 2012, the Bank issued Rp.1.25 trillion Shelf Registry Bond | Bank BTPN Fixed
Coupon Rate Phase Il Year of 2012 carrying the following terms:

BTPN BONDS PUBLIC OFFERING

Serie A 6 August 2012 525,000,000,000 7.75 3 August 2015

Serie B 6 August 2012 725,000,000,000 8.25 3 August 2017

Total 1,250,000,000,000




information for
shareholders

Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
will be held on 14 March 2013.

Share Listing
BTPN shares are listed in the Indonesia
Stock Exchange with ticker code: "BTPN”

Bonds Listing
- Bonds BTPN I in 2009, listed in

Indonesia Stock Exchange under the
code “BTPNO1A” and “BTPNO1B".

- Bonds BTPN Il in 2010, listed in
Indonesia Stock Exchange under the
code “BTPNO2A” and “BTPNO2B”.

- Bonds BTPN Il in 2010, listed in
Indonesia Stock Exchange under the
code “BTPNO3A” and “BTPNO3B".

- Shelf Registry Bonds BTPN | Fixed
Coupon Rate Phase | in 2011,
listed in Indonesia Stock Exchange
under the code “BTPNO1ACN1” and
“BTPNO1BCN1”.

- Shelf Registry Bonds BTPN | Fixed
Coupon Rate Phase Il in 2012,
listed in Indonesia Stock Exchange
under the code “BTPNO1ACN2” and
“BTPNO1BCN2”.

Share Registrar

PT Datindo Entrycom

Puri Datindo, JL. Jend. Sudirman
Kav. 34-35,Jakarta 10220

Tel :+62 21 570 9009
Fax :+62 21 570 9026

COMPANY PROFILE
information for shareholders

Independent Auditor

KAP Tanudiredja, Wibisana & Rekan

(a member firm of PwC global network)
Gedung Plaza 89 Lantai 11,12 & 12M
JL.H.R.Rasuna Said Kav X-7 No. 6, Karet Kuningan
Setiabudi Jakarta Selatan 12940

Tel: +62 21 521 2901

Fax:+62 21 529 055 55 /529 050 50

Rating Agency
PT. Fitch Ratings Indonesia

Prudential Tower 20th FL.
Jl.Jend. Sudirman Kav. 79
Jakarta 12910

Tel: +62 21 5795 7755
Fax:+62 21 5795 7750

Corporate Secretary
Anika Faisal

PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk
Menara Cyber 2, 24th & 25th Floor

JI. H.R. Rasuna Said Blok X-5 No. 13,Jakarta
Selatan 12950

Tel: +62 21 300 26 200

Fax:+62 21 300 26 307

Website

www.btpn.com

Annual Report and other information on
BTPN can be accessed through our website.
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Making Batik Together

Mashoeroel Noor Poedjanadi
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Giving our customers the
capacity to grow In their

small business ensures

a better life for them anad
their families.



Mass Market Empowerment
through daya

BTPN ‘Do Good’ Platform

e Daya Health & Wellness

e Daya Entrepreneurial Capacity Building
e Daya Community Empowerment

e Sahabat daya

64
66
70
74
76
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MASS MARKET EMPOWERMENT THROUGH DAYA
btpn ‘do good’ platform

Integrating ‘Do Good’ in Line of Business

“Empowerment Program” in BTPN is integrated with UVP in every line of business:

btpn purna bakti btpn mitra usaha rakyat

best friend opportunities

of for
pensioners growth

btpn syariah - tunas usaha btpn sinaya
rakyat

personalized
. service //
. ;/ y
4 key behaviors / more
courage “‘ H
meaningful

life

discipline
hard work
solidarity

our people sustainable

growth

We integrate our business & social mission in our products, services and daily activities
in empowering the mass market. Our focus lies in Health, Business and Community
Development through the Three Pillars of daya.



a sustainable and measurable program that

©
daya empowers the mass market.

dayag is the ‘Do Good’ platform for mass
market enablement through three pillars: (i)
Daya health & wellness, (ii) Daya entrepreneurial
capacity building, and (iii) Daya community
empowerment.




MASS MARKET EMPOWERMENT THROUGH DAYA
daya health and wellness

66

daya health
& wellness

encourages a
healthy lifestyle
and promotes
well-being

o O

.2 [ﬂ_ﬂ]
an

Total beneficiaries

611,428 ...




to encourage
a positive
healthy
attitudes

for BTPN
customers
through three
pillars of

Daya Health
and Wellness
include: Health
Information,
Interactive
Dialogue

and Health
Consultation

Daya Health & Wellness is a health-based
program that promotes a healthy lifestyle for
all BTPN customers.

The Daya Health & Wellness pillar
consists of:

e Health Information, where BTPN
customers and families can receive
practical tips to live a more healthy life as
well as topics on nutrition, emotional and
mental health.

¢ Interactive Dialogue, an interactive
discussion facilitated by a doctor that
promotes a healthy & wellness lifestyle
and is intended to encourage a positive
healthy behaviour in one’s older age.

¢ Health Consultation, covering free periodic
medical checkup and health consultation
with medical experts.

In 2012 Daya Health & Wellness
has been expanded with the
following initiatives:

1. Working with Grand Aides foundation from
the U.S.,PDUI and Psychology Faculty of
University of Indonesia, Daya Health &
Wellness piloted a health cadre program
inviting customers and their families
to become trained health promoters to
motivate BTPN fellow customers to seek a
healthier lifestyle.

a) Grand Aides receive 140 hours of class
room training and 20 hours field training
in health clinics covering basic health
knowledge and how to do simple
checkups (e.g. blood pressure and heart
rate examination)

b) Grand Aides work under the supervision
of medical doctors from the General
Practitioner Association (Perhimpunan
Dokter Umum Indonesia or PDUI) at the
btpn purna bakti and btpn mitra usaha
rakyat branches,and at btpn syariah -
tunas usaha rakyat community centres.

INTERNAL e )

L

N1}

INSIGHTS

‘A

number of
improvements

to provide health
benefits and many

more”

There are a number of
improvements at BTPN,
specifically at BTPN Purna
Bakti Cililitan branch. BTPN
has developed Paguyuban
Purna Bakti (Purna Bakti
Community) as one of

the strategies to sustain
existing customers and
acquire new ones.

One of the regular activities
of the Paguyuban is the
morning exercise for the
customers and staff of BTPN,
which also has the objective
to increase customer
loyalty. We also invite the
surrounding community to
join in. Besides its health
and fitness benefits, this
activity is also good for
building teamwaork.

Bekti

BRANCH MANAGER
btpn purna bakti,
Cililitan branch.

left: One of Daya Health &
Wellness activities, reqular morning
exercises, held in btpn purna bakti
branches are designed to promote a
healthier lifestyle for its customers.
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daya health and wellness

¢) The pilot was launched in 17 branches 2. For btpn syariah - tunas usaha
located in Jabodetabek area with 42 cadres. rakyat, Daya Health and Wellness
Atotal of 882 activities were held during the introduced new modules on
year, touching 5,625 beneficiaries from the specific health information related
btpn purna bakti, btpn mitra usaha rakyat and to Dengue Fever Prevention and
btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat. Hand Washing Tips. Developed in

a flipchart format, this practical
health tips can be presented in 15

/l’) Z‘I’Oduced new minutes by tunas usaha rakyat staffs
: L during meetings at tunas usaha
mOdU/eS n Sloe'C/f/C rakyat community centres.
hea/th /ﬂfOfmathﬂ 3. Service standardization at
re/a teol tO Dengue 250 btpn purna bakti branches with
) Health Service Centers in the larger
Feve/’ Pl’even tlon and branches and Health Corners in the

Hand WaSh/'ng T/,OS smaller sized branches.

btpn annual report 2012

HEALTH & WELLNESS

Total Activity Distribution

Programs o
(No. of Events) ( No. of Beneficiaries )

Health & Wellness Information: 586,475 health information distributed
across Indonesia.

Consultative Program:

- Interactive Dialogue 4,504 268,956
- Health Service 8,094 336,847
- Grand Aides 882 5,625

GRAND TOTAL 13,480 611,428




top to bottom: Giving

health and wellness related
information to its customers
is one of many BTPN's efforts
in daya Program.

Interactive Health Dialogue
held at btpn purna bakti
branches is one of daya
Programs, where a health
expert is invited to speak
on the importance of
maintaining one’s health.

The highlight of Daya Health
& Wellness is the Free

Clinic health service. The
on-duty doctor provides free
consultations every month, in
conjunction with the pension
fund collection.

Piloted Grand Aides
for customers to
become trained
health promoters

to motivate fellow
BTPN customers

to seek a healthier
lifestyle.

daya sehat sejahtera
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daya pillars

287,741 2011
102,190 2010




EVERY BTPN
PRACTICAL
BUSINESS
TRAININGS
MODULE
designed
differently
to cater the
mass market.

btpn mitra usaha
rakyat training
sessions are
done by daya
certified trainers
in its many
branches. For
pensioners, they
are facilitated
by branch
managers while
tunas usaha
rakyat segment
customers
receive theirs

in community
centres.

Daya Entrepreneurial Capacity
Building, or Daya Tumbuh Usaha,
offers three different programs to
help customers build and grow
their businesses:

1. Practical Business Training provides
practical training modules in various
subjects, from training on money
management to marketing and inventory
management.

a) btpn mitra usaha rakyat has 84
dedicated trainers called Area daya
Specialist and as the previous year
in 2012 all of them went through
annual certification process to
upgrade their knowledge to the latest
training module. Training sessions for
pensioners are facilitated by the branch
managers while btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat customers receive their
training from our tunas usaha rakyat
segment staff during regular meetings
at community centres.

b) Modules introduced during
the year covers:

¢ Employee Management and more
advanced Financial and Marketing
Management for btpn mitra usaha
rakyat customers.

¢ Introduction to Entrepreneurship
for pensioners who want to learn
how to start a new business post
retirement.

¢ Four new modules for tunas usaha
rakyat segment customers on
practical tips to build their dreams
and instill business creativity.

INTERNAL
INSIGHT

When he was
carrying out the
entrepreneurship
training, Pak Dompak
shared various tips

and encouragement to
motivate pensioners.
Entrepreneurship is

a profitable way for
pensioners to remain
active and add value in
their old age. “I think to
become an entrepreneur,
someone needs to have the
drive. Being a pensioner
does not mean the end of
everything, instead it is

a time to start and begin
something new that is
beneficial to everyone,”
he said further.

Dompak Silitonga
BRANCH MANAGER
btpn purna bakti,
Bekasi branch.

left: Entrepreneurship training
event to build the customers spirit
to build a business. Knowledge

is given through dialogue and
presentation, and also practices
such as technic of making a cake.
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entrepreneurial capacity building

¢) An enhanced measurement method 2. Business Information & Networking
was also introduced during the year to facilitates customers to publish buy-
assess the effectiveness of the training sell information of their products
activities. Rather than merely measuring for free within BTPN’s customer
number of training participants, the new network. A new feature was
method now measures participation introduced so customers can post
continuity by measuring number of and access business opportunity
customers that attend more than two information via text messages.
training sessions. 3. Micro Franchise Opportunities

offers a selection of business
franchise opportunities for mass

MOO’U/GS /ﬂffOO’UCGO’ market customers, ranging from
! / mobile phone voucher retail to
th/S year lnC/UdeS . Dengue Fever Insurance Agency.
,OI’aCtlcal t/IOS to build Dengue Fever Insurance Agency
O'I’eamS a/’)d /nSt/// is the latest business franchise

opportunity in 2012, that started

bUS/neSS Cl’eat/V/ty roll out nationally at the end of
. the year.

for btpn syariah

-tunas usaha rakyat

customers.

btpn annual report 2012

(@
2012 dayaﬁ ENTREPRENEURIAL CAPACITY BUILDING

Total Activity Total Beneficiaries

Programs o
(No. of Events) (No. of Participants)

Buy Sell Information 234,038 product advertisments stored in our
system which can be accessed thru 603 btpn mitra
usaha rakyat branches.

Warta Distributed 1,565,309 market news distributed across Indonesia
Practical Business Training 39,599 586,242

New Business Opportunity 2,798 customers took a new business opportunity




top to bottom: Arief Harris
Tandjung provides training
on entrepreneurship to micro
customers at btpn mitra
usaha rakyat Cengkareng
branch in Tangerang as

part of a series of events
introducing Sahabat daya.

btpn syariah - tunas usaha
rakyat introduces Mimpi-

ku (My Dream) module to
instill dreams such as their
children’s higher education
and hajj pilgrimage in
growing their entrepreneurial
capacity building.

Mrs. Samiah is a roof
entrepreneur in Cipocok,
Serang, West Java. She is

very motivated to improve
her business by applying the
knowledge that she had from
her local community centres.

)

Introduced ‘My
Dream’ module
for btpn syariah

- tunas usaha
rakyat customers

to help grow their
entrepreneurial
capacity building.
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daya pillars

annual report 2012




strives

to enable
women

in rural
communities
to be self-
employed
and generate
income.

This allows
the women
to build a
better life for
themselves
and also their
families.

Invites btpn sinaya
customers to support
small scale businesses
performed by tunas
usaha rakyat segment
customers in rural
communities.

Daya Community Empowerment aims at
enabling communities with common needs,
interests and commitment to work together
to access market potential and promote

a healthier lifestyle.

Community has been developed in
pensioners customers with the several
activities. This community occurred since
the pension customers meet regularly
due to their payroll every month. They can
do some exercise in the morning such

as Senam Jantung or music relaxation in
our pension branch. Our customers feel
that they are happy when they meet their
friends, so it became important to have the
pensioners’ community to make their live
more meaningful.

The third pillar of daya is still under
development. In 2012, the community
empowerment involves mapping the needs,
interests and potential of communities

and providing these communities with
expertise, market access and other
necessary resources to ensure that each
community can realize their potential and
improve their welfare.

CUSTOMER
TESTIMONIAL

“Aside from
socialising
with friends in
the routine meetings
at community
centres, | am now
smarter. | now have
a savings account
and can manage my
finances better.”

With a fried tofu business
she owns with her
husband, she is able to
send her eldest child to
higher education. “I only
finished grade school, but
my eldest child graduated
from university and is now
working. There are two
more children | need to
send to school. After that

| want to renovate my
house,” she said with pride.

Emi

FRIED TOFU
ENTREPRENEUR
btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat customer,
Serang branch.

left: The women of Cipocok Il
comunity centre are attending

the Sentra Regular Meeting (PSR)
regularly. This meeting is a place
for them to share stories and learn
how to save and manage finance.
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MASS MARKET EMPOWERMENT THROUGH DAYA
sahabat daya

volunteer program
INTERNAL

e sahabat
daya

“Many thanks to

daya” Sahabat daya is a volunteer program inviting
“After the third time BTPN stakeholders to ‘do good’ through our Daya
volunteering with Sahabat Health & Wellness and Daya Entrepreneurial
daya my life has become Capacity Building programs.

more meaningful especially e Launched internally during the year, Sahabat
being able to be at hand with daya launched the program by starting with
the customers especially the Bank’s Board of Directors and employees
pensioners. They reminded at the Head Office to become volunteers.

me of my parents who have
passed - it created more
meaning for me. | was happy
to share useful knowledge
with other people”

e Each BTPN employee can spend 2 working
days in a year to participate in the Sahabat
daya program.

e A Sahabat daya portal has been developed
where employees can select the daya program
of their choice to participate and share their
stories as members of Sahabat daya.

e 225 employees have become Sahabat
daya volunteers in 2012, participating in
294 activities where they can feel a more
meaningful purpose in their work.

e Sahabat daya will be launched on a larger
scale in 2013, to invite BTPN employees at
the branches nationally and btpn sinaya

Deti Afril ti
el L customers, as Sahabat daya volunteers.

HUMAN CAPITAL
Kiat Sehat

btpn purna bakti,
Depok branch




top to bottom: Women
customers of btpn syariah

- tunas usaha rakyat at
Cipocok, Serang, West Java
gathers with Irma, Pembina
Sentra, after their routine
weekly meeting. A community
spirit is vital in these
meetings.

One of BTPN staffs also serve
as Sahabat Daya, which
voluntarily involve in daya’s
activities.

Btpn purna bakti customers,
Cililitan, Jakarta Timur
Branch are feeling the

benefit of morning exercise
activity held by BTPN. The
pensioners also use this
activity to socialize.

Each training
module and
daya initiative
are specifically
designed and

adapted for the
mass market
customers of four
business units.
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The Face of Indonesia’s Micro Business
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Success breeds confidence
and the desire to do more for
yourself and others. This is the
customer experience we seek
to create — at an individual and
community level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
management discussion and analysis

management
discussion and analysis

For the last five years, BTPN
grew its assets 5 times, gaining
market share to become the
largest non-foreign exchange
bank and ranked 16 of all banks

in Indonesia.

Compared with the country’s top tier banks,
their financial performance this year also
compare favorably. Net profits grew 41.3% to
Rp.2.0 trillion, reaching a ROE of 32.6%.

On the Bank’s asset side, btpn purna bakti
and btpn mitra usaha rakyat loan growth was
accompanied by the strong growth of btpn
syariah - tunas usaha rakyat program. Total
loans grew 28.2%, with btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat showing the highest growth rate

as it started from a small base. On the liability
side, total deposits grew 26.5% keeping

a comfortable Loan to Deposit Ratio (LDR)

of 86%.

The year saw the rollout of the Bank’s btpn
syariah - tunas usaha rakyat program after
the successful pilot in 2011. This community
loan program is an example of an even closer
integration of the Bank’s business and social
objectives in the mass-market segment.



btpn
business units

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

mitra usaha

btpn

LOOK BACK IT IS MORE
ON A LIFE OF THAN JUST A
ACHIEVEMENT LOAN, WE OPEN
AND A FUTURE DOORS AND
FULL OF MARKETS
POSSIBILITIES

Product Feature:
Product Feature: - Paketmu
- Pension Savings - Taseto

- Pension Loan

btpo

EMPOWERING
THE GRASS-
ROOT
COMMUNITY

Product Feature:

- Paket Masa
Depan

- Savings and
Time Deposit
Accounts

btpn business units

btpit

W ‘.;&

SIGNIFICANT
RETURNS FOR
CUSTOMERS
AND REAL
OPPORTUNITIES
FOR OTHERS

Product Feature:
- Savings Account
- Time Deposit

- Current Account
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business units review
btpn
purna bakti

btpn purna
bakti has served
pensioners for
oo years.

Given its historical relationships
in the pension industry, the Bank
continues to develop its strategic
partnership with several key state
pension funds,among others,

PT Taspen (Persero) and PT Asabri
(Persero). BTPN, based on pension
payments made through the Bank,
provides loans to pensioners most of
whom are civil servant pensioners.

annual report 2012

This year, btpn purna bakti loans
account for 72% of total loans,
down from 75% last year, which
shows the rising importance of the
Bank’s other businesses. The Bank
has extended its service to include
those approaching their pension
ages, under their Pre-pensioners
Loan service.




btpn purna bakti LOAN GROWTH (in Rupiah)

281 T

2012

2011

2010

®

THE BANK
INTRODUCED
ANEW
BRANCH
DESIGN
AND MODEL
FOR btpn
purna bakti
BRANCHES
so they can
be used as
community
centers

for the
pensioners
social
community
activities.

+22.9%

+25.0%

+40.4%

btpn purna bakti loan program is secured by state
pension payments and carries a life insurance.
The size of these loan range between Rp.10-200
million, with an average loan size of Rp.40 million.
This year’s pensioner customers amount to about
660,000 btpn purna bakti customers.

btpn purna bakti loans grew 23% to reach Rp.28.1
trillion this year and was able to keep an NPL level

of 0.1% throughout the year. The Bank continues

to improve its btpn purna bakti service by reducing
turnaround-processing time and standardizing service
levels at all of its btpn purna bakti branches. The
Bank introduced a new branch design and model

last year for its btpn purna bakti branches so it can
be used as community centers for pensioners social
community activities.

Summary

e btpn purna bakti loans grew 23% to
reach Rp.28.1 trillion, accounting for
72% of total loans.

e Extended btpn purna bakti loan services
to include those nearing their pension
ages, under the pre-pension loan service.

e 16 new btpn purna bakti Pusat
Komunitas branches brings the total
to 96, out of 433 btpn purna bakti
designated branches overall.

NO OF CUSTOMERS

2012 660.000 neam

2011 630.000 e

2010 564.000 HH

—
CUSTOMER
TESTIMONIAL

“Service in
BTPN is very
quick and
friendly. Even the
branch is comfy.”

At the moment Ibu

Siti Hasana has been a
pensioner for the past 6.5
years. She has attended
the free medical service
provided by BTPN and was
paying close attention to
the health talk that day.
“Following the health
sessions gives me more
knowledge. Now | know
more about how to take
care of my health in old
age; she explained. Ibu
Siti Hasana have also
requested and received a
loan to fix her house.

Siti Hasana
PENSIONER

Customer of btpn purna
bakti, Cililitan branch.

left: btpn purna bakti customers
waiting patiently to receive their
monthly pension fund.
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business units review

btpn mitra
usaha
rakyat

Expanding

its customers
iInto the lower-
end of SME.

btpn mitra usaha rakyat financing
grew by a high 33%, accounting for
23% of the Bank’s total loans, up from
22% a year ago. With the maturing
growth of some of its customers into
the lower-end of the SME segment,
btpn mitra usaha rakyat is expanding
its capability and capacity to better
serve this new and growing segment.

annual report 2012

This year, the btpn mitra usaha
rakyat business has increased its
investment in training, for both its
employees and customers. For its
business leaders, the focus was on
enhancing and deepening their
supervisory skills. For customers,
the daya business training program
has been improved with a focus on
applying what has been learnt.

The training package consists of five
modules; soft skills, basic finance,
business operation, marketing and
human resource. The program has
been re-designed with three layers
for each package of training and par-
ticipants must pass the first module
to participate into the next level.



btpn mitra usaha rakyat
LOAN GROWTH (in Rupiah)

2012 QKN
2011

2010

O

IN 2012, btpn
mitra usaha
rakyat LOANS
GREW 33%
WITH MOST
GROWTH
OUTSIDE
JAVA.
NOTABLYIN
SUMATERA.

NPL for btpn
mitra usaha
rakyat loans
has been
brought down
to 2.1% this
December
from 2.8%

a year ago.

+32.7%
+46.4%

+101.7%

A new health insurance feature has been added to
micro loan product following a sucessful pilot test.
This program has the flexibility of both in and out
patient coverage and it covers 7 illness related to
environment cleanliness.

This year, btpn mitra usaha rakyat loans grew 33%
reaching Rp.9 trillion, provided through 603 branches
and serving about 232,000 customers by year-end.
Most of the growth this year has occurred outside

of Java, most notably in Sumatera. The NPL for btpn
mitra usaha rakyat loans has been steadily brought
down from 2.8% in December 2011 to 2.1% a year
later. BTPN targets btpn mitra usaha rakyat customers
with loans ranging from loans between Rp.5 - 500
million. The Bank has also begun some new programs

designed for casssava, cocoa, tobacco and dairy farmers.

Summary

e btpn mitra usaha rakyat loans grew 33%
to reach Rp.9 trillion, accounting for 23%
of total loans.

e 33 new btpn mitra usaha rakyat
branches have been established to a
total of 603.

e btpn mitra usaha rakyat loan services
extended to customers that have grown
into the lower end of the Small Medium
Enterprise (SME) segment.

NO OF CUSTOMERS

2012 232,000 nrER
2011 213,000 L
2010 204,000 HH

For the first four
years, Kusmaedi’s
business grew
slowly. Realizing that his
obstacle was insufficient
capital, he pushed himself
to request a loan from
BTPN. Within a week, he
obtained a micro loan
amounting to Rp.20
million without collateral.

‘At the end, our daily
sales grew two times.
After repaying my loan |
have borrowed again to
expand my store and get
more goods,” Kusmaedi
mentioned.

He now has three stores
at two different markets
with total sales of Rp.10
million per day and has
five employees working
for him.

Kusmaedi

RETAIL TRADER
Customer of btpn mitra

usaha rakyat, Mataram
branch.
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business units review
btpn syariah
- tunas usaha
rakyat

Enabling
low-income
families to have
a better life.

After a successful pilot program
conducted last year in Banten, the
Sharia Unit's community financing
program, called btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat was rolled out this
year in Banten, West Java and East
Java. Last year, the pilot program
ended with 3,816 Community
Centres and about 1,000 employees.
By the end of this year’s rollout, the
btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat
program had grown into 28,927
Community Centres and 5,416
employees. Customers totaled
444,000, while financing amounted
to Rp.504 billion.

annual report 2012



btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat

FINANCING GROWTH (in Rupiah)

2012 05T

2011

2010

X

btpn syariah
- tunas
usaha rakyat
PROGRAM
HAS TWO

COMPONENTS:

one is to
empower
women and
the second is
an integrated
program
called Paket
Masa Depan
(Package for
the Future).

+709.7%

+957.0%

+n.a.

btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat’s objective is to
enable low-income families to have a better life. The
program has two components. The first is to empower
women, who play a critical role in improving the
welfare of low-income households. The second is

to nurture four effective behaviors, comprising of
courage, discipline, hard work and solidarity.

This integrated program consists of four elements.
The first is providing a financial solution, in the form
of a loan package, to a group of women household
producers in rural villages, who has no access to
normal banking services. The loan package provided
is a Rp.1 -3 million financing repaid in bi-weekly
installments within a year’s time. At the end of the
one-year period and the financing is fully repaid, the
customer can borrow a larger amount up to 100% of
the previous limit. The Rp.1 - 3 million financing is
then repaid in bi-weekly installments over another
one year period and this goes on each year, with

the same repayment cycle. After the third cycle, the
customer is entitled to get additional financing for
housing or education. The financing package carries
a free credit life insurance and additional funds in
the event the spouse passes away. Finally, a savings
account with no administration fees is opened.

The second component involves assistance in
managing a simple organization. A group of five
members maximum are required to attend bi-weekly
formal meetings with BTPN staff.

NO OF CUSTOMERS

2012 444,000 nrER
2011 64,000 L
HH

2010 2,100

CUSTOMER

TESTIMONIAL

Ibu Munawaroh
had a dream of
owning a small
shop and send her two
children to school until
university. “Aside from
requesting a loan and
paying her installments,

| attend routine meetings
at BTPN every two weeks
to learn with other women
on how to run a business.”
Opening her own food
business, she goes around
selling her home-made
food every morning. She
now earns Rp.70,000 -
Rp.100,000 daily. Now, Ibu
Munawaroh has a savings
account and is more
proficient in managing her
household finances.

Munawaroh

SNACKS SELLER
Customer of btpn syariah,
Cipocok Community
Centre.

left: Mrs. Emi, a fried tofu seller,
is one of many people that have
been helped by BTPN.

89

btpn annual report 2012



btpn annual report 2012

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat

btpn syariah -
tunas usaha
rakyat program
Is designed

to enable
productive poor
families to have
a better life.

Through these meetings,
members are encouraged
to share responsibilities
and promote solidarity and
teamwork among group
members.

The third component is

the participation of group
members in the Bank’s
daya program. Those taking
the financing package

are required to maintain
mandatory savings level and
take the cash management
module. Group members
are encouraged to take the
other modules as well. They
will also have access to
Daya Health and Wellness
to encourage a healthier
lifestyle.

The final component are BTPN
employee, who acts as facilitators
and become the role model for

btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat
customers. This requires staff to
ensure they conduct themselves in
an honest, polite and disciplined way
when addressing btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat customers.

The program is designed to enhance
four key personal traits. The first is
Courage to start a business.

The second is Discipline in keeping
commitments to be on time and

to manage funds prudently. The

third is Hard Work in managing and growing
a business. The fourth is building Group
Solidarity within their respective group.

Summary

btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat
financing grew from Rp.111 billion
as of end-2011 to Rp.504 billion a
year later.

btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat
employees grew rapidly from
approximately 1,000 as of end
2011 to 5,416 a year later.

This year 25,111 new btpn syariah
- tunas usaha rakyat community
centres have been rolled out, which
brings the total to 28,927.



top to bottom:

Mrs. Nawiyah, a producer
of fishball crackers and
btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat customer in
Serang, West Java. Besides
receiving financing from
BTPN for her business, she
attends reqular meetings
at the community centre.

Mrs. Samiah a roof
entrepreneur from Serang
also feels the same benefit
of btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat and now
already has 4 employees.

The atmosphere during
one of the reqular
meetings of btpn syariah
- tunas usaha rakyat
community centres at the
customers’ place.

1
i

!
L]
-Mﬁlﬁﬁ?& X2

Two components
of btpn syariah

- tunas usaha
rakyat are
empowering

women and
providing a
better future.

‘ﬁ"'
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business units review .
btpn ‘ p
SIEVE! '

btpn sinaya
was able to
maintain a
86% Loan to
Deposit Ratio

This year, btpn sinaya was able
to grow deposits by 27%, thus
maintaining the Bank’s Loan to
Deposit ratio at a comfortable
86%. To ensure sufficient funding
volume and also to better match
the tenor of the loans on the
asset side, BTPN arranged a

long term Rupiah bond issue of
Rp.1.25 trillion in August. The
Bank also maintains sufficient
short-term liquidity at a liquid
asset ratio of 40% similar to a
year ago. The Bank’s Funding
unit is split into three groupings,
retail, wholesale and financial
institutions/public sector.

annual report 2012




DEPOSITS GROWTH (in Rupiah)

451 T

2012
2011

2010

O

BTPN
ARRANGED

A LONG-TERM
RUPIAH BOND
ISSUANCE OF
RP.1.25T

IN AUGUST.

The Bank also
maintains
sufficient
short-term
liquidity at a
liquid asset
ratio of 40%.

12 new btpn sinaya branches have been established,
which brings the total to 36 dedicated btpn sinaya
branches, which are specially located and designed to
attract and serve btpn sinaya customers. In addition,
there are 40 funding centers, within designated btpn
purna bakti branches, across 10 major cities.

Wholesale attracts and serves the corporate and high
net-worth market, while the Financial Institutions
and Public Sector cover institutions in these two
important market segments.

BTPN offers competitively-priced deposit and savings
products with more flexible terms than its bank
counterparts.

Summary

e (Customer deposits account for 90%
of total liabilities, the rest are bonds
and bank borrowings.

e Customer deposits grew 26.5%
to reach Rp.45.1 trillion.
e | aunched BTPN consolidated

account statements for deposit
customers.

e 12 new btpn sinaya branches brings

the total to 36 dedicated btpn sinaya
branches in 10 key cities.

NO OF CUSTOMERS

2012 888,000 nrER
2011 793,000 L
2010 712,000 HH

CUSTOMER

TESTIMONIAL

Ibu Melie
thinks that
BTPN's services
are helpful and help ease
making transactions. An
example is the pick-up
service. “This service is
very helpful especially
when I'm busy. When |
don’t have to take the
time to go to the bank,

a BTPN staff will come

to my house with a
transaction form and the
rest is done by BTPN.” |bu
Melie is also comfortable
in the branches, which
are outfitted with modern
facilities and decorated
with bamboo, wooden,
and stone interior which
gives a natural feel.

Lim Melie

CUSTOMER

Customer of btpn sinaya,
Sunter branch.

left: Professionalism spirit and high
leadership inculcated in every BTPN
officer to give the best service to
the customers.
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support units review

human
capital

focusing
on the four
dimensions
of needs:

- physical

- mental

- emotional
- spiritual

annual report 2012

Total training mandays

93,014 2012
61,652 2011
70,750 2010




NO OF EMPLOYEES ACCORDING
TO EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND

TOTAL OF EMPLOYEES OF BTPN

Dec 2012 18,914 38.90/0

Dec 2011

13,620

o
H.”..' Dec 2012 | Dec 2011
Master Degree 265 223
in 2012 Bachelor Degree 12,752 10,329
Diploma 2,692 2,136
High School 3,205 932

X

IN 2012,

THE BANK
RECRUITED
APPROXIMATELY
5,444 PEOPLE
FOR btpn syariah
- tunas usaha
rakyat

-MOSTLY
WOMEN
EMPLOYEES.

They were
deployed across
Banten, West Java
and East Java.

Within the last four years, the Human Capital
unit has successfully grown as a robust
infrastructure to support BTPN’s mass market
focus and rapid business growth. The backbone
of the human capital architecture is the Human
Capital Engines which consists of recruitment,
training,and HC operations. The HC Engines
mainly serve to support the other two elements
of the architecture; namely Center of Expertise
and Organization Effectiveness.

Embracing the Business Challenges in 2012

In 2012, BTPN has undertaken a bold massive
initiative to launch a new business focusing

on the productive poor segment, that is btpn
syariah - tunas usaha rakyat. Equipped with the
full HC infrastructure, BTPN has managed to
cope with the challenges of recruiting 5,444
new employees for this particular business, on
top of 4,119 new recruits in the other businesses
and supporting functions.

HUMAN CAPITAL ARCHITECTURE

Human Capital
Engines

Center of
Expertise

Organization
Effectiveness

In anticipating the high speed and
massive scale of the rollout of btpn
syariah - tunas usaha rakyat, HC has
modified the recruiting, training
and assessment process, to ensure
the readiness of sufficient and
competent people to deliver the
business objectives.

btpn syariah - tunas usaha
rakyat introduced a one-day
recruitment event, starting
with a key-note speech by
senior management team,
followed by a series of
assessment activities, health
examination, and Confirmation
of Acceptance Letter in a
single day. More than 5,000
employees were recruited,
98% are women and 48%
are high school graduates.

Recruitment, Training, HR Operations

Eg. Rewards, Industrial Relations, Talent Management,
Leadership, Industrial Relations and Communication.

Human Capital Heads in Business / Functional Units.
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human capital

They are assigned as Relationship Officers
(Pembina Sentra), Branch Managers and
Deputy Branch Managers, deployed across
Palembang, Lampung, Banten, West Java and
East Java.

e Anew training curriculum was developed
and a new learning methodology is applied.
The new 5-day curriculum covers the
introduction to BTPN, Basics of Sharia
Banking, Managing Productive Sentra, Risks,
and some mandatory modules (code of
ethics, compliance, fraud awareness). During
the year, btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat
has delivered more than 29,500 mandays to
support the opening of more than 25,000
new community centres, almost half of the
overall of 63,400 mandays in the other
businesses and support function.

BTPN EMPLOYMENT STATISTICS

By Age (in years)

Strengthening the Infrastructure

In its ongoing effort to deliver service
excellence to the employees, Human Capital
has made significant improvement in HC
Operations. Completing 15 new initiatives in
the HC system and 6 in key processes, the unit
was able to achieve 99% service level while
transaction number increased over 46% and
employee complaint number for the top 5 items
dropped by 45%.

Preparing Leaders, Engaging Employees

BTPN has consistently conducted talent
management process to secure 50% successor
availability for leadership and critical positions
during 2012.

TOTAL EMPLOYEES

Dec 2012 Dec 2011

18,914 13,620

IS N N N N

Dec 2011 4,287 5,866 2,170
Dec 2012 5,635 6,489 3,661 1,280 898 626 318 6 1
By Level
T O e e
Supervisor Management Management
Dec 2011 9,094 2,030 2,059
Dec 2012 13,482 2,552 2,370 438 72

By Years of Service (in years)

____ AT _

Dec 2011 4,040 6,289 1,422
Dec 2012 7724 5,634 3,486 569 740 761
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BTPN staff training
event begin with
cheers to foster the
companionship and
intimacy.

To sharpen leadership skill in btpn, Learning Leading Organization Effectiveness
Institute has conducted several leadership
training program such as Supervisory Skill,
Managing People Program and The 7 Habits of
Highly Effective People attended by more than
500 managers.

In the effort to build effective organization
in each business/function unit,a partnership
between HC and business/support function
groups are established through the Human
Capital Heads. Throughout the year, the

btpn annual report 2012

To prepare future leaders, especially for Human Capital Heads work together with
branch/operations manager roles and area/ their respective partners in the Business and
regional leaders, BTPN has launched several Support groups in three major roles:

management development programs for
specific business/function such as PBMP
(purna bakti), PBDP (retail funding/sinaya), ) ]
OMDP (Operations), RMDP and BMDP (mitra [Pk el et et e i,
usaha rakyat). Through those programs, .
177 trainees from internal and external
hires were groomed to assume managerial
responsibilities in various positions in various »  Facilitating well-targeted engagement
businesses. improvement programs based on
employee engagement survey results.

e Ensuring business performance by
developing tailored organization design,

Managing talent through succession
planning and executive recruitment;

To gauge the engagement level of the

employees, btpn has conducted engagement Next year, Human Capital will be focusing
survey during the last three years, with its effort in the following areas: continuously
60% employee participation in 2012. The improve organization effectiveness by

result shows that Purpose and Direction had assisting business/functional units in building
consistently been the strongest engagement working system, improve talent management
driver across the bank. process, review and refine compensation

strategy, and implement people risk.
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information technology

iInformation
technology

Information technology (IT)
continues to play an important role
in BTPN’s business and support
units. With the ability to process
large amounts of transactions and
integrate business operation from
branches across the nation, IT is

an important enabler to support
the Bank’s growing business. In
2012, this unit was responsible for
operating an online system linking
433 btpn purna bakti, 603 btpn mitra
usaha rakyat, 36 btpn sinaya and 5

btpn syariah across Indonesia.

2012 Key Events

Along with the roll out of btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat
during the year, the IT unit spent considerable resources

to support the growth of this business. Given the nature

of its business and the remoteness of btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat units, IT customized systems to align with

the segment’s business needs and, at the same time, meet
the regulatory requirements set by the Central Bank. Data
transfers from the remote branches are performed utilizing
the GPRS network or nearby internet kiosks in areas with no
GPRS service.

For btpn mitra usaha rakyat, the IT unit introduced a system
that allows BTPN to start offering revolving loan products to
the small sized SME businesses. To further improve the service
level for the pensioners, BTPN worked together with Taspen
for a pilot called eKARIP,aimed at providing chip based cards
storing personal data of the pensioners.



Another pilot completed in 2012
was a new cellular phone based
branchless banking solution, btpn
WOW/, for the mass market. btpn
WOW! offers a savings account
solution with various features
covering money transfer, cellular
air-time purchase, bill payment
and other facilities. btpn WOW!
has been successfully tested
internally for BTPN’s employees
and set to be rolled out in 2013.

Next year, IT will be focusing its
efforts in three areas.

1. Supporting the business:
- Deliver new agent banking
capabilities for the Bank’s
branchless banking initiative.

- Introduce new card and EDC
system for virtual branch
initiative in the pension
business.

- Introduce mobile transaction
capabilities, develop internet
banking and implement new
paperless account opening
process for Retail Funding
business.

2. Strengthening current
infrastructure
- Modernize the Bank’s core
banking system

- Revamp existing enterprise
systems to support the
pension business

- Continue enhancements
to the btpn syariah - tunas
usaha rakyat delivery system
- Segregate transactional and
non-transactional network in
branches

2013

Reaching the
unreachable

Continuous and
low-cost multi-
channel delivery

3

Increasing volume
of customers,
transactions,
partners,
employees and
communications

o

Efficient
operations with
adequate controls
and risk
management

Business Enablement Bank and its subsidiaries (Time to Maturity)

2014

3. Preparing for future growth
- The IT theme for year 2013
is the year of ‘Continuous
Availability’ as the bank
moves to provide full
time online services 24x7
throughout the year

- ‘Prepare’ new syariah core
banking system for setup of
Sharia Bank

- Implement transaction
switching infrastructure to
provide better electronic
channel service delivery

- Setup infrastructure for
mobile device management

Another accomplishment is the
smooth relocation of the Disaster
Recovery Center to a new state of
the art facility in early 2012. This
new Disaster Recovery has been
succesfully tested and therefore it
ensures the continuous avaliability
of the IT services.
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financial performance

financial performance

BTPN ROA Trend (%)
(2010-2012)
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BTPN Total Loan
(2010-2012) in trillion Rupiah
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BTPN NPL Trend (%)
(2010-2012)
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Asset and Liability

In 2012, BTPN achieved a Return on Assets (before tax) ratio
of 4.7 %. Net Interest Income grew 31% driven by a 28%
growth in loans reaching Rp.39 trillion by end-2012, which is
above the Bank’s original plan. A major portion of these loans
remain BTPN’s traditional btpn purna bakti loans of Rp.28
trillion, which amounts to 72% of total loans and showing an
annual growth of 23%. The second rapidly growing business
comes from Micro loans, which grew 33%, accounting for
23% of total loans, up 1% from a year ago. The remaining

5% of total loans includes btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat
Community Financing, which was rolled out this year.

For BTPN, deposits grew by 27%, in line with loan growth.
Consequently, the Bank’s LDR remained level at 86%. The
deposit composition changed from a year ago with the
Current Account and Savings Account (CASA) portion of total
deposits declining as the rise in current and savings account
could not keep up with the rapid loan growth. The growth

of BTPN’s specially designed btpn sinaya branches, that are
strategically located have been critical in maintaining steady
funding growth.

Profitability

During the year, Net Interest Income grew 31% to Rp.6.1
trillion and, at the same time, operating expense (exclude
allowance for impairment losses) was kept at Rp.3.4 trillion,
a 32% growth, resulting in a NPAT increase of 41% to Rp.2
trillion. Net interest margins were kept at 13% this year.
Competition for deposits remains tight as banks competed
to fund their strong loan growth. This is reflected by the
bank industry’s Loan Deposit Ratio (LDR), which grew to 83%
from 79% in 2011. For BTPN, interest expense grew 14%,
below the 25% rise in interest income. The Bank managed to
manage its cost-to-income ratio at 54%.



BTPN Total Deposit
(2010-2012) in trillion Rupiah
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Liquidity

The Bank continues to maintain a conservative liquid asset ratio
of 40% to ensure sufficient liquidity, given continuing external
market uncertainties, which could potentially tighten liquidity
domestically. In August, to address the inherent maturity
mismatch between loans, the Bank issued 3 and 5 year Rupiah
bonds totaling Rp.1.25 trillion carrying a coupon rate of 7.75%
for the 3 year tenor and 8.25% for the 5 year tenor bond. The
Bank also repaid BTPN bond 1A totaling Rp.350 billion carrying
a coupon rate of 11.25%. In addition, the Bank has signed a
Revolving Standby Loan facility from the IFC amounting to the
equivalent of USD 100 million. With this, the Bank’s Loan to
Funding ratio remains a comfortable 77%.

Cash Flow

The Bank had net increase of Rp.7.17 trillion in 2012 compared to
net decrease of Rp.0.62 trillion in 2011, primarily due to Rp.6.62
trillion in net cash flows provided from operating activities and
Rp.0.91 trillion in net cash flows provided from financing activities.

Loan quality

Gross Non-Performing Loans (NPLs) stood at 0.6%, while the
Bank’s Cost of Credit (CoC) was kept at a low 1.3%. The Bank’s low
NPL and CoC ratios are due to its large btpn purna bakti business,
which carries a Gross NPL ratio of 0.1%. btpn purna bakti loans

to retired civil servants are covered by their monthly government
pension payments and a life insurance policy, which explains the
Bank’s high asset quality. The Micro loan business carries an NPL
ratio of 2.1%, which blended with btpn purna bakti loans comes
to 0.6% for the whole Bank. The Micro loan portfolio, which
began in 2008, has matured along with its NPL level.

The Bank’s credit rating by Fitch Ratings was affirmed at AA-(idn)
for the Bank’s National Long-term Rating with Stable outlook. The
Bank’s recent Rp.1.25 trillion bonds in August 2012 was given a
AA- (idn) credit rating, which reflects the Bank’s ability to fulfill its
bond obligation.
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financial impact

financial impact

Corporate Action
& Use of Public Funds

There were two corporate actions during the
year. In the first quarter this year there was
IFC’s debt conversion to equity amounting
to Rp.139,459,908,560, which has further
strengthened the Bank’s capital.

The second is BTPN’s Rp.1.25 trillion bond
issue. This consisted of two tranches. The first
was a 3 year tenor bond of Rp.525 billion with
a coupon rate of 7.75% and the second was

a 5 year tenor bond or Rp.725 billion with a
coupon rate of 8.25%. The funds from these
corporate actions were used to better match
fund the Bank’s more longer term assets with
longer term Lliabilities.

Capital Structure

On 9 March 2012, the Bank issued

176,670,117 new shares to the International
Finance Corporation (IFC) as part of their
Rp139,459,908,560 debt conversion.As a result,
the Bank’s shareholding structure becomes TPG
Nusantara S.a.r.L. with 57.9% ownership, IFC
with 3% and the public with 39.1%. The Bank’s
capital increases 38% from Rp.5.6 trillion as

of end-2011 to Rp.7.7 trillion a year later. This
translates into a capital adequacy ratio of
21.5%. The Bank’s capital level is sufficient to
fund its loan growth in 2013.

In case the Bank needs to raise capital for
further expansion in the future, as a publicly
listed company, the Bank may raise tier-1
capital through rights issue or tier-2 capital
through subordinated loans and/or other
instruments.

Dividend Policy

BTPN'’s majority shareholders have committed
not to declare dividends until 2013, provided
that the ROE can be maintained at a
competitive level. All net profits now are
reinvested back the bank to ensure there is
sufficient capital to fund further growth.

Infrastructure

BTPN’s capital expenditure for 2012 totals
Rp.317 billion and used for branch and outlet
expansion as well as Information Technology
investment.

TOTAL btpn purna bakti BRANCHES

Before 2012 411
New in 2012 22
TOTAL 433

TOTAL btpn mitra usaha rakyat BRANCHES

Before 2012 570
New in 2012 33
TOTAL 603

TOTAL btpn syariah BRANCHES

Before 2012 3
New in 2012 2
TOTAL 5



_
TOTAL btpn sinaya BRANCHES

Before 2012 24
New in 2012 12
TOTAL 36

Material Regulatory and
Accounting Policy changes

Bank Indonesia’s regulatory changes on
raising the down payment requirements for
mortgages and motor vehicle loans doesn’t
impact BTPN as the Bank does not provide
these loans. As for Accounting Policy changes
there were no changes that materially
impacted the reporting of the Bank financials.

Marketing Aspects

The Bank strives to maintain and expand

its market share in loans and funding by
enhancing existing products and services

and serve potential new segments which are
under-served by other banks. BTPN’s market
share of loans was 1.43% in 2012, an increase
from 1.38% in 2011. Its market share of

To keep up-to-date with the
latest information, one of
BTPN'’s customers utilizes
the brochures provided in
the branches that spread all
over Indonesia.

customer deposits increased to 1.40% in
2012 from 1.28% in 2011.

Through BTPN'’s branch network and
outlets, the Bank informs and promotes
the public about its various products

and services. The Bank also uses
advertisements in major publications

and other electronic and non-electronic
media as well. At our btpn sinaya branches
on the funding side, the Bank conducts
periodic events for customers, covering
topics that are of interest to them. This
year the Friends of btpn sinaya program
was just started and would be expanded
more in 2013. In this program, customers
can participate directly in our daya
programs by sharing their experiences

or help market some of the products
produced by our btpn syariah - tunas usaha
rakyat customers.

Subsequent Events

There are no material subsequent events
to report after 31 December 2012 closing
of the Bank’s audited financials.

103

btpn annual report 2012



104

btpn annual report 2012

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
2013 business outlook

2013 business
outlook

Grow existing business: BTPN plans
to maintain its existing position in the
purna bakti and mitra usaha rakyat
segment. More btpn purna bakiti
branches will be converted and used
as community centers next year.

In 2013, external market uncertainties cloud
the horizon. However, the economic growth
forecast for next year, in spite of the Euro
zone problems, is expected to be around
6.3%.1n 2012,the economy grew 6.2%, down
from 6.5% a year ago. Inflation was kept at a
manageable 4.3% year-on-year, which allowed
Bank Indonesia to maintain its SBI benchmark
rate at 5.75% since February 2012.

The country’s trade balance experienced

a deficit of USD1.6 billion in 2012 due to
weakening commodity and mineral prices
and increased oil imports. As a result, the
Rupiah weakened, closing at Rp.9,670 by end

of December 2012 and the country’s foreign
exchange reserves ending at USD 112.8 billion.

In the meantime, the composite index of the
Indonesia Stock Exchange rose 13% for the
year reaching 4,317 boosted by foreign inflows.

In 2012, banking industry’s loans grew 23%,
while its customer deposits grew at a lower
16%, resulting in a rise in the sector’s Loan to
Deposit Ratio (LDR) to 83.6% from 79% a year
ago. Profits also rose with net profits growing
24% while net interest margins reached 5.5%.
Next year, the Bank doesn’t expect much
change to loan growth for the banking industry.



This year, asset quality improved slightly with
the industry’s non-performing loan (NPL)
dropping to 1.9%, while capital adequacy ratio
(CAR) levels lowered slightly to 17.4%, driven
by the high loan growth this year.

The rise in the sector’s LDR, reflects tighter
competition for deposits, which will place
continued pressure on bank net interest
margins going forward.

On the regulatory front, the government

has tightened its monitoring of the sector,
requiring higher down payments for mortgage
and motor vehicle loans and coming up with
different capital requirements for different
classification of banks and tying up the capital
required for different types of bank licenses.

Banks also are required to carry a productive
loan portfolio, whose percentage is
determined based on a bank’s category and
an additional requirement for all banks to
allocate 20% of their loan portfolio to micro
small and medium companies.

In 2012, the Financial Services Authority or
OJK was established and next year it will start
to oversee the non-bank financial sector. OJK
will effectively monitor the banks in 2014. This
would leave Bank Indonesia to focus largely on
monetary policy and bank systemic issues.

BTPN Priorities for 2013

In 2012, BTPN achieved financial performance
better than targeted in the Business Plan
submitted to the central bank because total
loans were 4% higher than target which was

supported by total funding which was also
higher than target by 9%. In 2013, the Bank
expects its total loans to grow by 21%, while
total funding to grow by 16%.

Sustain high quality growth: BTPN plans

to maintain its strong position in both the
Pension and Micro segments. More btpn

purna bakti branches will be designated as
community centers next year. While, btpn mitra
usaha rakyat will be expanding into the lower
segment of the Small Medium Enterprise
segment as their existing btpn mitra usaha
rakyat customers grow into this segment.

btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat program will
continue to be rolled out in 2013 towards other
parts of the country starting in South Sumatera.

Strengthen daya program: The Bank will
continue to improve and expand the daya
programs as an integral part of daily business
activity. This will be done across all the Bank’s
business and support units.

Explore inorganic growth and innovate new
business models: Next year, the Bank will
be looking for opportunities to acquire new
businesses so as to broaden its markets and
services as well as to continuously innovae
and coume out with new business models.

Strengthen Bank infrastructure network and

capabilities: The Bank will continue to invest
in improving the productivity and quality of

its Human Capital and the effectiveness and

reach of its Information Technology network.
In 2013, the Bank hopes to launch its mobile
banking platform, btpn WOW!.
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We provide our customers
with opportunities to grow
and raise their potential
so they can grow their
micro business and
achieve a healthier and
better life.



Good Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report

Committee Reports

Corporate Secretary

Compliance Report

Internal Audit Report

Risk Management

Social, Environment and Management System
e Customer Protection Practices
e Employment Practices

e Environment Protection Practices

Corporate Governance Implementation Report
of Sharia Business Unit
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good corporate governance

good corporate
governance

Background

Corporate Governance is a key factor for a company to
achieve long-term performance and sustainable growth.
The Corporate Governance framework is influenced

by the legal system, shareholder and stakeholders

as well as a company’s culture, vision and mission.

This framework tends to emphasize transparency and
efficiency, in line with prevailing laws and regulations.

In 2012, BTPN has embarked on several initiatives

to improve the Bank’s Corporate Governance,among
others updating the Guidelines and Procedures for both
the Board of Commissioners and Directors, arranging
key initiatives in monitoring and reporting Corporate
Governance activities to Management on a periodic
basis and setting up the Information Management and
Security policy to better manage and effectively ensure
the security of information. We have reviewed the Code
of Ethics and implemented an e-refreshment Code of
Ethics for all employees in order to improve adherence
to ethical values.

BTPN positions itself as a corporate citizenship, where
through its daya program, the Bank commits to not only
improve its economic value but also the welfare and
quality of life of its surrounding community. A more
detailed explanation is provided in the chapter on daya
on this Annual Report.
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governance report

Corporate Governance Structure

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
(GMS)
In 2012, BTPN held one Annual GMS.

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
The Annual GMS was held on 4 April 2012 that

resulted in the following decisions:

1. Approved the Bank’s 2011 Annual
Report,including the Board of
Commissioners’s 2011 supervisory report,
which is included in the 2011 Annual
Report.

2. Ratified the Bank’s Financial Report for
the financial year ending December 31,
2011 that has been reviewed and audited
by the Public Accountant Firm Tanudiredja,
Wibisana & Rekan (Pricewaterhouse
Coopers).

3. Released and discharged (acquit et
decharge) the Board of Directors and Board
of Commissioners for the financial year
ending 31 December 2011.

4. Determined the Bank’s net profit
amounting to Rp.1,400,061,919,697
and approved the appropriation of net
profit amounting to Rp.707,000,000 as
reserves and the remaining net profit of
Rp.1,399,354,919,697 as retained earnings.

5. Appointed Mulia Salim as a Director of the
Bank.

6. Granted power and authority to the
Board of Commissioners to determine
the compensation and benefits including
bonus for the Board of Directors members

for the financial year 2012, taking into
account the recommendation of the Bank’s
Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

Determined the compensation and
benefits including bonus of the Board

of Commissioners for the financial year
2012,ending 31 December 2012,up to a
maximum of Rp.21,850,000,000 before
tax considering the recommendation of
the Bank’s Remuneration and Nomination
Committee.

Granted power and authority to the Board
of Commissioners to appoint a public
accounting firm to review and audit the
Bank’s financial records for the year ending
31 December, 2012 and determine the
related fees and other terms of said public
accounting firm.

Board of Commissioners and
Directors

Fit and Proper Test

As of 31 December 2012, all Board of
Commissioners and Board of Directors members
have fulfilled the Fit and Proper Test.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Duties and Responsibilities of Board of
Commissioners

a.

To ensure the implementation of Good
Corporate Governance at every business
unit of the Bank and at all levels of the
organization.

To monitor the implementation of Board
of Directors duties and responsibilities as
well as providing advice to the Board of
Directors.
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c. Todirect,monitor and evaluate the composition, criteria and independence
implementation of the Bank’s strategic in line with Bank Indonesia regulations.
policies. The number of Board of Commissioners
d. To provide sufficient time to fulfill its duties members is 6 persons, where 3 or 50%
and responsibilities optimally. are Independent Commissioners. The
e. To ensure Board of Directors has followed Inde.pendent Commlésm’ners has fulfilled
. . . the independence criteria based on
up on audit findings and recommendations 8 2 LK -
of the Internal Audit Unit, external auditor, apepam regulations.
Bank Indonesia and/or other monitoring + Changes and appointments of members
authorities. of the Board of Commissioner follow the
o recommendations of the Remuneration
Board of Commissioners Independence and Nomination Committee.
BTPN h.a\s comp.lled with p.revalllng laws anfj e Board of Commissioners and Board of
regulation relat.lng. to the independence of its Directors members have no family ties up
Board of Commissioners: to the second degree with other Board of
« Board of Commissioners members of Commissioners and/or Board of Directors
BTPN have fulfilled the required number, members.
[aV]
S
£ Composition of Board of Commissioners
& The composition of Board of Commissioners as of 31 December 2012 is as follows:
IS
2
S BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
§ Name Position Effective Date
o]
Prof. Dorodjatun Kuntjoro- President Commissioner
: J ) o 15 May 2006
Jakti PhD. (Independent Commissioner)
Harry Hartono Independent Commissioner 14 December 2004
Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah Independent Commissioner 1 May 2009
Ashish Jaiprakash Shastry Commissioner 10 December 2008
Ranvir Dewan Commissioner 10 December 2008
Sunata Tjiterosampurno Commissioner 10 December 2008

Board of Commissioners Supervisory and Recommendation Report

The Board of Commissioners has actively supervised the management and operations of BTPN
as well as provided advice to the Board of Directors. The supervision was done directly through
the monitoring of follow-ups on Board of Commissioners recommendations to the Board of
Directors, as well as through the established Committees. In 2012, the Board of Commissioners
has supervised strategic aspects of the Bank,among others:

e Financial Performance; Business Unit reports (btpn purna bakti,

+  Risk Management Framework; btpn mitra usaha rakyat, btpn syariah -

e Review the Compliance Report and tunas usaha rakyat and btpn sinaya);



Review and approve the Bank’s 2013 -
2015 Business Plan;

Assess the adequacy of the internal
control system;

Follow up developments on internal and
external audit findings;

Review empowerment business strategy
on each business segment through the
daya program.

Board of Commissioners has provided several
recommendations, including among others:

e Appointment of Public Accounting
Firm of Tanudiredja, Wibisana & Rekan
(Pricewaterhouse Coopers) as External
Auditor, based on recommendation from
the Audit Committee.

Remuneration and benefits for Board

of Directors members, compensation

of Sharia Supervisory Board and
compensation and benefits for

Board of Commissioners for year

ending 31 December 2012, based on
recommendation from the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee.

Composition of Board of Directors

GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
corporate governance report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors Duties and
Responsibilities

Board of Directors has duties and
responsibilities,among others:

a.

Board of Directors takes full responsibility
for managing the Bank.

Board of Directors has obligations to
manage the Bank according to the authority
and responsibility outlined in the Bank’s
Articles of Association and prevailing laws
and regulations.

Board of Directors has obligations to
implement Good Corporate Governance
principles in all Bank activities across all
levels of the organization.

Board of Directors are obligated to follow
up on audit findings and recommendations
from the Internal Audit Unit, external
auditor,and audit results from Bank
Indonesia and/or audit results of other
authorities.

Composition of Board of Directors as of 31 December 2012 is as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name Position Effective Date
Jerry Ng President Director 29 September 2008
Ongki Wanadjati Dana Deputy President Director 29 September 2008
Djemi Suhenda Deputy President Director 29 October 2009
Anika Faisal Compliance Director 29 September 2008
Mahdi Syahbuddin Director 29 September 2008
Kharim Indra Gupta Siregar Director 29 September 2008
Arief Harris Tandjung Director 8 April 2010
Hadi Wibowo Director 14 April 2010
Asep Nurdin Alfallah Director 25 February 2011

Mulia Salim

Director

4 April 2012
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Training for Board of Commissioners and Board of Commissioners and Board of
Board of Directors Directors meetings
In line with improving competencies and to Board of Commissioners held regular
support the implementation of duties and meetings with the Board of Directors as
responsibilities, Board of Commissioners part of its supervisory function on strategic,
and Board of Directors members periodically financial, operations, compliance and
participate in training programs, such as corporate governance aspects. In 2012 Board
conferences and strategic seminars in 2012 of Commissioners meetings were attended
including training in Risk Management, in person by all Board of Commissioners
Leading Change & Organizational Renewal members in two out of four meetings.
leadership training at Harvard Business )
School, Berkeley Nanyang Advance The follo?/whg table shows total Bpard
Management Programme 2012, Leading Team of Co.mmlfsmners and Board of Directors
and various internal workshops. meetings in 2012 and the attendance of each
Commissioner and Director.
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS
o~ BOC Meetings BOD Meetings
S 4 46
?-). Board of Commissioners Attendance Attendance
E Prof. Dorodjatun Kuntjoro-Jakti PhD 4/4 =
c
& Harry Hartono 4/4 -
c
o
a Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah 4/4 -
Ashish Jaiprakash Shastry 4/4 -
Ranvir Dewan 3/4 -
Sunata Tjiterosampurno 4/4 -
Board of Directors Attendance Attendance
Jerry Ng 4/4 34/46
Ongki Wanadjati Dana 4/4 42/46
Djemi Suhenda 4/4 42/46
Anika Faisal 4/4 38/46
Mahdi Syahbuddin 1/4 44/46
Kharim Indra Gupta Siregar 2/4 41/46
Arief Harris Tandjung 2/4 37/46
Hadi Wibowo 0/4 44/46
Asep Nurdin Alfallah 1/4 35/46
Mulia Salim *) 0/4 30/34

*Mulia Salimeffective as of 4 April 2012
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The decision on remuneration and other benefits follows decisions made by shareholders determined
in the General Meeting of Shareholders and takes into account recommendations provided by the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Rupiah Amount Received (Gross) in 1 year

. Board of Commissioners Board of Directors
Type of Remuneration and

Other Benefits Number of Number of
Commissioners Directors?
as of 31 December 2012 Rupiah (Million)  as of 31 December 2012 Rupiah (Million)

1. Remuneration (salary, 6 17,544 10 67,607
allowance, bonus, tantiem,
severance package, etc
receive in cash).

2. Other facilities (housing,
transportation, health
insurance and etc).

a) Can be owned 6 623 10 7,051
b) Cannot be owned 6 81 10 276
TOTAL 6 18,248 10 74,934

*Number of Directors: Period 1 January - 3 April 2012 =9 directors, Period 4 April - 31 December 2012 = 10 directors

REMUNERATION AND OTHER BENEFITS AMOUNT PER PERSON IN 1 YEAR
(Rupiah) Number of Commissioners  Number of Directors

Above 2 billion 6 9
Above 1 billion up to 2 billion - iz
Above 500 million up to 1 billion - -
Below 500 million = =

2Total of remuneration and benefit for the member of Board of Directors who served less than 1 year (4 April - 31 December 2012)

REMUNERATION POLICY

Note Ratio®
Highest - lowest employee salary 68.83
Highest - lowest director salary 2.28
Highest - lowest commissioner salary 1.37
Highest Director - Highest Employee salary 2.90

3Ratio of highest and lowest salaries of members of Board of Commissioners and Board of Directors and permanent employees
as of December 31,2012 based on monthly net salary
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SHARE OWNERSHIP, FINANCIAL RELATIONS AND FAMILY RELATIONS BY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBERS

As of 31 December 2012, no Board of Commissioners nor Board of Directors member owns at the least
5% in BTPN and other banks, other financial companies or companies domiciled in Indonesia or overseas.

Board of Commissioners and Board of Directors members have no family ties up to the second
degree with other Board of Commissioners, Board of Directors members and/or the controlling
shareholder of Bank BTPN.

BTPN share ownership of Board of Commissioners and Board of Directors as of 31 December
2012 is as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name Position No. of shares Percentage
Jerry Ng President Director 31,807,500 0.54%
Ongki Wanadjati Dana Deputy President Director 3,255,000 0.06%
Djemi Suhenda Deputy President Director 3,360,000 0.06%
Anika Faisal Compliance Director 2,100,000 0.04%
Mahdi Syahbuddin Director 2,627,000 0.04%
Kharim Indra Gupta Siregar Director 1,130,500 0.02%
Arief Harris Tandjung Director 1,975,000 0.03%
Hadi Wibowo Director 2,578,500 0.04%
Asep Nurdin Alfallah Director 2,500 0.00%
Mulia Salim Director 782,500 0.01%

Management relation structure in business group is as follows:

Name BTPN TPG Nusantara S.a.r.l.
Prof. Dr. Dorodjatun Kuntjoro-Jakti PC/IC =
Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah IC -
Harry Hartono IC =
Ranvir Dewan C - Descr'pt',on: o
} ; PC : President Commissioner,
Ashish Jaiprakash Shastry c - IC : Independent Commissioner;
Sunata Tjiterosampurno (¢} - C : Commissioner,
Jerry Ng PD _ PD : President D|reF:tor, .

. o DPD : Deputy President Director
Ongki Wanadjati Dana DPD - CD : Compliance Director;
Djemi Suhenda DPD - D : Director.

Anika Faisal CD -

- : Does not serve as the

Asep Nurdin Alfallah
Mulia Salim

Mahdi Syahbuddin D - management in the
Kharim Indra Gupta Siregar D - Controlling Shareholder
Arief Harris Tandjung D - (TPG Nusantara S.a.rl)
Hadi Wibowo D =

D

D



Share Option

Share Option is an option to purchase shares
by Board of Commissioners, Board of Directors
members and Executive Officers that is done
through a share offer or share option offer
under a compensation scheme approved by
GMS and/or Articles of Association. As of 31
December 2012, there were no share options
issued to any Board of Commissioners, Board of
Directors member nor to any Executive Officer.

Regulation Changes with
Significant Impact on BTPN
Up until the publication of this Annual
Report, there has been no changes that
would significantly impact the financial
condition of BTPN.

Changes in Accounting Policies
Details of significant accounting policies

are described in note No. 2 Financial Report
BTPN 2012.

Prime lending rate is as follows:

PRIME LENDING RATE

GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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External Auditor

To produce its 2012 audited financial statements,
BTPN appointed the KAP Tanudiredja, Wibisana &
Rekan (a member firm of PwC global network),
registered with Bank Indonesia and Bapepam & LK.
The appointment was approved in the AGMS on 4
April 2012 based on the Board of Commissioners’s
and Audit Committee recommendation. The total fee
of the Consolidated Financial Report audit in 2012
amounted to USD 275,000 excluding 10% VAT fee.

The appointment of KAP Tanudiredja, Wibisana &
Rekan (a member firm of PwC global network) as
external auditors was done in 2010.

The Public Accountant has carried out the
audit independently and in accordance to the
regulations, as well as the work agreement and
scope, which has been agreed upon.

Providing Funds to Related Parties
BTPN has consistently considered the adequacy of
its capital and portfolio diversification/distribution
in issuing loans and in 2012 there has been no
provision of funds to related parties or breach over
the Legal Lending Limit.
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Dec 2011 Dec 2012
Component
. Retail Credit Non Retail Credit Non
Mortgage Mortgage
1. Cost of Credit 11.4% 10.4% 9.3% 9.1%
2. Overhead Fee 6.2% 7.3% 5.4% 7.0%
3. Profit Margin 3.0% 2.0% 3.0% 2.0%

4.  Prime Lending Rate 20.6% 19.7% 17.7% 18.0%
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Internal Fraud
BTPN continues to strengthen its internal control system as implementation of Risk Management
Practices and other efforts which not only prevents but also detects and investigates as well as
improving the system as part of the strategy integral to control fraud guided by the 4 pillars of
Anti Fraud Strategy Bank BTPN, which are:
1. Prevention;
2. Detection;
3. Investigation, Reporting and Sanctions;
4. Monitoring, Evaluation and Follow-up
The table below summarize the internal fraud cases in BTPN for 2012.
INTERNAL FRAUD
Total Cases Involving
Internal Fraud Permanent Non-permanent
. Management
in 1 year* Employees Employees
[aV]
o
o Resolved - - 15 6 - -
)
Q
2 Internal process - - - - - -
©
>
% Not yet finalized - - - - - -
g— Followed up through 3
legal process
TOTAL INTERNAL
- - 1 - -
FRAUD 8 6
*Fraud cases with nominal amount above Rp.100 million
Code of Ethics 3. Creating a Conducive Working Environment

3.1 Fair Treatment of all Employees
3.2 Anti Discrimination and Harassment
3.3 Security in the workplace
3.4 Usage of Company Facilities
3.5 External Activities
4.Managing & Securing Information

In line with the efforts to apply good corporate
governance, while building behaviour fitting the
BTPN ethical standards, the Board of Directors
have reviewed and agreed on a revised ethical
code in December 2012.

The Code of Ethics acts as a guideline for 5. Relationship with Customer and
employee attitude and behavior. The moral Stakeholders

principals within the Code of Ethics applies to 5.1 Relationships with Customer

all employees and is the core element of BTPN’s 5.2 Anti-Money Laundering

culture which includes, but are not limited to: 5.3 Relationships among employees

5.4 Relationships with regulators
5.5 Corruption and Bribery
5.6 Giving and receiving gifts

1. Compliance & Risk Management
2. Conflict of Interest



Enforcement of Ethical Code

1.Roles and Responsibilities
2.Violation of Ethical Code

Whistle Blower

BTPN provides a whistle-blower channel
called “Speak Your Mind; a safe media which
guarantees secrecy to urge employees to
reveal issues related to misconduct and/

or fraud, including the suspicion of such
conducts. BTPN has a guide and standard
operation procedure to manage Whistle
Blower Media “Speak Your Mind".

Litigation Cases

Litigation cases are civil and criminal cases that
are followed up with legal due process. In 2012
BTPN has no significant litigation cases.

Conflict of Interest

Conflict of Interest are situations where there
are conflicts between the financial interest

of the company and the individual’s financial
interest of the Board of Commissioners, Board
of Directors, or controlling shareholders or

GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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affiliates of Board of Commissioners, Board of
Directors, or controlling shareholders. In 2012,
there were no conflict of interest transactions.

Share and Subordinated Bond Buy
Back

Share and Subordinated Bond Buy Back is an
effort to reduce the number of company issued
shares by buying them back. The buy back
process is done according to prevailing rules and
regulations. In 2012, the Bank did not conduct
any share nor any subordinated bond buy back.

Donating Funds to Social and
Political Activities

BTPN does not participate in political
activities and does not give donations for
political reasons. On the other hand, the Bank
practices its Corporate Social Responsibility
through daya, which is an important and
integral aspect of its businesses. A more
detailed explanation of the Bank’s daya
program is noted in this Annual Report and
the Bank’s Sustainability Report. Contribution
to social activities are as follows:

CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

No Program Total Cost (Rupiah) Percentage
1 Education and Religion 27 1,311,296,000 47%
2 Partnership 20 703,576,500 25%
3 Donation 3 85,000,000 3%
4 Sports 20 684,374,595 25%
TOTAL 70 2,784,247,095 100%

Self Assessment

As the Bank strives to improve and raise the quality of its Good Corporate Governance in
accordance with Bank Indonesia regulation, periodically BTPN conducts a Self Assessment of the
sufficiency of its Good Corporate Governance. So if there are areas requiring improvements, the
Bank could act accordingly. Based on the results of the self assessment, BTPN’s composite score
is 1.43 with predicate of very good. The following is the general results of the good corporate
governance self assessment report in 31 December 2012.
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General Conclusion of Corporate Governance Self Assessment Results

GENERAL CONCLUSION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SELF ASSESSMENT RESULTS

Weight ~ Rank  Score

No. Aspects Measured (@) (0)] (@) x (b) Notes
1. Implementation Duties 10.00% 1 0.100 Implementation of BOC duties and responsibilities through
and Responsibilities of BOC and Committee meetings was done effectively to
BOC. supervise and assess, among others, risk management,
internal control and the Bank’s performance. In addition,
BOC also reviewed the effectiveness of the Bank’s corporate
governance structure and made visits to branches to ensure
the policies and procedures are being implemented.
2. Implementation Duties 20.00% 2 0.400 In line with the Bank’s growing performance, the BOD
and Responsibilities of continues to apply prudential principles by strengthening
BOD. risk management quality, implement a compliance culture
and establish an internal control system that is robust as
g well as monitoring key initiatives in corporate governance.
[aV]
E_ 3. Completeness and 10.00% 1 0.100 Composition and competency of Committee’s at the BOC
E’ Realization of Committee and BOD level fulfills prevailing rules and criteria and is
§ Duties. in line with the complexity level of the Bank’s business.
E Implementation of Committee duties and responsibilities
%" is running effectively and is in line with the respective

Committee Charters and provides support to fulfill BOC
and BOD duties and responsibilities.
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Follow Up Plan Target Achievements

Strength of Corporate Governance Implementation

The BOC will work together with the BOD Ongoing BOC actively conducts its supervisory

to ensure that the Bank’s Business Plan and function either directly through Board
growth targets can be achieved and reflects meetings and visits as well as through the
the Bank’s long-term vision of the Bank to Committees established to assist the BOC in
become the best mass market bank. fulfilling its duties and responsibilities.
BOD will continue to improve the Bank’s Ongoing BOD manages the Bank through the
systems, procedures, risk management, implementation of prudential banking
compliance culture, implementation of GCG practices, risk management and

and best practices in operational policies and implementation of GCG principles

work process. consistently.

Realizing the important role of Committees Ongoing The BOC and BOD Committees are

at the BOC and BOD level, the Committee
function will continue to be optimized to
support the realization of BOC’s and BOD’s
duties and responsibilities, among others,
through self assessment reviews twice a year
to ensure the realization of Committee duties
and responsibilities follows the Guidelines and
Work Plan.

complete and is supported by competent
and independent Committee members
so the realization of duties can be done
effectively.
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GENERAL CONCLUSION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SELF ASSESSMENT RESULTS

Weight ~ Rank  Score
No. Aspects Measured (@) ((0)] (@) x (b) Notes

4. Addressing Conflict of 10.00% 1 0.100 Bank has the complete system and procedure policies to

Interest. address conflict of interest issues.
5. Implement Bank 5.00% 2 0.100 As a commitment to the strengthening of the Bank’s
Compliance Function. compliance culture, in all of the Bank’s business

activities and across all levels of the organization, the
Bank continuously conducts a program that raises the
compliance culture for all employees and management
of the Bank as well as improve the compliance culture
towards the implementation of Anti Money Laundering
and Terrorist Funding Prevention regulations.

btpn annual report 2012



GENERAL CONCLUSION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SELF ASSESSMENT RESULTS

Follow Up Plan Target Achievements
Every party should avoid conflict of interest Ongoing
situations and should they occur, those
involved are not allowed to make decisions
relating to those conflict of interest areas.
To improve the implementation of the Ongoing

compliance function, the Bank will launch

an ongoing program to strengthen the

Compliance Culture across all business

activities and at all levels of the Bank

organization focusing on:

Ensuring policies, rulings, internal Bank
system and procedures are in line with
Bank Indonesia rulings and prevailing
regulations.

Conducting training programs and
ongoing socialization to all employees and
Bank management, including programs
to raise human resource qualities and the
Compliance Unit’s organization.

Improving the application of APU & PPT
S0 it can be run more optimally, such as
training and socializing all employees
and bank executives, improving policy
and APU & PPT procedures in line with
regulatory provisions, including improving
and developing the AML support

system in line with the requirement and
development of the Bank’s business.

Strength of Corporate Governance Implementation

To protect the interest of shareholders,
Bank policy ensures that for each conflict
of interest transaction, related parties are
not allowed to make decisions and for
material decisions has first to get approval
from the General Meeting of Independent
Shareholders.

Responsibilities towards Bank compliance
should be embraced by all levels of the
organization, starting at the BOD, senior
management level down to the level of
the operating employee at every unit of
the organization and according to their
respective role and responsibilities.
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GENERAL CONCLUSION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SELF ASSESSMENT RESULTS

Rank Score

Aspects Measured b)  (@x(b)
6. Implementation of 5.00% 2 0.100 The Bank’s Internal Audit is carried out following Internal
Internal Audit Function. Audit Implementation Standards (SPFAIB), Internal Audit

Certification as well as the agreed Audit Plan. Audit is
conducted based on a risk based audit approach in the
audit planning process and audit fieldwork. With this risk
based approach, the thematic audit is done by evaluating
the business process more completely (end to end)

to improve the Bank’s controls, risk management and
governance process.

7. Implementation of 5.00% 1 0.050 The Audit by the Public Accountant is done independently

[aV]

P External Audit Function. and fulfills the Public Accountant’s professional standards

‘; and the audit results, scope and quality are very good.

g

@

T

>

c

C

©

a

B 8. Implementation of 7.50% 2 0.150 Risk Management Unit continues to develop its capability
Risk Management in managing the Bank’s entire risk, which, among others,
and Internal Control is through the implementation of the Operational Risk
Function. Management System (ORMS) application that can identify

the entire branch operational risk as well as an early
warning system to monitor market risk and liquidity.

9. Providing funds to 7.50% 1 0.075 Bank has a policy, system and procedure to deal with
Related Party and Large conflict of interest situations, as specified in the Board
Exposures. Manual and Code of Ethics.
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Follow Up Plan Target Achievements Strength of Corporate Governance Implementation

To improve the effective functioning of the Ongoing The Bank’s Internal Audit function has
Internal Audit, the following will be done: operated effectively, independently and
Develop integrated audit programs, objectively. The Internal Audit guideline is in
including the use of technological line with the minimum standards set by the
seluitare (Fat gie reeEe). SPFAIB (Standard Pelaksanaan Fungsi Audit
Intern Bank). Nevertheless, it is periodically
2 Bl G Tellieel ey reviewed and continuously improved to
nlteUgn ERRIeto g el celeing optimize the effectiveness and quality of
UET (EERUTESS Ceee g e i1 BN implementing the Internal Audit function.
business complexity.
The appointment of the Public Accountant Ongoing The audit done by the Public Accountant
through the AGMS is based on is done independently with the objective g
recommendation from the Audit Committee to provide certainty to management, g
through the BOC. To ensure independency, shareholders and stakeholders that the §
the appointment of the Public Accountant is Bank’s Financial Reports reflects fairly the %
for a maximum 5 (five) years. Bank’s financial condition and performance. g
a
To sharpen the management of risk Ongoing The Risk Management function ensures 8
management and develop, in stages, an that the Bank’s policy and procedure
integrated risk management that especially and transaction limits and authority are
focuses on operational risk so that an evaluated periodically and adjusted with the
improved risk management information system market condition.
can be created.
Bank will continuously ensure that there will Ongoing The setting of the Bank’s strategic focus is

be no violation of the Legal Lending Limit
for related party transactions and large loan
exposures

one of the main strategies in managing and
controlling risk at the Bank. BTPN'’s focus
on the mass market segment results in a
loan portfolio that is distributed evenly.
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GENERAL CONCLUSION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SELF ASSESSMENT RESULTS

Weight ~ Rank  Score

Aspects Measured (@) (b) (@) x (b)

10. Transparency of 15.00% 1 0.150 The Bank has policies and procedures on information
Bank Financial transparency, The Bank has transparently distributed its
and Non-Financial financial and non-financial condition, including its GCG
Condition, Good implementation report in a timely and accurate manner
Corporate Governance covering a scope in line with prevailing rules. Efforts to
Implementation Report disseminate information to the public are done through
and Internal Report. the distribution of Financial Report Publication, Annual

Report and Corporate Action Reports to the relevant
authorities.

11. Bank Strategic Plan 5.00% 2 0.100 The Bank’s business plan is based on its vision and

mission that is determined from the start to ensure
consistency among its long, medium and short-term
plans.

btpn annual report 2012

COMPOSITE SCORE 100% 1.425

The general results of Good Corporate Governance self assessment (including Sharia Business Unit’s Good
Corporate Governance self assessment) is done to fulfill Bank Indonesia Regulation No. 8/4/PBI/2006,
which has been amended partly with PBI No. 8/14/PBI/2006 and Bank Indonesia Circular No. 9/12/DPNP,
regarding the implementation of Good Corporate Governance for Commercial Banks, Bank Indonesia
Regulation No. 11/33/ PBI12009 and Bank Indonesia Circular no. 12/13/DPbs about the Good Corporate
Governance implementation for Sharia Commercial Bank and Sharia Business Units.



GENERAL CONCLUSION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SELF ASSESSMENT RESULTS

Follow Up Plan Target Achievements

Bank will continuously follow the transparant Ongoing
principle in accordance with prevailing

conditions and improve the existing

information system to keep up with the

developing business.

The Bank will continuously improve the Ongoing
capability of its information analytical system

and Budget Control, which is integrated with

its Financial Reporting system.

Strength of Corporate Governance Implementation

The provision of information to external
parties is fair, transparent, accurate
and timely so as to raise the trust of
shareholders and stakeholders

The Bank’s Business Plan is set up in a
realistic, comprehensive and measured
way that takes into account prudent
principles as well as the Bank’s Vision
and Mission to ensure a consistent
strategic direction

COMPOSITE PREDICATE : VERY GOOD

/A

PROF.DORODJATUN KUNTJORO-JAKTI PhD.
President Commissioner

JERRY NG
President Director
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Board of Commissioners’
Committees

The Board of Commissioners has established
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration

and Nomination Committee and the Risk
Monitoring Committee. Each Committee is
responsible for reviewing and monitoring as
outlined in their respective Committee Charter
roles and responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit
Committee

d. Review Internal Audit’s annual activity
plan and monitor its implementation.

e. Review the independence and objectivity
of the external auditor and whether the
audit performed is in accordance with
general accepted accounting principles.

f.  Assess the adequacy of the external audit
performed to ensure all risks have been
adequately considered.

g. Monitor and assess the implementation
of Board of Directors’s follow up on
audit findings from the internal, external
and Bank Indonesia auditors to provide

o . recommendations to the Board of
o a. Prepare annual activity plan approved by L
N o Commissioners.
£ Board of Commissioners.
[oN . . -
o b. Review and assess Bank’s financial Composition of Audit Committee
g information released to the public, such Composition, qualification and independency
= as financial reports, projections and other of the Audit Committee are in accordance
s financial information and ensure that the with Bank Indonesia and Bapepam & LK
- financial reports are in accordance with regulations. The Audit Committee is headed
prevailing accounting standards. by an Independent Commissioner and its
c.  Review Bank’s compliance with all members include two Commissioners and two

prevailing and applicable rules and
regulations in the capital markets and
other regulations relating to Bank activity.

independent parties that have the expertise in
the area of finance and banking.

The composition of the Audit Committee as of 31 December 2012 is as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Name Position Appointment Date

Chairman

25 March 2009
(Independent Commissioner)

Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah

Kanaka Puradiredja Member (Independent Party) 28 August 2006

Stephen Z. Satyahadi Member (Independent Party) 21 September 2011

Sunata Tjiterosampurno Member (Commissioner) 19 January 2009

Ranvir Dewan Member (Commissioner) 19 January 2009



Audit Committee Report

As part of Audit Committee’s supervision
function, the Committee has held 5 formal
meetings and performed 2 site-visits to

Bank branches in North Sulawesi and South
Sumatera. In those meetings the attendance
of the members has fulfilled the quorum,in
line with the prevailing rules and regulations.
The followings are the focus of the Committee
reviews and discussions:

a. FINANCIAL STATEMENT

1) Reviewed the draft of 2011 & 2012
Bank Financial Statement.

2) Reviewed the draft of Quarterly
Financial Statement in 2012 to be
published to public.

=

EXTERNAL AUDIT

1) Discussed accounting and audit
significant observations in 2011 &
2012 Bank’s Financial Statement Audit.

2) Discussed 2012 External Audit plan and
approve the appointment of External
Auditor.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings in 2012 as follows:

C.

INTERNAL AUDIT

1)

2)

Periodically monitored the progress of
internal audit

Discussed 2012 audit results, including
the evaluation result of Bank’s
compliance to related regulation
Monitored the progress of 2011-2012
audit follow-up action

Monitored the progress of Intenal
Audit’s 2012 Key Initiative

Provided feedback and approved 2013
Internal Audit Plan

Provided feedback to draft of 2013
Audit Rating. This new rating is based
on Risk Grading Matrix framework as to
ensure alignment on risk management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S WORK PLAN

To continue the supervision function, Audit
Committee has established the Work Plan
for 2013 through various reviews and also
visit to branches.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Name
Meeting Frequency
Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah
Kanaka Puradiredja
Stephen Z. Satyahadi
Sunata Tjiterosampurno

Ranvir Dewan

Meeting Attendance

5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
4/5
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RISK MONITORING COMMITTEE

Duties and Responsibilities of the Risk
Monitoring Committee

a. Prepare annual Committee activity plan
approved by Board of Commissioners.

f.  Monitor and evaluate the performance
of the Risk Management Committee and
the Risk Management Unit in order to
give recommendations to the Board of
Commissioners.

g. Evaluate the Bank’s Risk Management

b. Provide independent professional opinion policy at least once a year.
to the Board of C issi t
o the Boardo ommlss'lc?ners or? reports h. Evaluate Board of Directors’s
or related matters pertaining to risk e . ,

responsibility in implementing the Bank’s

management presented by the Board of Risk Management policy at least once
Directors as well as identify issues that every quarter
require the attention of the Board of va ’
Commissioners. Composition of Risk Monitoring

c. Evaluate the risk appetite and limits, Committee
which _mL.’St be approved by the Board of Composition, qualification and independency
Commissioners. of the Risk Monitoring Committee are in

d. Analyze the effectiveness of the accordance with Bank Indonesia regulations.
Risk Management Unit and the Risk The Risk Monitoring Committee is headed
Management Committee. by an Independent Commissioner and its

e. Evaluate the compatibility of the members include two Commissioners and two

Bank’s risk management policy with its
implementation.

Independent Parties that have the experience
in the area of finance and risk management.

The composition of the Risk Monitoring Committee as of 31 December 2012 is as follows:

RISK MONITORING COMMITTEE

Name Position Date Appointment

Chairman

Harry Hartono
£ (Independent Commissioner)

19 January 2009

Kanaka Puradiredja Member (Independent Party) 21 September 2011

Stephen Z. Satyahadi Member (Independent Party) 30 June 2009
Sunata Tjiterosampurno Member (Commissioner) 19 January 2009
Ranvir Dewan Member (Commissioner) 19 January 2009

Risk Monitoring Committee Report
In 2012, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee held 5 meetings discussing the following:
¢ Evaluate Risk Management policies and their implementation,among others standard risks,

covering credit risk, operational risk, market and liquidity risk, as well as other risks, Risk
Based Bank Rating and Risk Profile.



»  Monitor Risk Management certification for executive officers including the Board of Directors

and the Board of Commissioners.

e Monitor and evaluate the task of the Risk Management Committee and Risk Management
Unit in establishing and monitoring Credit Risk for each business, market and liquidity risk,
operational risk as well as the Bank’s risk profile each quarter.

e Monitor bank soundness and compliance of the bank on a periodic basis.

e Review the Risk Monitoring Committee work plan for 2013.

The Risk Monitoring Committee held 5 meetings in 2012 as follows:

RISK MONITORING COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Name Meeting Attendance

Meeting Frequency
Harry Hartono

Kanaka Puradiredja
Stephen Z. Satyahadi
Sunata Tjiterosampurno

Ranvir Dewan

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Duties and Responsibilities of the
Remuneration and Nomination
Committee

a. Relating to remuneration policies

1) Perform an evaluation of the
remuneration policy.

2) Provide recommendations to the Board
of Commissioners regarding:

- Board of Commissioners and Board
of Directors and Shariah Supervisory
Board remuneration policies to be
submitted to the AGMS.

- Executive Officers and employees
remuneration policies as a whole
to be submitted to the Board of
Directors.

1)

5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
4/5

. Relating to nomination policies.

Prepare and recommend a system and
procedure for selecting and/or replacing
members of the Board of Commissioners
and Board of Directors to the Board of
Commissioners then to be submitted to
the GMS.

Recommend prospective members of the
Board of Commissioners and/or Board of
Directors to the Board of Commissioners
to be submitted to the GMS.

Recommend Independent Parties
who will become members of Audit
Committee and Risk Monitoring
Committee.

Recommend prospective members of the
Sharia Supervisory Board to the Board of
Commissioners to be submitted to the
GMS.
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c. Committee must ensure that the Composition of Remuneration and
remuneration policy complies with the Nomination Committee
following: Composition, qualification and independency
1) Financial performance and reserve of the Remuneration and Nomination
formation as stipulated in prevailing Committee is in accordance with Bank
rules and regulations. Indonesia regulations. The Remuneration
2) Individual work performance. and Nomination Committee is headed by an
3) Fairness compared to peer groups Independent Commissioner and its members
within and outside the Bank. include one Independent Commissioner, two

Commissioners and one Executive Officer
that have the experience in remuneration and
nomination as well as succession planning.

4) Take into consideration long-term
goals and strategies of the Bank.

The composition of Remuneration and Nomination Committee as of 31 December 2012 is as follows:

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Name Position Appointment Date

Chairman
Prof. Dorodjatun Kuntjoro-Jakti PhD. l L 19 January 2009
(Independent Commissioner)

Member (Independent
Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah (indep 25 March 2009
Commissioner)

Ashish Jaiprakash Shastry Member (Commissioner) 19 January 2009
Sunata Tjiterosampurno Member (Commissioner) 19 January 2009
Dewi Nuzulianti Member (Executive Officer) 15 February 2010

Remuneration and Nomination Committee Report

In 2012, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review and provide
recommendations to the Board of Commissioners on the following:

¢ Remuneration and benefits for Board of Directors members, compensation for the Sharia
Supervisory Board and the compensation and benefits for Board of Commissioners members.

¢ Review 2012 performance, employee demographics, training, staff turnover analysis,
recruitment and union issues.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee held 1 meeting in 2012 as follows:

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Name Meeting Attendance

Meeting Frequency 1
Prof. Dorodjatun Kuntjoro-Jakti PhD. 11
Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah 11
Ashish Jaiprakash Shastry 11
Sunata Tjiterosampurno 11

Dewi Nuzulianti 1/1



Board of Directors’ Committees
The Board of Directors is assisted by
Committees that provide input and
recommendations in supporting the
implementation of Board of Directors duties
and responsibilities.

ASSET AND LIABILITY COMMITTEE
(ALCO)

Duties and Responsibilities:

1.

Develop, assess and determine Asset
Liability Management (ALMA) strategy,
guidelines and policies.

Monitor periodically the Bank’s liquidity
position through its primary and
secondary reserve trends.

Monitor periodically the development
and strategy over Third-Party Funds and
Loans.

Assess the development and projection of
the overall economic situation to help set
policy direction.

Determine limits and management
guidance as well as risk controls

that impact Liquidity Risk (Liquidity
Management), Market Risk (Interest Rate
Management) and Portfolio Risk (Earning
& Investment Management).

Evaluate and determine the price of Loan
Rates, Deposit Rates, and Fund Transfer
Price or Inter-Office Account Rates to
optimize deposit growth, minimize
funding cost, and manage the Bank’s
balance sheet structure in line with the
Bank’s ALMA strategy.

Review the Bank’s interest rate risk
position and ALMA strategy to ensure
that the Bank’s risk taking position is
consistent with theBank’s interest rate
risk management objectives.

10.

Review the Bank’s performance as well
as its asset and liability position so as to
determine the impact of ALCO decisions
on the Bank’s objectives.

Review the variance between the actual
results and the budget projection as well
as against the Bank’s business plan.

Submit information to the Board of
Directors about the development of rules
and regulation that impacts the ALMA
strategy and policy.

ALCO Report

In 2012, ALCO conducted 12 committee
meetings, which discussed, among others:

1.

A study on the process of excess fund
placement to multifinance and securities
company.

A study on the issuance of Shelf Registry
Bond | Phase 2 for IDR 1 trillion in Q2
2012

A study on the withdrawal of loan funds
from IFC in the amount equivelant of USD
100 million in Q1 2013

A study on the issuance of Shelf Registry
Bond | Phase 3 for IDR 750 billion in Q1
2013

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Duties and Responsibilities:

1.

Prepare risk management strategies,
policies and risk limits, including

for Sharia Business and Information
Technology as well as ongoing
improvements and updates.

Evaluate the suitability of Risk
Management policies and their
implementation.

Evaluate and provide recommendations
on transactions or activities that requires
Board of Directors approval.

Evaluate and provide recommendations
on transactions and activities that
deviates from the normal procedure.
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committee reports
Risk Management Committee Report 7. Review the performance and usage of
In 2012, the Risk Management Committee held Informatlon Technology to en.sure Its
11 meetings. Risk Management Committee use is supported and appropriate for the
meetings discussed the monitoring of 8 types needs of the bank.
of risk across all lines of business (including 8. Effort taken to fix [T-related problems
Sharia) as determined in the Risk Management that could not be fixed by business and
Policy and Bank Indonesia’s regulation. This support units. The committee facilitates
relates to Risk Management monitoring links and communication between units.
as well as the Board of Directors’s active 9. Review the availability of human
monitoring of the Bank’s implementation of its resources related to the operation,
Risk Management policies and strategies. maintenance, and support of Information
Technology

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 10. Feedback on the process in relation to
STEERING COMMITTEE Information Technology Risk.
Duties and Responsibilities Information Technology Steering
Provide recommendations to the Board Committee Report

N . .

5 of Directors covering,among others, the In 2012, the Information Technology Steering

N 1 .

T following: Committee held 5 committee meetings

g— 1. An Information Technology Strategic that reviewed.and provided the following

E Plan that is appropriate with the Bank’s recommendations:

c .

& business strategy. 1. Evaluate the performance of the

c . . .

g 2. The formulation and policy for main IT Information Technology Directorate

procedures, like IT security and IT related
Risk Management.

3. Suitability of IT projects approved by the
IT Strategic Plan.

4. Suitability of IT project implementation
including a project plan (project charter)
that is agreed and incorporated in a
service level agreement.

5. Suitability of IT with the needs of the
Bank’s Information System Management
that supports business activity.

6. Effective measures to minimize risk
over the Bank’s IT investment, so that it
will contribute to achieving the Bank’s
business goals.

through observing four aspects;
Operational, End User Experience,
Business Enablement and Governance.

2. Evaluate the budget plan, investment and
expenditure of IT

3. Evaluate and approve the implementation
of relocating the IT Disaster Recovery Center

4. Approve the compliance of using licensed
software that will be implemented in
stages for 5 years

5. Advise and guide IT activities that
supports the Sharia business unit

6. Approve the implementation of
smartphone mobile application for mobile
banking



10.

11.

12.

Approve the preparation and
implementation of IT Strategic Plan 2013-
2016 to replace the IT Strategic Plan
2009-2012

Approve the implementation of the Core
Banking Sytem Review Project and to
expose Core Banking Review trend to
the Information Technology Steering
Committee

Advise and guide IT Branch Review/
Asessment activities as a base to increase
compliance control over IT in branches

Agreement in the implementation of an
annual Disaster Recovery drill

Approve the result of the information
security drill and agreed to discontinue it
Highlight the result of internal and
external audit focusing on the reduction
of operational risk factor

HUMAN CAPITAL COMMITTEE

Duties and Responsibilities:

1.

Determine policies, strategy and goals
relating to Human Capital. The policies
determined are specifically policies of a
strategic nature.

Approve the implementation of Human
Capital’s remuneration program.

Approve the deviation from company
policy on Human Capital, that exceeds
the authority of the division head and/or
directors in charge of Human Capital.

Human Capital Committee Report

In 2012, the Human Capital Committee held
15 meetings that discussed among others:

1.

Employee Remuneration (increase of
salary and bonus).

Monitor in the cost of labor
Increase in the number of Employees.

Leadership and Talent Management
Programs.

Implementation of Rewards Strategy
project.

Appointment of health and life insurance
for employees.

Grade Structure of employees

Cost and implementation of employee
training programs
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corporate secretary
In BTPN, the Corporate Secretary position is held by the Compliance Director,who is responsible for
distributing material information relating to the Bank’s performance. Please refer to the Board of
Directors Profile page for the Corporate Secretary’s detailed profile.
In 2012,the Corporate Secretary has effectively carried out duties as listed below:
e Ensured good relations with the Capital Market authorities and disclose important public
information to the Indonesia Stock Exchange.
¢ Followed the developments in the Capital Market, including prevailing regulations.
e Delivered required reports to the authorities as is required by a public company.
e Participated in the training programs held by the Indonesian Stock Exchange, Bapepam & LK and
Asosiasi Emiten Indonesia.
¢ Held the Mandatory Public Expose on 4 April 2012.
¢ Provided 24 information disclosure documents that were required to the public in accordance with
prevailing rules and regulations.
e Issued 17 press releases.
[aV]
S 2012 Press Release
% February ¢ Empowering Customers Support Strong BTPN Growth Performance - Loans Grew 30%
< » BTPN Raises Capabilities of Micro Entrepreneurs in Solo
o]

April e BTPN Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting - Commitment to Empower the Mass Market Segment
e Consistently Empowering the Mass Market Segment - Loans Grew 30%

May e BTPN launches Mass Market Empowering Program in Mataram
» BTPN officially opens btpn sinaya Denpasar branch - Providing Opportunities for Customers to
Participate in Empowering the Mass Market
e BTPN launches Empowering Program for Mass Market Customers in Malang
e BTPN Launches btpn purna bakti

June » BTPN Receives Two Awards from “Majalah Investor Best Bank Awards 2012”
» BTPN Raises Capabilities of Micro Entrepreneurs in Kendari

July e daya Program Drives BTPN Growth Performance- Loans Grew 28%
e BTPN Raises Capabilities of Micro Entrepreneurs in Ambon

September ¢ BTPN launches Mass Market Empowering Program in Banjarmasin

October ¢ BTPN Consistently Empowering Customers Records Strong Performance
e |FC Provides USD 100 million loan to BTPN for Providing Access to Financial Services for Low Income
Community and Small Entrepreneurs
e DPK BTPN Show Significant Growth
 btpn sinaya : Provides Opportunities for Customers to Participate in Empowering the Mass Market
Segment

November < BTPN Raises Pensioner Capabilities in Bekasi Through Entrepreneurial Training



2012 Information Disclosure

2012 INFORMATION DISCLOSURE
Month Activity

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Information Disclosure 9th Payment of Coupon from Bond Bank BTPN | Year 2009
Information Disclosure Certain Shareholder — Commissioner

Information Disclosure Explanation on Preparation before Bond expiry date

Information Disclosure 7th Payment of Coupon from Bond Bank BTPN Il Year 2010
Information Disclosure BTPN Receives Conversion Notice from International Finance
Corporation (IFC)

Information Disclosure 5th Payment of Coupon from Bond Bank BTPN Il Year 2010
Information Disclosure 3rd Payment of Coupon from Shelf Registry Bond | Bank BTPN
Year 2011

Information Disclosure 10th Payment of Coupon from Bond Bank BTPN | Year 2009

Information Disclosure Certain Shareholder - Director
Information Disclosure 8th Payment of Coupon from Bond Bank BTPN Il Year 2010
Information Disclosure 6th Payment of Coupon from Bond Bank BTPN Il Year 2010

Information Disclosure 4th Payment of Coupon from Shelf Registry Bond | Bank
BTPN Phase | Year 2011
Information Disclosure 11th Payment of Coupon from Bond Bank BTPN | Year 2009

Information Disclosure Provide Additional Information on Shelf Registry Bond | Bank
BTPN with Fixed Coupon Phase Il Year 2012

National Credit Rating Report on BTPN Bond
Information Disclosure 9th Payment of Coupon from Bond Bank BTPN Il Year 2010

Information Disclosure 7th Payment of Coupon from Bond Bank BTPN Il Year 2010

Information Disclosure 5th Payment of Coupon from Shelf Registry Bond | Bank
BTPN Phase | Year 2011

Sufficiency of Funds to Repay - Bond Bank BTPN | Year 2009 Seri A

Information Disclosure 12th Principal repayment Bond Serie A and Coupon Bond
Bank BTPN | Year 2009 Serie A & B

Information Disclosure 10th Payment of Coupon for Bond Bank BTPN Il Year 2010
Information Disclosure 1st Payment of Coupon for Self Registry Bond | Bank BTPN
Phase Il Year 2012

Information Disclosure 8th Payment of Coupon for Bond Bank BTPN 11l Year 2010

Information Disclosure 6th Payment of Coupon for Self Registry Bond | Bank BTPN
Phase | Year 2011
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Complying with prevailing rules and regulations
is one of the Bank’s commitment to apply Good
Corporate Governance Principal as stated in the
Bank GCG Manual. Non-compliance can result in
potential loss,both material and immaterial as a
result of sanctions from relevant regulators.

The responsibility for bank compliance lies at
all levels of the organization, from the Board of
Directors and senior management to operating
employees at every unit in the organization,
according to their respective duties and
responsibilities.

As a commitment to increasing compliance
culture in all business activities at all levels

in the organization, the Bank has promoted

the compliance culture on a periodic basis to

all employees. This is done through various
programs,among others, through training and/
or socialization of Bank Indonesia regulations to
the Board of Director and employees of the Bank,
communicated directly through email, bulletin
and other internal communication media.

To ensure that policies, procedures and
efforts are in line with Bank Indonesia
regulations and prevailing rules, the Bank
continuously tests policy plans and/ or
decisions issued by relevant units.

Relating to compliance on the implementation
of sharia principles at the btpn syariah -

tunas usaha rakyat, the Bank continuously
coordinates with the Sharia Supervisory Board,
among others reflected by the compliance
testing on whether the planned policy and
procedure over sharia products are in line with
the development of the tunas usaha rakyat
segment.

In addition, relating to complying with the
Anti Money Laundering and Terrorist Funding
Prevention efforts, the Bank has improved its
policy and procedures on these two areas,
including the strengthening of a system

that monitors data and transaction of bank
customers. Included in the campaign to
promote a compliance culture are the Anti
Money Laundering and Terrorist Funding
Prevention policies. Training programs are
launched in these two areas for all employees
and refreshment programs for those involved
with customer acquisition. This program

is carried out through class and internal
communication media.

In addition, the Bank has improved the policy
and procedure covering these two subjects,
including the improvement of data and
customer transaction monitoring system.

Efforts to strengthen the role of Compliance
continues to be carried out by the bank to

ensure the fullfilment of compliance against the
prevailing rules and regulations. Some of these
efforts include, but is not limited to,an increase in
human resources and implementation of training
programs for Compliance Unit employees

Based on the above,in 2012, the Bank’s
compliance level reflects the Bank’s fulfillment
towards its obligation to meet financial ratio
standards and its commitment addressed to
Bank Indonesia, including the fulfillment of its
obligation and commitment based on sharia
principles.
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BTPN’s Internal Audit is an independent unit,
which partners with Management to oversee
various Bank activities and identify potential
efficiencies that can be done to improve the
Bank’s performance. To do this, Internal Audit
evaluates BTPN’s risk management, internal
control effectiveness and business process
governance.

In its activities, BTPN’s Internal Audit follows
Internal Audit Implementation Standards
(SPFAIB), the Bank’s own Internal Audit
Charter and its agreed Audit Plan.

BTPN’s Internal Audit is responsible directly
to the President Director. On each audit
work, including its recommendation, opinion
and audit finding, this unit reports to the
President Director, Board of Commissioners,
Audit Committee and Compliance Director.
The Audit findings are also discussed
periodically with the Board of Directors and
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit unit
formulates its audit plan and conducts its
audit fieldwork based on a risk-based audit
approach. Using this audit approach, the
unit’s audit theme is based on an evaluation
of the Bank’s end-to-end business process
across the Bank, the effectiveness of its
controls, its risk management and corporate
governance process.

In 2012, Internal Audit has conducted audits of
processes in the Pension, Funding, MUR, Sharia
and Support functions (Operations, Compliance,
Finance, Human Capital and Information
Technology) at Head Office.

In conducting its duties, Internal Audit also
provides an advisory function by assessing new
products and new key initiatives of the Bank.

In its effort to expand the capacity of its
organization, Internal Audit has increased the
number of personnel by recruiting auditors
and senior auditors with audit and banking
experience.

In addition to strengthening the Internal
Audit’s function, the unit has conducted
several training programs to raise the unit’s
competency and audit process efficiency:

e Develop Internal Audit infrastructure
through the establishment of the Remote
Audit and Quality Assurance function.
Remote Audit analyzes data to provide

input and direction for audit investigations.

Quality Assurance in Internal Audit is to
ensure that the audit process is done in
accordance with adopted standards.

e Implemented Computer Assisted Audit
Techniques — CAAT to assist auditors in
processing and analyzing data.

e Continuously improving audit quality
by providing training to auditors on
risk management, audit skills, banking
knowledge and communication skills.
Training is conducted through various
programs in the form of class training
and workshops, risk management
certification, on the job observation and
sharing sessions taking into account the
suitability and needs of each auditor.
Training will be conducted continuously
in the coming years to improve Internal
Audit’s quality and effectiveness.
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Head of Internal Audit Unit is Merisa Darwis since
October 2011, She has a Certified Internal Audit
(CIA) from the Institute of Internal Audit, USA (lIA)
part 1 and has also followed training/certification
among others the Risk Management Certification
Level 4 (2010), Information Risk Management and
Anti Money Laundering (2009).

There are four units reporting to the Bank’s SKAI
Head.

The Audit Planning & Support unit is responsible
for developing audit methodology, performing data
analytics (or remote audit) and conducting quality
assurance exercise to ensure the quality of audit
results.

The Retail Business Audit unit performs audit works
within the Funding, Pension and TUR businesses.

The Micro and Small Business Audit unit perform
audit works for the mitra usaha rakyat business.

btpn annual report 2012

Finally, IT Operation & Support Function unit
is responsible for performing audits in the
supporting functions.

Every year, SKAI develops its Annual Audit
Planning based on risk based audit that
determine the risk level of key processes within
the Bank.The Audit plan is consulted with each
respective Business and Function Heads to
align with the overall business direction. The
Audit Plan is presented to the Bank’s BoD and
subject to the approval of the BoC and Audit
Committee.

In 2013 Internal audit will begin to work more
closely with Risk Management to map out the
risk ranking of key processes to determine audit
objectives. The second initiative is to introduce
a more refined ranking from 3 to 4 different
categories.

ORGANIZATION
STRUCTURE SKAI

Audit Planning & Retail Business

Audit Head

Support Head

President Director

SKAI Head

Audit Committee

[T Operation &
Support Function
Audit Head

Micro & Small
Business
Audit Head




risk management

Along with the rapid growth of BTPN and the roll out of
the btpn syariah - tunas usaha rakyat program, the Risk
Management unit continues to expand and strengthen
its ability to manage the various risk profiles of BTPN.

As a bank that provides loans only in Rupiah to pension,
micro and TUR customers, BTPN carries a loan portfolio
whose risk is granular and well diversified. There is no
foreign exchange risk and international trade transaction
risk. As a result, credit risk is less complex than a full
service foreign exchange licensed commercial bank.

Pension loans remain the major portion of BTPN’s
loan portfolio with 73% of total loans. These loans are
supported by regular monthly government pension
payments and further protected by a life insurance
policy. During the year, the focus was more towards
standardizing and improving risk management
implementation throughout its branch network.

For the btpn mitra usaha rakyat, which provides loans to
small scale entrepreneurs, the priority focus was towards
tightening their loan process and improving their loan
monitoring system.

For Sharia’s TUR business, 2012 was a year of rolling out
the program and closely monitoring the loan process and
systems.

Overall, BTPN continues to maintain its NPL level at 0.7%
similar to a year ago.

The Bank’s Operational Risk Management System
(ORMS), which identifies operational risk events across
the Bank’s network, is now in place and running well.

To address the industry’s inherent mismatch between
longer-term loans and shorter-term deposits, the Bank
has regularly issued long-term 3 to 5 year Rupiah
bonds in the market. As noted earlier, the Bank issued
two bonds totaling Rupiah 1.25 trillion this year. The
Bank continues to focus on investing in its branches to
attract deposits and maintain a sufficient level of liquid
assets. In 2012, with rapid loan growth, the Bank’s LDR
was kept at a manageable 87% level.

GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
risk management

In addition, the Bank has an early-warning system
in place to monitor market and liquidity risk, which
carries an escalation mechanism, when liquidity
issues arise. On a daily basis the Bank’s Treasury
unit monitors this system through its Market Risk
Management unit. These risks are monitored and
assessed monthly in the Bank’s Asset and Liability
Management Committee.

The Bank is cognizant of its strategic and reputation
risk and takes into account these risks when
planning ahead. With the more complex regulatory
environment, the Bank also makes sure it is updated
and understands the latest regulations and ensures
it complies and operates well within the Banking
sector’s regulatory parameters.

Each year, Risk Management reviews the adequacy
of the Bank’s risk management Policies, Contingency
Funding Plan, Disaster Recovery Center and makes
improvements accordingly.

At the Board of Directors level,a Risk Management
Committee monitors and manages Bank-wide
risk. A Risk Monitoring Committee at the Board of
Commissioner level oversees this Committee on a
periodic basis.

The Risk Management organization is divided into
three functional units under its management. The
direct reporting units are Market Risk, Operations Risk
and Portfolio Management Policy.

Risk Management works closely with business and
support units to monitor risk issues pertinent to each
unit. It also ensures that risk policies and procedures
as well as transaction and authorization limits are
reviewed periodically and adjusted depending on
prevailing market conditions.

More details on BTPN'’s risk management profile can
be found on information disclosure, page 302 of this
Annual Report.
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Customer Protection Practices

BTPN always places a strong focus
on treating the customers fairly
through comprehensive customer
protection practices.

At BTPN, the commitment in
protecting the interests of the
customers goes beyond simply
ensuring that customers fully
understand the features of our
products.

Our lending products are
integrated with BTPN’s social
program called Capacity to Grow.
In essence, borrowers not only
get loans but also training and
information program to help them
grow and improve their lives.

Borrowers in btpn purna bakti and
btpn mitra usaha rakyat receive
entrepreneurship training and
business franchise information

to help them improving their
business.

In btpn syariah - tunas usaha
rakyat, where most of low-income
customers have never been
exposed to banking services, we
invested considerable time to
develop a simple and easy to
understand approach to introduce
the benefits of banking products.
We help btpn syariah - tunas usaha
rakyat customers to build four

key behavior mindsets: Courage

to start a business, Discipline in
keeping commitments, Hardwork in
growing a business and Facilitate
in building group solidarity, which
are essential to enable them to
improve their welfare.

All loan products: Kredit Pensiun
Sejahtera for the pensioners;
Paketmu for micro and small
businesses; and Paket Masa Depan
for the grass-root community, are
complemented with credit life
insurance at no cost from leading
insurance firms, which offers
protection benefits in the event of
defaults triggered by mortality.

BTPN also operates a customer
complaint handling procedure
accessible nationally through the
branch network, call center, email
or post mail. Complaint handling
activities are measured and
monitored to ensure that customer
complaints can be resolved in the
shortest possible time. Complaints
are also handled in transparent
manner and periodically reported
to the Bank’s management and
Bank Indonesia.

During the year, complaints were
filed by the customers with the
following breakdown:

(until December 2012)

1%

0.3% / 0.2%

8% Wi

[ QY

2012 CUSTOMER COMPLAINT TREND

ATM

B purna bakti loans

= btpn mitra usaha rakyat loan
B Third Party Fund

©  Transactionals (RTGS, SKN)

®  Other

= btpn syariah - tunas usaha

rakyat




Employment Practices

BTPN EMPLOYMENT
PRACTICES

As a Bank with 17,000
employees, BTPN is committed
to the principle of equal
employment opportunities
to all employees, without
regard to their race, age,
ethnic background, religion,
gender, or any other personal
characteristics. This policy
applies to the Bank’s

hiring, promotion, people
development, assignment,
compensation and benefits
practices.

TRAINING INVESTMENT
We offer training and
education opportunities to
qualified individuals so that
every employee can achieve
their maximum potentials.
During 2012,Rp.103.99
billion was invested to people
development attended by
32,864 employees.

December 2012
—

EMPLOYEE STATISTICS BY GENDER
Top Management Officer/Supervisor

i 46 i 1,428
| 36 | 1,144

i 2012 |WI3 i PUIVE 1,131

[] 18 ] 886
Senior Management Clerical

i 323 j 5,402
(BN 2011 PEB I 5,183

6 115 i 8,080

[ 2011 88 [ 2011 3911
Management Number of Employees

i 1,677 j 8,869
Il o — 1491 ] 8,149

i 2012 BN i PUIVEE 10,045

[ 2011 568 [ 2011 5,471
EMPLOYEE STATISTICS BY EMPLOYMENT TERMS
Permanent Employees Contract Employees
14,000 4,914
12,193 1,427

TRAINING INVESTMENT

2012 2011

Number of Training Programs 1,796 1,260
Number of Participants 32,864 21,567
Total Man-days 93.014 61,652
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RECRUITMENT AND TERMINATION

2012 2011

9.563 4.552
4.269 2.726

Recruitment

Termination

We conduct annual employee
engagement surveys to measure the
Bank’s working environment and
develop the necessary action plans
to improve BTPN’s overall employee
engagement.

FREEDOM OF ASSOCIATION

BTPN respects the rights of its
employees to form and participate
in trade unions. Through our
relationships with the Labor Union,
we strive to sustain long term
development of the Bank based on
harmonious industrial relations.

BTPN's labor union, Serikat Pekerja
Bank Tabungan Nasional Tbk., is
registered at the Office of Manpower
and Transmigration registration
number 256/DPP. SPBTPN-CTT.22-
DISNAKER/2007 on 27th September
2007.

To strengthen industrial relatins, in 27th

October 2011 we completed the Bank’s first
Collective Labor Agreement with the labor union.
In addition, we promote regular discussions
between representatives of management and the
union. 12 meetings were held during the year,
attended by the union and management.

Environment Protection Practices

BTPN ensures that loans provided are not

used in activities that negatively impact the
environment. This commitment is specified in
the Bank’s credit policy and guidelines that
prohibit loan disbursements to activities which
may have negative impact to the environment.
In addition, awareness to environmental
protection is promoted to employees through
BTPN'’s internal media communication and to
the Bank’s customers through the daya program.

Given the Bank’s mass market focus, the loan
portfolio consists of small loans deemed to
have low environmental risk. Our pension

loans are also classified as loans with low
environmental risk, since credits are mainly used
for consumptive purposes.



top to bottom:

The concern towards the
environment is evident in
every btpn sinaya branch
office, which uses bamboo
columns and green plants in
its interior as well as outside
the branch.

BTPN places high importance
in professionalism and

not discriminating by
maintaining gender equality
between men and women
employees, old and young, as
well as ensuring a diversity
of race and religion.
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Awareness on
environmental
protection is
promoted to
our employees
through BTPN'’s
internal media
communication.

" |..-u"“-"l1'f

Ilii-ﬁl'

FEZs==s

..r..-.-.;-lﬂ--ul-ﬁn-

145

btpn annual report 2012



146

btpn annual report 2012

GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
corporate governance implementation report of the sharia business unit

corporate governance
iImplementation report of the
sharia business unit

Sharia Supervisory Board
The Sharia Supervisory Board consists of:
1. KH.Drs. H.Amidhan (Chairman)
2. KH.Ahmad Cholil Ridwan (Member)

Duties and Responsibilities

a.

The Sharia Supervisory Board must carry
out their duties and responsibilities inline
with the Good Corporate Governance
principles.

The Sharia Supervisory Board must

give advice to the Board ofDirector and
monitor the activities of the Bank/Sharia
Business Unit to ensure that it follows the
Sharia principles.

The Sharia Supervisory Board must
assess and ensure that the operational
guidelines and product released by the
bank fulfill the Sharia principles.

The Sharia Supervisory Board monitors
the Bank’s new product development
process as to follow the regulations of the
Sharia National Council - Majelis Ulama
Indonesia.

The Sharia Supervisory Board must ask
the Sharia National Council - Majelis
Ulama Indonesia to create a regulation
for a new product if there is yet to be a
regulation of that product.

Carry out periodical reviews of raising
fund mechanic and allocating funds as
well as other Bank services to ensure their
alignment with the Sharia principles.

The Sharia Supervisory Board must
communicate the Sharia Supervisory
Board Monitoring Report to Bank
Indonesia at the latest 2 (two) months
before the semester period ends and to
the Sharia National Council at least twice
each year.

Sharia Supervisory Board Report

1.

Carried out a study of the Akad Murabahah
financing products Paket Masa Depan
segment of tunas usaha rakyat.

Carried out a study of Policy Framework and
Profit Sharing Mechanism.

Carried out a study of usage of social funds

Carried out sampling tests on contract
financing (5 samples) and funding (18
samples) towards the fullfilment of Sharia
principles of each product.

Carried out inspection, monitoring,and
inquiries and/or confirmations of Bank
employees to strengthen document
examination, both for funding and financing
transactions.

Gave opinion on fund raising and allocating
funds as well as other Bank services.

Report findings to Bank Indonesia, Board of
Directors and Board of Commissioners per
semester.
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Meeting Frequency and Attendance Sharia Supervisory Board

In 2012, the Sharia Supervisory Board conducted 12 meetings with attendance as follows:

SHARIA SUPERVISORY BOARD MEETINGS

Name Attendance
Meeting Frequency 12
KH. Drs. Amidhan 12/12
KH. Ahmad Cholil Ridwan 12/12

Members of Sharia Supervisory Board holding Multiple Positions

Sharia Supervisory Board members with multiple positions have followed the requirement from Bank
Inodnesia. Sharia Supervisory Board Members with Multiple Position outside BTPN can be seen in the
table bellow:

Name Position in other Company Name of Company

Member of Sharia Supervisory

KH. Drs. Amidhan
I Board

Adira Insurance

Member of Sharia Supervisory

MAA Insurance
Board

btpn annual report 2012

Sharia Supervisory Board Remuneration

SHARIA SUPERVISORY BOARD REMUNERATION

. Total Rupiah Recieved (Gross) in 1 Year
Type of Remuneration and other

Number of Supervisors

Benefits .
as of 31 December 2012 Rupiah Mitlion)
1. Remuneration (salary,allowance, bonus, 2 350
tantiem, severance package, etc receive
in cash).

2. Other facilities (housing, transportation,
health insurance and etc).

a) Can be owned 2 41
b) Cannot be owned
TOTAL 2 391 ‘

Total Remuneration and other Benefits
per Person in One Year

Above 2 billion _

Number of Supervisors

Above 1 billion up to 2 billion =
Above 500 million up to 1 billion =
Below 500 million D)
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Transparency of Financial and Non-Financial Conditions
List of Consultants and Advisors
CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS
Consultant Purpuse Terms of Reference
PT Karim Business Finalize policy according to Sharia Produce conversion
Management Principles manuals
Bambang Kuswijayanto Finalize Sharia policy/guidelines Produce related policy and
according to BTPN policy procedures
hierarchy
Number of Internal Fraud and Settlement Efforts
In 2012 there are no internal fraud case that significantly affected the Financial Conditions
of the Sharia Business Unit.
Number of Civil and Criminal Legal Issues and Closure Effort
[aV]
é In 2012 there are no significant civil and criminal legal issues.
?ﬂ; Non-Halal Revenue and its Utilization
E In 2012 there are no non halal revenue and fund usage.
c
C
g Activity and Cost Related to Corporate Social Responsibility
ko)

Please refer to daya section and the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

General Conclusion of Good Corporate Governance Self Assessment

The following is the general conclusion of the Good Corporate Governance self assessment
per 31 December 2012.

Rank Weight Score

No. Factor
(a) (b) (a) x (b)
1 Duties and Responsibilities of Sharia Business Unit Director 2 35% 0.70
2 Duti dR ibiliti f Sharia S i
uties and Responsibilities of Sharia Supervisory 1 20% 0.90
Board
& Impl tati f Sharia principles in th tiviti
mp em.en a |?n o . aria prmmp es in the activities 1 10% 010
of Funding, Financing and Services
4 Fi ing t jor debt d funding fi j
inancing to major debtors and funding from major o 10% 0.90
customer
5 Transparency of Financial and Non Financial
condition, GCG Implementation and Internal 2 25% 0.50
Reporting
Composite Score 100% 1.70

Predicate: Good




Overview of the GCG Self Assessment is as
follows:

a. Sharia Business Unit Directors have
fulfilled the established criteria, worked
independently and have carried out his
duty and responsibility well.

b. Sharia Supervisory Board fulfilled the
required composition and criteria, worked
independently, and carried out its duty
and responsibility, transparently and
efectively.

¢. Funding and lending of funds as well
as other Bank services follow the
Sharia principles. To guard and increase
compliance to sharia principles, the Sharia
Supervisory Board carries out periodic
inspections, two times per semester, on
funding and lending activities and visits
the KCS, Sentra Routine Meetings to give
guidance and raise motivation to work
hard and strengthen religious discipline.

d. Prudent principles and Know Your
Customer procedure are applied to lending
activities to borrowing customer and
funding activities from core depositors.

e. Financial and Non-Financial conditions,
implementation of GCG and internal
reports are always reported transparently
to stakeholders through adequate
information system.
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Strengths and Weaknesses of GCG
Implementation

The strengths and weaknesses of GCG
implementation in Sharia Business Unit in
2012 are as follows:

a. Strengths of GCG Implementation.
Strengths in GCG implementation is
fulfilling the criteria and implementation
of GCG components:

e Duties and Responsibilities of the
Director of Sharia Business Unit

e Implementation of duties and
responsibilities of the Sharia
Supervisory Board.

e Implementation of the Sharia
principles in fund raising and
allocation activities as well as the
Sharia Business Unit services.

e Providing funds to core borrowing
customers and depositing funds from
core depositors.

btpn annual report 2012

e Transparency in the Sharia Unit’s
condition, GCG implementation and
internal reporting.

b. Weaknesses of GCG Implementation.
Reviews on all policies and written

procedures need to be carried out
periodically, at least once a year.

Action Plan and Timeline

Ensuring that all policies and written
procedures is reviewed at least once every year
considering the growth of Sharia Business Unit
and is carried out throughout 2013.
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Statement of the the Board of Commissioners and Board of
Directors on the responsibility for the Annual Report 2012
PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk

We the undersigned hereby declare that all the information in the Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk

Annual Report 2012 has been fully complete and are fully responsible for ensuring the accuracy of the
content of this Annual Report.

This statement is written in truth.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

7

Prof. Dorodjatun Kuntjoro-Jakti PhD.
PRESIDENT COMMISSIONER (INDEPENDENT)

L, A iy

Harry Hartono Irwan Mahjudin Habsjah Ashish Jaiprakash Shastry
INDEPENDENT COMMISSIONER INDEPENDENT COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER

Kzak‘/ jWW M

Ranvir Dewan Sunata Tjiterosampurno
COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

INE

Ongki Wanadjati Dana
DEPUTY PRESIDENT DIRECTOR

g~

Mahdi Syahbuddin
DIRECTOR

Hadi Wibowo
DIRECTOR

Jerry Ng
PRESIDENT DIRECTOR

Djemi Suhenda
DEPUTY PRESIDENT DIRECTOR

Kharim Indra Gupta Siregar
DIRECTOR

Tt

Asep Nurdin Alfallah
DIRECTOR

L
Anika Faisal
DIRECTOR

ib g
Arief Harris Tandjung
DIRECTOR

Mulia Salim
DIRECTOR
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LAPORAN KEUANGAN/
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SURAT PERNYATAAN DIREK S| TENTANG
TANGGUNG JAWAB ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN
PADA TANGGAL 31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011, 2010
DAN 1. JANUARI 2010,
SERTA UNTUK TAHUN-TAHUN YANG BERAKHIR
PADA TANGGAL 31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011 DAN 2010

PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL TEK

Kami yang bertanda langan dibawah ini:

1. Wama : Ongki Wanadjzti Dana
Alamat Kantor . Menara Cyber 2, L1 24 & 25
JL HR. Rasuna Said Kav. X-5 No. 13
Jakarta Selatan
Alamat Rumah : JL Bungur Besar No, 97
RTMRW 010/001, Kemayoran
Jakarta Pusal
Nomor Telepon : (021) 30026200
Jabatan 1 Wakil Diretdur Utama
2 Wama : Arief Harris Tandjung
Alamat Kantor : Menara Cyber 2, Lt 24 & 25
JI. H.R. Rasuna Said Kav, X-5 No. 13
Jakarla Selatan
Alamat Rumah :JL Suwiryo Mo.15, RT/RW 003/002
Gondangdia, Menteng, Jakaria 10350
Nomor Telepon ¢ (021) 30026200
Jabatan . Direkdur
Menyatakan bahwa:

1.

Kami bertanggung jewab alas penyusunan dan penyajian
laporan keuangan PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Masional Thbk
(‘Bank’),

Laporan keuangan PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Masional Thk
lelah disusun dan disgjikan sesusl dengan Standard Akuntansi
Keuangan di Indonesia,

Semua informasi dalam laporan keuangan PT Bank Tabungan
Pensiunan Masional Tbk telah dimuat secara lengkap dan
benar,

Laporan keuangan PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Masional Thk
tidak mengandung informasi atau fakla material yang tidak
benar, dan tidak menghitangkan informasi ataw fakta material;
Kami bertanggung jewab alas sistem pengendalian infernal
dalam PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Th.

Demikian peryataan ini dibuat dengan sebenamya.
Atas nama dan mewakili DireksilFor and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

Ongki Wanadjati Dana
Wakil Direkiur UtamalDeputy President Direcior

Jakarta,
20 FebruarifFebrrary 2013

b bank
BOARD OF DIRECTORS' STATEMENTS REGARDING
THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012, 2011, 2010
AND 1 JANUARY 2010,

AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2012, 2011 AND 2010

PT EANK TAEUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL TEK

We, the undersigned:
1. Nameg : Ongki Wanadjaii Dana
Office address : Menara Cyber 2, L1 24 &£ 25
J. HR. Rasuna Seid Kav. X-5 No. 13
Jokara Selatan
Residential sddress : Ji. Bungur Besar No. 87
RTRW 0100001, Kemayoran
Jakars Pusaf
Telephone : (021) 30026200
Title : Depuly President Direclor
2 Name ;. Arief Hamis Tandjung
Office address : Menara Cyber 2, Lt 24 £ 25
Ji. H.R. Rasuna Said Kav. X-5No. 13
Jakarts Selatan
Residential eddress M. Suwiyo No.15, RT/RW 003002
Mentang, Jakarta 10350
Telephone o (021) 20026200
Tilte : Director
Declars that:

W are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
the financial stefements of PT Bank Tebungan Pensiunan
Nasional Thk (the “Bank’);

The financial statements of PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan
MNagsional Thk have been prepared and presenfed in
sccondance  with  Indonesian  Financial  Accounting
Standards;

. AN information in the finencial stafements of FT Bank

Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Thi has been disclosed in &
complete and truthful manner;

The financizl statements of PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan
Nagional Thk do nol confain any incomwect information or
material facts, nor do they omil information or malteral facts;
We are responsible for the infemal control sysfem of
PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Thk.

We cerify the eccuracy of this staterment,

Arief Harris Tandjung
Direktur/Diracfor

hidup vang lebih berarti
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LAPORAN AUDITOR INDEPENDEN
KEPADA PARA PEMEGANG SAHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL TBK

Kami telah mengaudit laporan posisi kenangan
PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk
(“Bank™) tanggal 31 Desember 2012, 2011, 2010
dan 1 Januari 2010, serta laporan laba rugi
komprehensif, laporan perubahan ekuitas dan
laporan arus kas untuk tahun-tahun yang
berakhir pada 31 Desember 2012, 2011 dan 2010,
Laporan keuangan adalah tanggung jawab
manajemen Bank. Tanggung jawab kami terletak
pada pernyataan pendapat atas laporan keuangan
berdasarkan audit kami.

Kami melaksanakan audit berdasarkan standar
auditing yang ditetapkan Institut Akuntan Publik
Indonesia. Standar tersebut mengharuskan kami
merencanakan dan melaksanakan audit agar
kami memperoleh keyakinan memadai bahwa
laporan keuangan bebas dari salah saji material,
Suatu audit meliputi pemeriksaan, atas dasar
pengujian, bukti-bukti yang mendukung jumlah-
jumlah  dan pengungkapan dalam laporan
keuangan. Audit juga meliputi penilaian atas
prinsip akuntansi vang digunakan dan estimasi
signifikan yang dibuat oleh manajemen, serta
penilaian terhadap penyajian laporan keunangan
secara keseluruhan. Kami yakin bahwa audit
kami memberikan dasar yang memadai untuk
menyatakan pendapat.

Menurut pendapat kami, laporan keuangan yang
disebut di atas menyajikan secara wajar, dalam
semua hal yang material, posisi kenangan
PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk
tanggal 31 Desember zo1z, 2011, 2010 dan
1 Januari 2010, dan hasil usaha serta arus kas
untuk tahun-tahun yang berakhir pada 31
Desember 2012, 2011 dan 2010 sesuai dengan
standar akuntansi keuangan di Indonesia.

We have audited the statements of financial
position aof PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan
Nasional Thk (the “Bank”) as at 31 December
2012, 2011, 2010 and 1 January 2010, the related
statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the years ended 31
December 2012, 2011 and 2o10. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Bank's
management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the financial statements based on our
audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with
auditing standards  established by  the
Indonesian  Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. These standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance ahout whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence  supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our apinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of PT Bank Tabungan
Pensiunan Nasional Tbk as at 31 December
2012, 2011, 2010 and 1 January zo1o, and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the
years ended 31 December 2012, 2011 and 2010 in
conformity  with  Indonesian  financial
accounting standards,

Plaza 8g,J1. H.R. Rasuna Said Kav. X-7 No.6 Jakarta 12040 - INDONESIA, P.O. Box 2473 JKP 10001
T: +62 21 5212901, F:+ 62 21 52005555 / 52005050, www.pwe.com,/id

Momor Ixn Usaha; KEP- Iﬂ&?ﬂ.l 010,
A130220056/DC2/A! Gfi;'zﬂﬂ
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Sebagaimana diungkapkan dalam Catatan 2.b
atas laporan keuangan, efektif sejak tanggal
1 Januari 2012, Bank mengadopsi Pernyataan
Standar Akuntansi Keuangan (PSAK) No. 6o,
Instrumen Keuangan: Pengungkapan, yang
diterapkan secara prospektif, dan sebagaimana
diungkapkan dalam Catatan 44 atas laporan
kenangan, Bank mereklasifikasi beberapa akun
untuk menerapkan peraturan Bapepam-LK
NoVIILG.7 tertanggal 25 Juni 2012 mengenai
Pedoman Penyajian dan Pengungkapan Laporan
Keuangan Emiten atau Perusahaan Publik,

As explained in Note 2.b to the financial
statements, effective from 1 January 2012, the
Bank adopted Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 60, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, which is applied
prospectively, and as explained in Note 44 to
the financial statements, the Bank reclassified
some of its accounts to comply with Bapepam-
LK regulation No.VIILG.7 dated 25 June 2012
regarding Guidelines on Financial Statements
Presentation and Disclosure for Issuers or
Public Companies.

JAKARTA
20 Februari/February 2013

. Q*x*x'}u?

Angeligue Dewi Da

ryanto, 5.E., CPA

Surat Lzin Praktek Akuntan Publik /License of Public Accountant Mo, AP, 0734

NOTICE TO READERS

The accompanyirg financial statements are nat intended to present the financial positions, resulls of operations, and cash

Mows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepled in countries and jurisdictions other than
Indonesia. The standards, procedures and practices utilised to audit such financial statements may differ from those
generally accepled in countries and jurisdictions other than Indoresta. Accordingly, the cceompanying financial stetements
and the auditor’s report thereon are not intended for use by those who are not informed about Indonesian accounting
principles and auditing standards, and their application in proctice,

Aroezoosh/DC2fANG/1/2mg
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PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL Tbk
LAPORAN POSISI KEUANGAN STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011, 2010 DAN 1 JANUARI 2010 371 DECEMBER 2012, 2011, 2010 AND 1 JANUARY 2010
(Disajikan dalam jutaan Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain) (Expressed in millions of Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)
1 Januari/
Catatan/ 31 Desember/December January
Notes 2012 2011%) 2010%) 2010%)
ASET ASSETS
Kas 4 929,454 820,624 701,345 443,429 Cash
Current accounts with
Giro pada Bank Indonesia 5 4,049,000 3,218,561 2,247,952 927,627 Bank Indonesia
Current accounts with
Giro pada bank lain 6 45,099 26,172 72,580 48,874 other banks
Penempatan pada Bank Placements with Bank
Indonesia dan bank lain 7 9,891,257 8,408,227 5,312,524 773,898 Indonesia and other banks
Pendapatan bunga yang masih
akan diterima 285 351 553 480 Accrued interest income
9,891,542 8,408,578 5,313,077 774,378
Efek-efek: Marketable securities:
Aset keuangan dimiliki hingga Held-to-maturity
jatuh tempo 8 1,083,078 1,523,426 1,077,545 2,740,687 financial assets
Aset keuangan tersedia Available-for-sale
untuk dijual 8 299,648 593,362 922,313 398,886 financial assets
1,382,726 2,116,788 1,999,858 3,139,573
Efek-efek yang dibeli Securities purchased
dengan janji under resale
dijual kembali agreements
(Reverse Repo) 9 1,567,422 - - - (Reverse Repo)
Pendapatan bunga yang masih
~ akan diterima 4,742 - - - Accrued interest income
— 1,572,164 - - -
o
i\l_, Pinjaman yang diberikan: Loans:
o - Pihak ketiga 10 38,810,006 30,277,836 23,297,924 15,688,511 Third parties -
Q - Pihak berelasi 10,35 34,090 32,321 30,165 34,319 Related parties -
o Pendapatan bunga yang masih
= akan diterima 10 535,608 439,094 370,036 248,599 Accrued interest income
o Dikurangi: Cadangan kerugian Less: Allowance for
E penurunan nilai (384,190) (309,515) (340,618) (269,025) impairment losses
© 38,995,514 30,439,736 23,357,507 15,702,404
Penyertaan saham 1 22 22 22 22 Investments
Biaya dibayar di muka 14 1,276,547 858,615 171,948 658,555 Prepayments
Pajak dibayar di muka 17a Prepaid taxes
- Pajak penghasilan 57,799 69,512 18,971 14,397  Corporate income taxes -
Aset pajak tangguhan 17d 34,680 28,590 54,080 56,182 Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and
Aset tetap - bersih 12 489,118 420,170 350,782 345,070 equipment - net
Aset takberwujud - bersih 13 162,784 50,680 14,819 15,932 Intangible assets - net
Aset lain-lain - bersih 15 203,683 193.093 219,632 145,803 Other assets - net
JUMLAH ASET 59,090,132 46,651,141 34,522,573 22,272,246 TOTAL ASSETS

")

Direklasifikasi sesuai PSAK 1 (revisi 2009) untuk menerapkan
Peraturan Bapepam-LK No.VIII.G.7 tahun 2012 (Catatan 44)

Catatan atas laporan keuangan merupakan bagian yang tidak
terpisahkan dari laporan keuangan secara keseluruhan

*) Reclassified in accordance with SFAS 1(revised 2009) to adopt
Bapepam-LK Regulation No.VIIl.G.7 year 2012 (Note 44)

The accompanying notes form
an integral part of these financial statements



PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL Tbk

LAPORAN POSISI KEUANGAN

31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011, 2010 DAN 1 JANUARI 2010
(Disajikan dalam jutaan Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

LIABILITAS DAN EKUITAS
LIABILITAS

Liabilitas segera

Simpanan nasabah:
- Pihak ketiga
- Pihak berelasi

Beban bunga yang masih harus
dibayar

Simpanan dari bank lain

Utang pajak:
- Pajak penghasilan
- Pajak lain-lain

Utang obligasi
Beban bunga yang masih harus
dibayar

Pinjaman yang diterima:
- Pinjaman bukan bank
- Liabilitas sewa pembiayaan
Beban bunga yang masih harus
dibayar

Akrual

Liabilitas imbalan kerja karyawan:
- Bonus dan tantiem
- Imbalan pasca kerja

Liabilitas lain-lain
Jumlah Liabilitas

EKUITAS

Modal saham -

Modal dasar Rp 150.000
terdiri dari:
7.500.000.000 saham
(2011: 7.500.000.000
saham) dengan nilai
nominal Rp 20
(nilai penuh) per saham
(2010: 1.500.000.000
saham) dengan nilai
nominal Rp 100
(nilai penuh) per saham

Modal ditempatkan dan
disetor penuh pada 2012
sebesar 5.840.287.257
saham (2011: 5.663.617.140
saham, 2010:
1.132.723.428 saham)

Tambahan modal disetor
(Kerugian)/keuntungan

yang belum direalisasi atas

efek-efek dalam kelompok

tersedia untuk dijual
Saldo laba:

- Sudah ditentukan

penggunaannya

- Belum ditentukan

penggunaannya

Jumlah Ekuitas

JUMLAH LIABILITAS
DAN EKUITAS

1 Januari/
Catatan/ 31 Desember/December January
Notes 2012 2011 2010 2010
16 10,105 11,448 8,290 6,632
18 45,040,151 35,589,145 25,499,011 18,498,330
18,35 32,452 28,855 27,468 16,458
164,613 122,021 104,447 73,582
45,237,216 35,740,021 25,630,926 18,588,370
19 5,998 115,069 88,200 45,603
17b
194,584 36,788 61,729 32,472
79,716 55,910 44,816 34,270
20 4,533,156 3,631,842 3,135,505 743,594
44,535 39,138 38,734 20,388
4,577,691 3,670,980 3,174,239 763,982
21
401,40m 609,440 748,900 135,000 -
14,096 - - -
28,395 35,706 7,399 -
651,931 784,606 142,399 -
22 158,374 103,695 77,894 55,235
37
244,345 207,038 222,280 146,753
189 3,391 2,529 8,869
23 196,056 304,997 851,980 551,747
51,356,205 41,033,943 30,305,282 20,233,933
24
116,806 113,272 113,272 94,394
1 1,429,385 1,293,458 1,293,458 -
(56) 1,662 1,818 668
26 23,361 22,654 18,878 18,878
26 6,164,431 4,186,152 2,789,865 1,924,373
7,733,927 5,617,198 4,217,291 2,038,313

Catatan atas laporan keuangan merupakan bagian yang tidak
terpisahkan dari laporan keuangan secara keseluruhan

—959.000.132 __46,651.141 __34.522.573 __22,272.246

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 DECEMBER 2012, 2011, 2010 AND 1 JANUARY 2010
(Expressed in millions of Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Liability due immediately

Deposits from customers:
Third parties -
Related parties -

Accrued interest expenses

Deposits from other banks

Taxes payable:
Income taxes -
Other taxes -

Bonds payable

Accrued interest expenses

Borrowings:
Non bank borrowings -
Finance lease liabilities -

Accrued interest expenses

Accruals

Employee benefit liabilities:
Bonus and tantiem -
Post employment benefit -

Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital -
Authorised capital
of Rp 150,000 consists
of: 7,500,000,000
shares (2011:
7,500,000,000 shares)
and with par value of
Rp 20 (full amount) per
share
(2010: 1,500,000,000
shares) with par value
of Rp 100 (full amount)
per share
Issued and fully

paid-up capital in 2012
is 5,840,287,257 shares
(2011: 5,663,617,140
shares,2010:
1,132,723,428 shares)

Additional paid in capital

Unrealised (loss)/gain on
available-for-sale
marketable securities

Retained earnings:

Appropriated -
Unappropriated -

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY

The accompanying notes form
an integral part of these financial statements
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PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL Tbk
LAPORAN LABA RUGI KOMPREHENSIF STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
UNTUK TAHUN-TAHUN YANG BERAKHIR FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011 DAN 2010 31 DECEMBER 2012, 2011 AND 2010
(Disajikan dalam jutaan Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain) (Expressed in millions of Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)
Catatan/
Notes 2012 2011 2010
PENDAPATAN DAN BEBAN OPERATING INCOME AND
OPERASIONAL EXPENSE
Pendapatan bunga 27 9,292,972 7,465,651 5,604,781 Interest income
Beban bunga 28 (3,221,858) (2,829,705) (2,065,517) Interest expense
PENDAPATAN BUNGA - BERSIH 6,071,114 4,635,946 3,539,264 NET INTEREST INCOME
Pendapatan operasional
lainnya 29 282,805 190,792 135,041 Other operating income
Beban operasional lainnya: Other operating expenses:
Beban tenaga kerja 32 (1,853,571) (1,382,216) (1,291,406) Personnel expenses
Beban umum dan General and administrative
administrasi 31 (1,476,884) (1,150,313) (829,553) expenses
Pembentukan cadangan kerugian Allowance for impairment
penurunan nilai 30 (455,325) (440,162) (368,878) losses
Beban operasional lain-lain 33 (80,981) (58,764) (38,363)  Other operating expenses
(3,866,761) (3,031,455) (2,528,200)
PENDAPATAN OPERASIONAL - BERSIH 2,487,158 1,795,283 1,146,105 NET OPERATING INCOME
o\ (BEBAN)/PENDAPATAN NON-OPERATING
o NON-OPERASIONAL 34 (EXPENSES)/INCOME
i\'_‘ Pendapatan non-operasional 10,774 12,075 12,999 Non-operating income
) Beban non-operasional (12,618) (24,017) (30,010) Non-operating expenses
Q
o (1,844) (11,942) (17.011)
© LABA SEBELUM PAJAK PROFIT BEFORE
2 PENGHASILAN 2,485,314 1,783,341 1,129,094 INCOME TAX
C
© BEBAN PAJAK PENGHASILAN 17¢c (506,328) (383,278) (292,275) INCOME TAX EXPENSE
LABA TAHUN BERJALAN 1,978,986 1,400,063 836.819 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
PENDAPATAN KOMPREHENSIF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
LAINNYA: INCOME:
(Kerugian)/keuntungan yang belum Unrealised (loss)/gain on
direalisasi atas efek-efek dalam available-for-sale
kelompok tersedia untuk dijual (2,150) (344) 1,534 marketable securities
Manfaat/(beban) pajak Related income tax
penghasilan terkait 432 188 (384) benefits/(expenses)
Other comprehensive
(Beban)/pendapatan komprehensif (expense)/income
lainnya tahun berjalan, for the year,
setelah pajak (1,718) (156) 1,150 net of tax
TOTAL LABA KOMPREHENSIF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
TAHUN BERJALAN, INCOME FOR THE YEAR,
SETELAH PAJAK 1,977,268 1,399,907 837,969 NET OF TAX
LABA BERSIH PER SAHAM 39 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(NILAI PENUH) (FULL AMOUNT)
Dasar Basic
- Dari operasi yang dilanjutkan 341 247 148 From continuing operations -
Dilusian Diluted
- Dari operasi yang dilanjutkan 341 247 148 From continuing operations -

Catatan atas laporan keuangan merupakan bagian yang tidak
terpisahkan dari laporan keuangan secara keseluruhan

The accompanying notes form
an integral part of these financial statements
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LAPORAN ARUS KAS

UNTUK TAHUN-TAHUN YANG BERAKHIR

31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011 DAN 2010
(Disajikan dalam jutaan Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

ARUS KAS DARI
AKTIVITAS OPERASI

Penerimaan bunga

Pendapatan provisi dan komisi

Pembayaran bunga

Penerimaan kembali atas kredit
yang telah dihapusbukukan

Pembayaran beban tenaga kerja

Beban operasional lainnya

Pendapatan/(beban)
non-operasional

Pembayaran pajak kini

Arus kas sebelum
perubahan dalam
aset dan liabilitas operasi

Penurunan/(kenaikan) dalam
aset dan liabilitas operasi:

Penempatan pada
Bank Indonesia dan
bank lain — jatuh tempo
lebih dari 3 bulan

Efek-efek — jatuh tempo
lebih dari 3 bulan

Efek-efek yang dibeli dengan
janji dijual kembali
(Reverse Repo)

Pinjaman yang diberikan

Aset lain-lain

Liabilitas segera

Simpanan nasabah

Simpanan dari bank lain

Utang pajak

Utang lain-lain

Arus kas bersih diperoleh/
(digunakan) dari
aktivitas operasi

ARUS KAS DARI
AKTIVITAS INVESTASI

Hasil dari penjualan aset tetap
Pembelian aset tetap

Hasil dari penjualan aset
terbengkalai

Arus kas bersih digunakan
untuk aktivitas investasi

PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL Tbk

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2012, 2011 AND 2010

(Expressed in millions of Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2012 2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
9,191,782 7,396,795 5,483,271 Interest received
Fee and commission income
282,805 190,792 135,041 received
(3,181,267) (2,779,251) (1,994,630) Interest paid
152,058 138,129 25,790  Recovery from written-off loan
(1,833,713) (1,452,909) (1,222,219) Payment of personnel expenses
(1,431,826) (1,128,685) (805,742) Other operating expenses
Non-operating income/
66,818 (7,526) (15,706) (expense)
(354,193) (382,540) (270,856) Corporate income tax paid
Cash flows before changes in
operating assets
2,892,464 1,974,805 1,334,949 and liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in operating
assets and liabilities:
Placements with
Bank Indonesia and other
banks - with maturity
4,725,975 (4,760,899) - more than 3 months
Marketable securities - with
maturity more than
731,915 (117,275) (1,998,326) 3 months
Securities purchased under
resale agreement
(1,567,422) - - (Reverse Repo)
(9,067,118) (7,596,553) (7,899,905) Loans
(423,254) (704,071) 408,172 Other assets
(1,343) 3,158 1,658 Liabilities due immediately
9,454,603 10,091,521 7,011,691 Deposits from customers
(109,071) 26,869 42,597 Deposits from other banks
23,806 11,094 10,546 Tax payables
(40,015) (464.869) 322,892 Other liabilities
Net cash
flows provided/(used)
6,620,540 (1,536,220) (765,726) in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property,
13 994 5,696 plant and equipment
Purchase of property,
(375,294) (202,809) (77,080) plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of
13,708 7,476 - abandoned properties
Net cash flows used in
(361,573) (194,339) (71,384) investing activities

Catatan atas laporan keuangan merupakan bagian yang tidak
terpisahkan dari laporan keuangan secara keseluruhan

The accompanying notes form
an integral part of these financial statements



PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL Tbk

LAPORAN ARUS KAS

UNTUK TAHUN-TAHUN YANG BERAKHIR

31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011 DAN 2010

(Disajikan dalam jutaan Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2012, 2011 AND 2010

(Expressed in millions of Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2012 2011 2010
ARUS KAS DARI CASH FLOWS FROM
AKTIVITAS PENDANAAN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Penerimaan dari efek-efek Proceeds from issuance of
yang diterbitkan 900,000 500,000 2,400,000 marketable securities
Biaya emisi obligasi (5,862) (5,057) (14,277) Bonds issuance cost
Pinjaman yang diterima - 613,900 135,000 Proceeds from borrowings
Tambahan modal Additional paid in
disetor - - 1,321,510 capital
Sewa pembiayaan 14,096 - - Finance lease
Biaya emisi ekuitas - - (9.174) Equity issuance cost
Arus kas bersih diperoleh dari Net cash flows provided from
aktivitas pendanaan 908,234 1,108,843 3,833,059 financing activities
NET INCREASE/
KENAIKAN/(PENURUNAN) BERSIH (DECREASE) IN CASH
KAS DAN SETARA KAS 7,167,201 (621,716) 2,995,949 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
SALDO KAS DAN SETARA KAS AT THE BEGINNING OF
AWAL TAHUN 7,712,685 8,334,401 5,338,452 YEAR
CASH AND CASH
SALDO KAS DAN SETARA KAS EQUIVALENTS
AKHIR TAHUN 14,879,886 7,712,685 8,334,401 AT THE END OF YEAR
AKTIVITAS YANG TIDAK ACTIVITIES NOT AFFECTING
MEMPENGARUHI ARUS KAS CASH FLOWS
Konversi pinjaman menjadi Convertible loan conversion into
saham 139,461 - - common shares
Kas dan setara kas Cash and cash equivalents at
akhir tahun terdiri dari: end of year consist of:
Kas 929,454 820,624 701,345 Cash
Current accounts with Bank
Giro pada Bank Indonesia 4,049,000 3,218,561 2,247,952 Indonesia
Current accounts with
Giro pada bank lain 45,099 26,172 72,580 other banks
Penempatan pada Placements with
Bank Indonesia Bank Indonesia
dan bank lain* 9,856,333 3,647,328 5,312,524 and other banks*
14,879,886 7,712,685 8,334,401

Penempatan pada Bank Indonesia dan bank lain
dengan jangka waktu jatuh tempo tiga bulan atau
kurang diklasifikasikan sebagai kas dan setara kas
(Catatan 2a)

Catatan atas laporan keuangan merupakan bagian yang tidak
terpisahkan dari laporan keuangan secara keseluruhan

Placements with Bank Indonesia and other banks *
with maturity of three months or less are classified as
cash and cash equivalents (Note 2a)

The accompanying notes form
an integral part of these financial statements
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PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL Tbk

CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN
31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011 DAN 2010
(Disajikan dalam jutaan Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

1. INFORMASI UMUM

a.

Pendirian dan informasi umum

PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk.
(“Bank”) yang berdomisili di Jakarta didirikan
berdasarkan akta notaris No. 31 tanggal
16 Februari 1985 dari Notaris Komar
Andasasmita, S.H.. Akta ini telah diubah
dengan akta notaris No. 12 tanggal 13 Juli
1985 dari Notaris Dedeh Ramdah Sukarna,
S.H.. Anggaran Dasar telah disahkan oleh
Menteri Kehakiman Republik Indonesia
dengan surat No. C-2-4583-HT.01-01 TH.85
tanggal 25 Juli 1985, dan diumumkan dalam
Tambahan No. 1148 Berita Negara Republik
Indonesia No. 76 tanggal 20 September 1985.
Bank diberikan izin untuk melanjutkan usaha
bank sebagai kelanjutan usaha dari
Perkumpulan Bank Pegawai Pensiunan Militer
("TBAPEMIL”) yang telah beroperasi secara
operasional pada tanggal 16 Februari 1959.

Bank memperoleh izin usaha sebagai bank
umum  berdasarkan  keputusan  Menteri
Keuangan Republik Indonesia No. Kep-
955/KM.17/1993 tanggal 22 Maret 1993 dan
surat Bank Indonesia No.
26/5/UPBD/PBD2/Bd tanggal 22 April 1993.
Bank juga memperoleh izin untuk menjalankan
Unit Usaha Syariah melalui surat Bank
Indonesia No. 10/2/DPIP/Prz/Bd tanggal 17
Januari 2008.

Anggaran Dasar Bank telah beberapa kali
mengalami perubahan, terakhir terkait dengan
penambahan modal ditempatkan dan disetor
Bank dalam rangka Penambahan Modal
Tanpa Hak Memesan Efek Terlebih Dahulu
melalui akta notaris No. 10 tanggal
22 Februari 2012 dari Notaris Sinta Dewi
Sudarsana, S.H.. Perubahan Anggaran Dasar
telah disahkan oleh Kementerian Hukum dan
Hak Asasi Manusia Republik Indonesia
dengan surat No. AHU-AH.01.10-08497
tanggal 9 Maret 2012.

Sesuai dengan pasal 3 Anggaran Dasar Bank,
maksud dan tujuan serta kegiatan Bank adalah
melakukan kegiatan usaha di bidang bank
umum termasuk kegiatan perbankan yang
melaksanakan usaha syariah sesuai dengan
undang-undang dan peraturan yang berlaku di
Indonesia.

Pemegang saham pengendali Bank (ultimate
shareholder) adalah David Bonderman melalui
TPG Nusantara S.a.r.l. (57,87%).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2012, 2011 AND 2010

(Expressed in millions of Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

a.

Establishment and general information

PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk.
(the “Bank”) domiciled in Jakarta was
established by notarial deed No. 31 dated
16 February 1985 of Notary Komar
Andasasmita, S.H.. The deed was amended
by notarial deed No. 12 dated 13 July 1985 of
Notary Dedeh Ramdah Sukarna, S.H.. The
Articles of Association was approved by the
Minister of Justice of the Republic of Indonesia
in its decision letter No. C-2-4583-HT.01-01
TH.85 dated 25 July 1985 and published in
Supplement No. 1148 to State Gazette No. 76
dated 20 September 1985. The Bank were
given permission to carry on the bank
business as a continuity from Association of
Bank Pegawai Pensiunan Militer ("BAPEMIL")
which commenced its commercial operations
on 16 February 1959.

The bank obtained license to operate as
commercial bank based on Decree of Ministry
of Finance of the Republic Indonesia No. Kep-
955/KM.17/1993 dated 22 March 1993 and the
letter of Bank Indonesia No.
26/5/UPBD/PBD2/Bd dated 22 April 1993. The
bank also obtained a license to operate its
Sharia Business Unit by the letter of Bank
Indonesia No. 10/2/DPIP/Prz/Bd dated 17
January 2008.

The Bank’s Articles of Association have been
amended several times, the latest related with
the increase of issued and paid-up capital in
conjunction with capital increase without Pre-
emptive Rights which was notarised by Notary
Sinta Dewi Sudarsana, S.H. in notarial deed
No. 10 dated 22 February 2012. The
amendment of Article Association has been
approved by The Minister of Law and Human
Rights of The Republic of Indonesia through its
letter No.AHU-AH.01.10-08497 dated 9 March
2012.

In accordance with Article 3 of the Bank’s
Article of Association, the Bank’s scope of
activities is to engage in general banking
services include sharia business activities in
accordance with the prevailing laws and
regulations in Indonesia.

The Bank’s ultimate shareholder is David
Bonderman through TPG Nusantara S.a.r.l.
(67.87%).



PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL Tbk

CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN
31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011 DAN 2010
(Disajikan dalam jutaan Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

a.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2012, 2011 AND 2010

(Expressed in millions of Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

1. INFORMASI UMUM (lanjutan) 1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)
Pendirian dan informasi umum (lanjutan) a. Establishment and general information
(continued)
Kantor pusat Bank berlokasi di Menara Cyber The Bank’s head office is located at Menara
2, Lantai 24 dan 25 Jalan H.R. Rasuna Said Cyber 2 on 24th and 25th floor, Jalan H.R.
Blok X-5 No. 13, Jakarta Selatan 12950 Rasuna Said Blok X-5 No.13, South Jakarta,
dengan jaringan distribusi pada tanggal with a distribution network as at 31 December
31 Desember 2012, 2011 dan 2010 sebagai 2012, 2011 and 2010 as follows:
berikut:
2012 2011 2010
Kantor Pusat 1 1 1 Head Office
Kantor Cabang Khusus - - 1 Special Branch
Kantor Cabang Utama 66 64 63 Main Branches
Kantor Cabang Pembantu 998 913 833 Sub-Branches
Kantor Kas 13 32 88 Cash Offices
ATM 71 49 29 ATM
Payment Service Points 34 53 50 Payment Service Points
Office Channeling 29 67 21 Office Channeling
1,212 1,179 1,086
Jumlah karyawan Bank pada tanggal As at 31 December 2012, 2011 and 2010
31 Desember 2012, 2011, dan 2010, masing- the Bank has 18,914, 13,620 and 12,505
masing adalah 18.914, 13.620, dan 12.505 employees, respectively.
karyawan.
Penawaran Umum Saham Biasa b. Public Offering of Ordinary Shares

Berdasarkan Rapat Umum Pemegang Saham
Luar Biasa (RUPSLB) tanggal 8 Juni 2007,
yang berita acaranya dituangkan dalam akta
notaris No. 71 tanggal 8 Juni 2007 dari Notaris
Sutjipto, S.H., M.Kn., yang ditegaskan kembali
berdasarkan akta notaris No. 123 tanggal
24 Januari 2008 dari Notaris Sutjipto, S.H.,
M.Kn., para pemegang saham menyetujui
rencana Penawaran Umum Saham Perdana
Biasa kepada masyarakat melalui pasar modal
serta melakukan pencatatan saham Bank di
Bursa Efek Indonesia.

Bank telah menyampaikan Pernyataan
Pendaftaran kepada Badan Pengawas Pasar
Modal dan Lembaga Keuangan (Bapepam-LK)
dalam rangka Penawaran Umum Saham
Perdana pada tanggal 29 Januari 2008 melalui
surat No. S.035/DIR-DSP/I/2008. Pada tanggal
29 Februari 2008, Bank memperoleh
pernyataan efektif dari Ketua Bapepam-LK
melalui surat No. S-1253/BL/2008 perihal
Pemberitahuan Efektif Pernyataan
Pendaftaran dalam rangka Penawaran Umum
Perdana Saham PT Bank Tabungan
Pensiunan Nasional Tbk.

Based on Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholder (RUPSLB) dated 8 June 2007,
which was notarised by notarial deed No. 71
dated 8 June 2007, of Notary Sutjipto, S.H.,
M.Kn., which was reaffirmed by notarial deed
No. 123 dated 24 January 2008 of Notary
Sutjipto, S.H., M.Kn., the shareholders
approved the Initial Public Offering of Ordinary
Shares plan to public through capital market
and listing of the Bank’s shares in the
Indonesia Stock Exchange.

The Bank has submitted registration statement
to Capital Market and Financial Institution
Supervisory Agency (Bapepam-LK) related to
Public Offering of Ordinary Shares through
letter  No.  S.035/DIR-DSP/I/2008  dated
29 January 2008. On 29 February 2008, the
Bank received effective statement from
Chairman of Bapepam-LK through letter No.
S-1253/BL/2008  about  Notification — of
effectiveness  Registration of PT Bank
Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk.’s Public
Offering of Ordinary Shares.
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PT BANK TABUNGAN PENSIUNAN NASIONAL Tbk

CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN
31 DESEMBER 2012, 2011 DAN 2010
(Disajikan dalam jutaan Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

1. INFORMASI UMUM (lanjutan)

b.

Penawaran Umum Saham Biasa (lanjutan)

Pada tanggal 29 Februari 2008, Bank
melakukan Penawaran Umum  sebesar
267.960.220 saham biasa atas nama Negara
Republik Indonesia cgq Menteri Keuangan
Republik Indonesia dengan nilai nominal
sebesar Rp 100 (nilai penuh) per saham dan
harga penawaran sebesar Rp 2.850 (nilai
penuh) per saham kepada masyarakat di
Indonesia. Saham tersebut telah dicatatkan
pada Bursa Efek Indonesia pada 12 Maret
2008.

Berdasarkan RUPSLB tanggal 25 November
2010, yang berita acaranya dituangkan dalam
akta notaris No. 198 tanggal 25 November
2010 dari Notaris Sinta Dewi Sudarsana S.H.,
M.kn., yang ditegaskan kembali berdasarkan
akta notaris No. 116 tanggal 17 Januari 2011
dari Notaris Sinta Dewi Sudarsana S.H., M.kn.,
para pemegang saham menyetujui atas
rencana Bank untuk menambah modal
sahamnya melalui penerbitan Hak Memesan
Efek Terlebih Dahulu | (HMETD 1), dengan
cara mengeluarkan saham dari portepel atau
simpanan Bank. Bank telah menyampaikan

Pernyataan Pendaftaran kepada Badan
Pengawas Pasar Modal dan Lembaga
Keuangan (Bapepam-LK) dalam rangka

Penerbitan Hak Memesan Efek Terlebih
Dahulu (HMETD) kepada Pemegang Saham
PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk
pada tanggal 25 Oktober 2010 melalui surat
No. S.023/DEKOM/X/2010. Pada tanggal 24
November 2010, Bank memperoleh
pernyataan efektif dari Ketua Bapepam-LK
melalui surat No. S-10615/BL/2010 perihal
Pemberitahuan Efektif Pernyataan
Pendaftaran dalam rangka Penawaran Umum
Terbatas PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan
Nasional Tbk. Pada tanggal 10 Desember
2010 telah dicatatkan pada Bursa Efek
Indonesia sebanyak 188.787.238 saham baru
dengan nominal Rp 100 (nilai penuh) per
saham yang ditawarkan dengan harga
Rp 7.000 (nilai penuh) per saham. Jumlah
nominal modal saham tercatat adalah sebesar
Rp 18.878 dengan agio saham sebesar
Rp 1.302.632.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2012, 2011 AND 2010

(Expressed in millions of Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

b.

Public  Offering
(continued)

of Ordinary Shares

On 29 February 2008, the Bank undertook a
Public Offering of 267,960,220 ordinary shares
of the Republic of Indonesia cq on behalf of
Minister of Finance of the Republic of
Indonesia with a par value per share of Rp 100
(full amount) and